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INDEFENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT
(A free translation from the original in Spanish)

Santiago, February 26, 2021

To the Shareholders and Directors
Banco Santander Chile

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Banco Santander Chile and its
subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of December 31, 2020
and 2019, and the related consolidated statements of income, other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes thereto.

Muanagement's Responsibility for the consolidated financial stafements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these econsolidated financial
statements in accordance with acconnting standards and instructions issued by the Commission for the
Financial Market. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant for the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audits. We conduct our audits in accordance with Chilean generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An andit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence on the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements, The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements of the entity in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express
such kind of opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the andit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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Santiago, February 26, 2021
Banco Santander Chile
2

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Banco Santander Chile and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2020

and 2019, and the results of its operations, and its cash flows for the yvears then ended, in conformity
with accounting standards and instructions issued by the Commission for the Finaneial Market.

L2 ’? ( rfcng.WHOUSECOOfEFS.
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Firmado digitalmente por Luis Fernando Orihuela Bertin RUT: 2z.216.857-0. El certificado correspondiente puede
visualizarse en la version electrdnica de este documento,




CONTENT

Consolidated Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION .

COMSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME ..
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCDME
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

NS OLIATED S AT EMEM T I CASH PO i i i e e e e e e e e e v e R B e S e e T

Motes to the Consolidated Interim Financial Statements

MNOTE (1
MOTE 02
MOTE 03
MOTE 04
MOTE 05
NOTE 06
MNOTE 07
NOTE 08
MOTE 09
MOTE 10
MNOTE 11
MOTE 12
MNOTE 13
NOTE 14
NOTE 15
NOTE 16
MOTE 17
NOTE 18
MNOTE 19
MNOTE 20
MNOTE 21
NOTE 22
MNOTE 23
NOTE 24
MNOTE 25
MNOTE 26
MNOTE 27
MNOTE 28
MNOTE 29
NOTE 30
MNOTE 31
MNOTE 32
MNOTE 33
MOTE 34
MNOTE 35
NOTE 36
MNOTE 37
NOTE 38
MNOTE 39
MNOTE 40
MOTE 41

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES s s sms s s s s s 9
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING oo e e A S e e B e b S 42
SIGMIFICAMNT EVENTS

REPORTING SEGMEMNTS ........

CASH AMD CASH EQUIVALENTS

TRADING INVESTMENTS

IMVESTMEMNTS UNDER RESALE AGREEMENTS AND OBLIGATIONS UNDER REPU RC HASE F\GREEM ENTS.
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING s o 54
INTERBAME LOANS.... W81

LOANS AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE FROM CUSTOMERS ... 62
AVAILABLE FOR SALE INVESTIMEMTS oo sseesesesssses et s e e eesr e P 68
INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND OTHER COMPANIES
I TANGIBLE ASSETS s e esrestr et e ettt et ettt e e sttt
FIXED ASSETS AMD RIGHT OF USE ASSETS AND OBLIGATION FOR LEASE COMTRACT.
CURRENT AND DEFERRED TANES ooonivesssmsssessoss o s ssses s s st
OTHER ASSETS.. - i e oSl s e
TIME DEPOSITS AND OTHER TIME LIABILITIES .

INTERBANK BORROWINGS .
ISSUED DEBT INSTRUMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES oo e eeesae e a1
MATURITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
PROVISIONS
OTHER LIABILITIES....
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS...
EQUITY....
CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS (BASEL) .

MOM-CONTROLLING IMTEREST......
INTEREST IMCOME oo ; .
FEES AN D COMMISSIONS ittt iom iy b s bl S s i
MNET INCOME (EXPENSE) FROM FINAMCIAL OPERATIONS
NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE INCOME
PROVISIONS FORUOAN EOSSES i Sk i o i s b bl i sl il s i e e
PERSONMNEL SALARIES AMD EXPENSES
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPEMSES....oov.rroe
DEPRECIATION, AMORTIZATION AND IMPAIRMENT .
OTHER OPERATING INCOME AMD EXPEMSES oo :
TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES .. cviessorsss st st 08581504514 st
PENSION PLANS Lo i aias s el b b i e i st S S
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LUABILITIES oo ottt et et
RISK MANAGEMENT ..
NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE .
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS




«» Santander

Banco Santander-Chile and Subsidiaries
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As of
December 31,
2020 2019
NOTE MChS MChS$
ASSETS
Cash and deposits in banks 3 2.B03, 268 3554 B30
Cash items in process of collection 5 452963 355062
Trading investments & 133,718 270,204
Inwvestinents under resale agreements T . z
Financial derivative contracts ] Q037 065 B.148,608
Interbank laans, net g9 18,920 14,833
Loand and accounts receivables from customers, nat 0 33413429 31,823,735
Available for sale investments 1 762542 4,010,272
Held o maturity imeestments - -
Investments in associates and ather companies 12 10,770 10467
Intangible assets 13 B253T 73,389
Property, plant, and equipment 14 167,240 18733
Right of use assats 14 201,611 210,500
Currant tazes 15 & 11,648
Dreferred taxes 15 53118 4B BET
Other assets 16 1,738,856 1,434,308
TOTAL ASSETS 55,776,077 50,576,246
LIABILITIES
Deposits and other demand liabilitias 17 14,560,893 10,297,432
Cash items in process of being cleared 5 361,631 198,243
Ohbligations under repurchase agreements v 969,608 IBOO55
Time deposits and octher time liabilities 7 10,581,791 13,192,817
Financial derivative cantracts i 2,018,660 T.350,654
Interbank borrowing 18 5,326,599 2513,818
Issuad debt instruments 1% 8204177 9.500,723
Other financial liabilities 1% 164,318 226,353
Leace liabiilties 14 148,585 158,494
Current taxes 15 12977 -
Deferred taxes 15 129,066 3,608
Prowisians 21 456,120 337,397
Other liabilities 22 1,165,853 2,806,325
TOTAL LIABILITIES 52,123 478 47,107,929
EQUITY
Attributable to the equity holders of the Bank 3,567,916 3.390.823
Capital 24 591,303 #91,303
Reserdes 24 2 341,966 2.121,148
Waluation adjustrments 24 (27.586) (B0G3)
Retained earnings 362,213 386,465
Retained earnings from prior years
Income far the period 517447 552,093
Minus: Provision for mandatory dividends 21 (155,214) [165,628]
Mon-controlling interest 26 B4,683 79,494
TOTAL EQUITY 3,652,599 3,470,317
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 55,776,077 50,578,246

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,

Consolidated Financial StatementsDecember 2020 / Banco Santander-Chile 3
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Banco Santander-Chile and Subsidiaries
CONSOLIDATED STATEMEMNT OF INCOME
For the periods ended

As of December 31,

2020 2019
NOTE MCh§ MCh$
OPERATING INCOME
Interest income 27 2,232,327 2,321,268
Interest expense ar (B38,479) {904,417
Net interest income 1,593,848 1,416,851
Fae and commission income 28 451,162 A0 G5E
Fae and commission expansa 28 {183,884) {211.572)
HMet fee and commission income 267,278 287,086
Met income (expensa) from financial operations 29 90,800 {78,165)
Met f:)r&lgr'l exchange gain an a0,783 285,184
Other operating income 35 21,652 24,598
HNet operating profit before provision for loan logses 2,024,363 1,935,554
Prowvision for loan losses E1 (511,073) {420,447y
MET OPERATING INCOME 1,513,290 1,515,107
Personnel salares and expanses 32 (408,670) A10,157)
Administrative axpenses EE (250,450) [233,612)
Depreciation and amartization 4 (109,428) (106,002
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 4 638 (2,726
Other operating expenses 35 [91,808) 161,021)
Total operating e {860,992) (813,608)
OPERATING INCOME 652,298 701,499
Incame fram investments in associatesd and other companies 12 1,388 1,146
Income before tax 653, 6B6 TO2,645
Income tax expense 15 131,123) 1150,168)
Raxult of continusis operations - — S3Z568. SSZATT
Rezult of discontinued operations A1 - 1,699
MET INCOME FOR THE PERIOD 522563 554,176
Attributable fo
Equity halders of the Bank 217447 552,003
Mon-controlling interest 26 5116 2083
Earnings per share of continuous aperatians attributable to Equity
holders of the Bank (expressed in Chilean pasos):
Basic earnings 24 2748 2921
Driluted Carnings 24 2745 2921
Earnings per share attributable to Equity holders of the Bank
[exprassed in Chilean pesos):
Basic earnings 24 2746 2.930
Ciluted earnings 24 2746 2.930

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consalidated interim financial statemaents

Censolidated Financial Statements December 2020 / Bance Santander-Chile 4
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Banco Santander-Chile and Subsidiaries
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the periods ended
As of December 31,
2020 2019
NOTE MChs MChs
MET INCOME FOR THE PERIOD 522,563 554,176
OTHER COMPREHEMSIVE INCOME - ITEMS WHICH WILL BE
RECLASSIFIED TO PROFIT OR LOSS
Swailable for sale investments 2d B TIT 23474
Cash flow hedge 24 (96,330} (50,238}
Other comprehensive income which may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss, before tax (26.593) (26,264)
Income tax related to itams which may be reclassified subsequently to 7179 7,082
profit or loss
Other comprehensive inceme for the peried which may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or lass, met of tax (19.414) (19.172)
OTHER COMPREHEMNSIVE INCOME THAT WILL NOT BE RECLASSIFIED :
TO PROFIT OR LOSS
TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD 503,149 535,004
Atributaible to)
Equity holders of the Bank 457 954 533,110
Mes-cantralling interest 26 3195 1,854
Attributable to; Equity halders of the Bank:
Continuous operations 447 954 831,411
Discontinuous operations - 1,659

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated interin financial statements.

Censolidated Financial Statements December 2020 / Bance Santander-Chile 5




Banco Santander-Chile and Subsidiaries
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHAMGES IN EQUITY
For the periods ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

< Santander

RESERVES VALUATION ADIUETMENTS RETAIMEDR EARMIMGS
Effecta of
e iger o
Erannsaes exerpanies Prosivies Tortadl (W]
il i ufsder Availabile fes Prise yisars far avtrbutable Mo
retained comman ule Cmhfiow  Income tax retaimad Incomefor  mandafory  equity holdes  controlling
Capital wamings canlral inveslmanls hedge affiets warnings e piried  dvidinds of the Bank it Tatal Equity
L1 ] MChi MChi MChi MCh MChs Fng MChE MCTS MEChE MChi el g
_Equisy s of December 31, 2518 1,333 1,525,246 i3224] 5,114 1 427 581,82 1177;571) 3,215,545 4,163 3,385,708
[istribufinn of nonma from peesioes pariod 1 503 [T .
_Eguiny s of Jarnuary 1. 2019 51,333 1,825,245 3234 X 1 27 [ 11ITE) 3,215,540 AL, 163 3,385,708
Irraasin or decnuse ol cazital and revanan [reree {18,815} 1417 .
Traraaolanivs with o shases 3
Dasddend dutributons) sithdsak made 355,181} nIrsa 77,5704
Other equiny mavemenis T 234761}
Proision {or mandaicry disdends [l nessin [ALEEEL
Subrtotal THENLE 15513501 11988 1381 8331 EIELE] [ R
ity srmbarmian IR 1823 148 R 1164 (9,973
Risul ol Sonlinoi operation AT LTS 1083 5277
Risut of dscontinaed operations - 1255 151 1,688
Subiatal 24,215 30,218 1023 552,01 513,18 1,804 5084
Eguinty i3 of December 21, 2019 1,53 2,121,072 *224) PR ) (40,415} FE T (17T IEE+11] PRI T LATOINT
Diahiibrotion of income fom previcea ricd IR IR
Equity 2 of January 1, 2020 1,533 EACERTE 1E.204) .54 (40,415} 1998 55923 11854201 EAs0a Tha saT0Ey
Increase or decrease of capital and resenves zoRe [FFaE Ly
Trarescions with owe shates .
Giaidend ditnbutons ssthd ks made 133255 165 628 RLETTE rigELT)
Cither esuity m 1] = L 184
Prerarion Tod s dal dredinds . L 5% {15524 [RE=+}TT
Sublotals FRLT ] 552881} 1130,867) 15 30, 1ETy
Other compeheraies income - (L1554 8,157 e - [REXEET] ™ 19414}
Resut of conbimging nperston: EEH s17847 £11E 38
Ryt of dhscantinges] operations .
Subiotal [ [55.316¢ Ta8 ST ALY ANTASE (X1 SOk %
Equity 13 of Docembaer 30, 2920 151,391 3144200 (E 224 ST JRECEIE] 10201 517447 L5521 LsETane B4501 L5 sue
7} Sew rate 1 b) for non-controlling inderest.
Tetal aftribulable 10 iquity Allecated 15 Allecated 10 Distrikauted Murmber of Dividund par sharw
Fedod haolders of the Bank reannEs dividends Fencentage shares fin chilean pesos)
MChE MChE MChi k.S
o 2009 [Extrasechnary shandobdirs Moatitg fpi
B 551003 28313 1a5e28 i 18EA44E128.704 ngg
Wear 200 (Shareodders Meetng April 20204 55108 12033 168527 E 188 446,126,794 0473
Weor 2001 [Eharebeodders Meeting April 23131 591502 235761 355,140 g 136446125704 L B35

The accempanying notes 1 ta 37 farm an integral pant of these consoldated iranm financial statemants,
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Banco Santander-Chile and Subsidiaries
COMNSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the periods ended

< Santander

As of December 31,

2020 2019
MOTE MCh$ MCh$
A — CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
MET INCOME FOR THE PERIOD 522,563 554,176
Debits (credits) to income that do not represent cash flows {1.155,277) (1,041,895)
Depreciation and amortization 34 109,426 106,092
Impairments of property, plant and equipment and intangibles 34 638 2,726
Provision for loan losses Ed 585,959 503,181
Prowvision from trading investments mark ta market 43,609 39,997
Income from investments in associates and other companies 12 (1,388) (1,146)
Met gain on sale of assets received in lieu of payment 35 (19,380) (7,210
Frovision on assets received in lieu of payment 35 1,458 1,809
Met gain on sale of associates and other companies 20 126
Met gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 35 (B65) [2.456)
Charge off of assets received in lieu of payment 35 15,276 17,638
Met interest income 27 (1,593 848) (1,416,857)
Met fee and commission income 28 {267,278) (287,086)
Other [credits) debits to income that do not represent cash flows 9672 an)
Changes in deferred taxes 15 (38,674) 11,372
Increase/decrease in operating assets and liabilities (195,481) 2,350,712
{Increase) decrease of loans and accounts receivables from customers, net (1.673,357) (2,449,954)
(Increase) decrease of financial investments (3,015,754) (1.809,112)
Decrease (increase) due 1o resale agreements (assets) - -
Decrease {increase) of interbank loans [4.078) 232
(Increase) decrease of assets received or awarded in liew of payment 4,098 {1,743)
Increase (decrease) of debits in custamers checking accounts 3,245,540 1,298,978
Increase (decrease) of time deposits and other time lishilities (2,611,026) 124,958
Increase (decrease) of obligations with domestic banks (54,518) 271,620
Increase (decrease) of ather demand liabilities or time obligations 542,080 257,039
Increase (decrease) of abligations with fareign banks (1,095,961) 459,572
Increase (decrease) of obligations with Central Bank of Chile 4,958,260 -
Increase (decrease) of obligations under repurchase agreements 589,753 331,510
Increase (decrease) in other financial liabilities (42,040) 10958
Met increase of other assets and liabilities (1,848,374) 1,094.709
Redemption of letters of credit (6,188) (6,988)
Senior bond issuances 1,227,166 1,893,552
Redemption martgage bonds and payments of interest [B,312) {6,109
Redemption and maturity of senior bonds and payments of interest (2.571,384) 822,615)
Interest received 2,232,327 2,321,268
Interest paid (638.479) (904.417)
Dividends received from investments in other companies 12 508 130
Fees and commissions received 28 451,162 498,658
Feos and commissions paid 28 {183,884) {211,572)
Total cash flow provided by (used in) operating activities (828,205) 1,862.993

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated interim financial statements.
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Banco Santander-Chile and Subsidiaries
COMSOLIDATED STATEMEMNTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the periods ended

December 31,
2020 2019
MNOTE MChS MCh%

B - CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES:

Purchases of property, plant and equipment 14 (24, 2B6) (50.377)

Sales of property, plant and equipment T.566 6030

Purchases of imvestments in associates and other companies - (62,136

Sales of imvestments in associates and ather companies . 1,530

Purchase of intangible assets 13 (35,170} (32,8601

Tatal cash flow provided by (used in) investment activitias (61,893) {137,413)
€= CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

From shareholder’s financing activities 102,090 (397.070)

Increase in other obligations -

Subordinated bonds emisions 475,390

Redermption of subordinated bonds and payments of interest g .

Dividends paid (331,258} {355, 141)

Leage pasd (42,045} (41,282

From npn-mn’qulling interast finan:ing activities i o

Dividends. and/or withdrawals paid -

Tatal cash flow (used in) financing activities 102,090 {397,070)
[ = NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS DURING THE PERIOD (788,008) 1,328,510
E - EFFECTS OF FOREIGN EXCHAMNGE RATE FLUCTUATIONS (28, T06) 126,669
F= INITIAL BALANCE OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 5 3,711,334 2,256,155
FINAL BEALANCE OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 5 2,894, 620 3,711,334

As of December, 31,

Recoenciliation of provisions for the Consolidated Interim Statements

af Cash Flows for the periods 2020 2019
MChS MCh$
Provision for loan losses for cash flow purposes 585,999 503,181
Recovery of loans previously charged off (74,926) (B2, T14)
Prowision for loan losses - net n 511,073 420,447

Changes ether than eash

Foreign

Reconciliation of liabilities December, 21 Currency Fair Value December, 31
arlsing from financing activities 2019 Cash Flow Acquisition Movement UF Movement Changes 2020

MCh$ MCh$ MCh$ MChS MChS MCh$ MCh$
Subordinated Bonds 818,084 475,390 - - b 65 - 1,357,539
Paid dividends - {331,255) - _ : & [331,255)
Other chligations 158,494 142,045) 39,394 - 6,258) o 149,585
iota] Eab Nefax from fioncing 976578 102,090 39,394 : 57,807 : 1,175,869
activities

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these concolidated interim financial statements.
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Banco Santander-Chile and Subsidiaries
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AS OF DECEMEBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 01
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Banco Santander-Chile is a banking corporation (limited company) operating under the laws of the Republic of Chile, headquartered at Bandera
M=140, Santiago. The corporation provides a broad range of general banking services to its customers, ranging from individuals to major
corporations. Banco Santander-Chile and its subsidiaries {collectively referred to as the "Bank” or "Banco 5antander-Chile”) offers commercial and
consumer banking services, including (but not limited to) factoring, collection, leasing, securities and insurance brokering, mutual and investment
furd management, and investment banking.

Banco Santander Spain controls Banco Santander-Chile through its holdings in Teatinos Siglo XX Inversiones Ltda. and Santander Chile Holding 5.4,
which are controlled subsidiaries of Banca Santander Spain, As of December 31 2020, Banco Santander Spain owns or controls directly and indirectly
99,5% of Santander Chile Holding 5,4, and 100% of Teatinos Siglo XXI Inversiones Ltda, This makes Banco Santander Spain have control over 67,18%
of the Bank's shares.

a)  Basis of preparation

The present Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Compendium of Accounting Standards (CMC) and
instructions issued by the Cammission for the Financial Market (CMF) (former Superintendency of Banks and Financial Institutions “SBIF*), an entity
auditor that according to Law Mo, 21,000 that "Creates the Commission for the Financial Market”, provides in paragraph 6 of its article 5 that the
Commission for the Financial Market (CMF) may “set the rules for the preparation and presentation of the reports, balance sheets, statements of
situation and other financizl statements of the audited entities and determine the principles according to which they must keep their accounting and
in all that that is not treated by it if it does not contradict its instructions, must adhere to the generally accepted accounting criteria, which
correspond to the technical standards issued by the Colegio de Contadores de Chile A.G., coinciding with the Intemational Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS ar IFRS, for its acranym in English) agreed by the Intemational Accounting Standards Board (JASE) In case of discrepancies betwaen
the accounting principles and accounting criteria issued by the CMF (ex SBIF] in its Compendium of Accounting Standards and instructions, these will
prevail last.

For purposes of these consolidated financial statements the Bank uses certain terms and conventions. References to “USS", "US. dollars” and
“dollars” are to United States dollars, references to "EUR" are to European Economic Community Euro, references to "CMY are ta Chinese Yuan,
references to “IPY" are to Japanese yen, references to "CHF" are to Swiss frang, references to “AUD" references are to Australian dollar, references
“Ch$" are to Chilean pesos, and references to “UF” are to Unidades de Fomento. The UF is an inflation-indexed Chilean monetary unit with a value in
Chilean pesos that changes daily to reflect changes in the official Consumer Price Index ("CPI%) of the Instituto Macional de Estadisticas {the Chilean
Mational Institute of Statistics) for the previous month.

The Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contain additional information to support the figures submitted in the Consolidated Statement
of Financial Pasition, Consclidated Statement of Income, Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity and Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the period. These contain narrative descriptions and details of these statements in a clear,
relevant, reliable and comparable manner,

b) Basis of preparation for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Consolidated Financial Statements as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, include the financial statements of the entities aver which the Bank has
control (including structured entities); and includes the adjustments, reclassifications and eliminations needed to comply with the accounting and
valuation criteria established by IFRS. Control is achieved when the Bank:

I has power aver the investee (i.e, it has rights that grant the current capacity of managing the relevant activities of the investes);
1. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
Il has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Bank reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of contral listed above.

Consolidate Financial Statements December 2020 [ Banco Santander-Chile %




Banco Santander-Chile and Subsidiaries
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019
NOTE 01
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued

When the Bank has less than the majarity of the voting rights of an investee, but it will be considered to have the power aver the investee when the
voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities over the investee unilaterally. The Bank considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the Bank's voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, these include:

= the size of the Bank's holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders,

+ the potential voting rights held by the Bank, ather vote holders or other parties.

s the rights arising from other contractual agreemenits.

+  any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Bank has, or does not have, the current ability to direct the relevant activities at
the time that decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings,

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Bank obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Bank loses control over the subsidiany.
specifically, incame and expenszes of a subsidiary acquired or disposed during the year are included in the Consolidated Statements of Income and
Comprehensive Income from the date the Bank gains control until the date when the Bank ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Bank and to the nen-contralling interests.
Tatal comprehensive incame of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Bank and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-cantrolling interests having a deficit in certain circurnstances.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of the subsidiaries to ensure their accounting policies are consistent with the
Bank’s accounting policies. All balances and transactions between consolidated entities are eliminated.

Changes in the consolidated entities ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a loss of control over the subsidiaries are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying values of the Bank's equity and the non-controlling interests’ equity are adjusted to reflect the changes to their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non-cantrelling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recagnized directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Bank.

In addition, third parties’ shares in the Bank's consolidated equity are presented as "Mon-contralling interests” in the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity. Their share in the income for the year is presented as "Attributable to non-controlling interest” in the Consolidated Statement of

Income.

The following companies are considered entities controlled by the Bank and are therefore within the scope of consclidation:

i. Entities controlled by the Bank through participation in equity

Percent ownership share

As of December 31,
Place of 2020 2019
Incorporation Direct Indirect Total Direct Indirect Tatal
Name of the Subsidiary Main Activity and operation % k] % % % %
Lantander C il de he 4
Lir’n‘i:a'd:' ONEQONR dESEQUIGE ) irance brokerage Santiago, Chile 98,75 00 99.76 99.75 o.M 9975
S..an.ta nder Corredores de Bolsa Financial instruments Santiage, Chile 0.0 a1 51.00 0.0 0.1 51,00
Lirnitaca brokerage
Santander Asesorias Financieras L : 4
Limitada (1} Securities brokerage Santizge, Chile 99.03 - 59.03 99.03 - 303
. Purchase of credits and
SEIANCET i Nodipcadt iisuance of dett Santiaga, Chile 99,64 : 99,64 9954 . sap4
Securitizadora "
instruments
Klare Corredora de Sequras 54, (2)  Insurance brakerage Santiago, Chile 50,10 - 50,10 50,10 - 50010
srantanderConsumer, Fance Financial automaovite Santizga, Chile 51.00 - 51.00 51.00 ; 51.00
Limitada (3}
Sociedad operadara de Tarjetas de
Pago Santander Gatnet Chile 5.4 Card Oparator Santiago, Chile 9995 o 100,00 - -

14

The details of non-contralling interest in all the subsidiaries can be seen in Note 23 - Non-controlling interest.

{1} On December 1& 2019, Santander Agente de Valores Limitada changes its business name and the company’s object, to Santander Asesorias
Financieras Limitada, and offering financial advice,
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(2} On October 19, 2019 Klare Corredora de Seguros 5.4, was created as a digital insurance brokerage, and supporting banking business company
and thus subject to banking regulations. The Banks owns the 50,10% of the company's capital share,

(3} On Movember 15, 2019, Financial Market Commission (CMF) authonzed Banco Santander to acquire the 51% of the Santander Consumer Chile
54 capital share from SE Berge (49%) and Banco Santander 5.4 (2%). The sale was completed on November 27, 2019,

[4) On luly 6, 2020, the registration of a new subsidiary and business support company called "Sociedad operadora de Tarjetas de Pago Santander
Getnet Chile 5.A." was made,

ii. Entities controlled by the Bank through other considerations

The following companies have been consclidated based on the fact that the relevant activities of them are determined by the Bank (companies
complementary to the banking sector) and therefore the Bank exercises control:

- Santander Gestion de Recaudacion y Cobranza Limitada (collection services),
- Bansa Santander S.A. [management of repazsessed assets and leasing of praoperties).
- Multiplica SpA (Development card incentive programs).

iii. Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Bank has the ability to exercise significant influence, but not cantrol ar jaint control. This ability is usually
represented by a share equal to or higher than 20% of the voting rights of the Company and is accounted for using the equity method.

The following companies are considered "Associates” in which the Bank accounts for its participation using the equity method:

Percentage of awnership share

Place of As of December 31,
Incanparation 2020 2019
and
Assoclates Main activity operation % %
e 3
Centra de Compensazion Automatizada 5.4 i‘:\":::“‘ iid trirstiie sne Soepenmiod Santiaga, Chile 5333 3333
Le<igdad Interbancaria de Depdsito de Valores 54, Repositary of publically affered secunties Sartiage, Chile 2929 2929
Camara Compensacion de Alto Yalor S.4 Payments clearing Santizgo, Chile 1500 1500
sadmiristrador Finarciern del Transantiago 5.4 Administration of boarding passes 10 Fublic Santiago, Chil 2000 2000
Transpariation
Servicios de Infraestructura de Mercado OTC 5.4, Pl minstratioe:of Hie | nfrasticn.re for i Santiaga, Chile 1248 1248

finarcial market of derivative instruments

In the case of Camara Compensacion Alto Valor 54, Banco Santander-Chile has a representative in the Board of Directors, which is why
Management has concluded that it exercises significant influence over the same,

In the case of Servicios de Infraestructura de Mercada OTC 5.4, the Bank participates, through its executives, actively in the administration, which is
why Management has concluded that it exercises significant influence over it.

iv. Share or rights in other companies

Entitias over which the Bank has no control or significant influence are presented in this category. These holdings are shown at acquisition value
(hiztorical cost) less impairment, if any.

€] MNon-controlling interest
Mon-controlling interest represents the portion of gains or losses and net assets which the Bank does not own, either directly or indirectly. It is
presented separately in the Consolidated Statemnent of Income, and separately from shareholders” equity in the Consolidated Statement of Financial

Position.

In the case of antities contralled by the Bank through other considerations, income and equity are presented in full as non-controlling interest, since
the Bank controls them, but does not have any ownership.
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d)  Reporting segments

The Bank's operating segments comespond to the units whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the highest decision-making authority.
Two or more operating segments can be added inte one, only when the aggregation is consistent with the basic principle of Intemational Financial
Reporting Standard & "Operating Segments® (IFRS 8) and the segments have similar econamic characteristics and are similar in each one of the
fallowing aspects:

i, the nature of the products and services;

i, the nature of the production processes;

iii, the type or category of customers to whom your products and services are destined;

iv. the methods used to distribute your products or provide services; and

v. if applicable, the nature of the regulatary framework, for example, banking, insurance, or public services.

The Bank reports separately on each operating segment that exceeds any of the following quantitative thresholds:
i Its reported revenue, from both external customers and intersegment sales or transfers, is 10% or mare of the combined internal and
external revenue of all the operating segments,
i, the absolute amount of its reported profit or loss is equal to or greater than 10%: (i} the combined reported profit of all the eperating
segments that did not report a loss; (i) the comhbined reported loss of all the operating segments that reported a loss,

iii, itz assets represent 10% or more of the combined assets of all the operating segments.

Operating segments that do not meet any of the quantitative threshold may be treated as segments to be reported, in which case the information
must be disclosed separately if management believes it could be useful for the users of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Information about other business activities of the segments not separately reparted 15 combined and disclosed in the *Other segments” category.
According to the information presented, the Bank’s segments were selected based on an operating segment being a component of an entity that:
i. Engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses (including revenues and expenses from transactions with
ather components of the same entity);
ii. whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity's chief executive officer, who makes decisions about resgurces allocated to the
segment and assess its performance;
iii. ~for which discrete financial infarmation is available.
e} Functional and presentation currency
The Bank, in accordance with 1AS 21 "Effects of Variations in Exchange Rates of the Foreign Currency”, has defined as functional and presentation
currency the Chilean Peso, which is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Bank operates, it also obeys the currency that
influences the structure of costs and revenues, Therefore, all balances and transactions denominated in currencies other than the Chilean Peso are
coensidered as "Foreign currency”
f)  Foreign currency transactions
The Bank perfarms transactions in foreign currencies, mainly in US. dollar. Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and held by the
Bank are translated to Chilean pesos based on the representative market rate (discounted spot) an the manth end date, The rate used was

Ch$T12.47 per U541 for December, 2020 (Ch$747.37 per U531 for December, 2019).

The amount of net foreign exchange gains and losses include recognition of the effects that exchange rate variations have on assets and liabilities
dengminated in foreign currencies and the profits and losses on fareign exchange spot and forward transactions undertaken by the Bank,

g) Definitions and classification of financial instruments

i. Definitions

A financial instrument” is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of an entity, and a financial liability or equity instrument of anather entity.
An “equity instrument” is a legal transaction that evidences a residual interest on the assets of an entity deducting all of its liabilities.

Consolidate Financlal Statements December 2020 / Banco Santander-Chile 12




Banco Santander-Chile and Subsidiaries
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AS OF DECEMEER 31, 2020 AMD 2019

NOTE 01
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued

M financial derivative” is a financial instrument whose value changes in response to changes with regard to an observed market variable (such as an
interest rate, a foreign exchange rate, a financial instrument's price, or a market indeyx, including credit ratings), whose initial investment is very small
compared with other financial instruments having a similar response to changes in market factors, and which is generally settled at a future date.

“Hybrid financial instruments” are contracts that simultaneously include a non-derivative host contract together with a financial derivative, known as
an embedded dervative, which is not separately transferable and has the effect that some of the cash flows of the hybrid contract vary in a way
similar to a stand-alone derivative. As of December 31, 2020, Banco Santander-Chile did not keep implicit derivatives in its partfolio.

ii. Classification of financial assets for measurement purposes

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: financial assets trading investments at fair value through profit or loss (FWTPL),
‘held te maturity investments, “available for sale investments’ (AFS) financial assets and ‘loans and accounts receivable from customers'. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.

A conventional purchase or sale of financial assets is the purchase or sale of a financial asset that requires the delivery of the asset during a period
that is generally regulated ar arises from a corwention established in the market. A conventional purchase or sale of financial assets will be
recognized and written off, as appropriate, by applying the accounting of the date of contracting or that of the settlement date,

Financial assets are initially recognized at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets that aren't accounted for at fair value with changes in profit or
loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue.

Effective interest method

The effective interest methad is a methad of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allacating interest incame aver the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts {including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt
instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition,

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for loans and accounts receivables ather than those financial assets classified at fair value through
profit or lass,

Trading investments
Financial assets are classified as FYTPL when the financial asset is either held for trading or it is designated as fair value thraugh profit or lass.
A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

- Ithas been acquired with the purpose of selling it in the short term; or

- oninitial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Bank manages together and has a recent actual pattem
of short-term profit-taking; or

- itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

Afinancial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be designated as FYTPL upon initial recognition if:

- Such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

- the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated
on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Bank’s documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the grouping
is provided internally on that basis; or

- it forms part of 2 contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and 1AS 33 permits the entire combined contract to be designated
as FVTPL.

Financial assets FYTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or lasses arising on remeasurement recagnised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss

recogrised incorparates any dividend ar interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the ‘net incame (expenze) from financial aperations’
line itern.
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Held to maturity investments

Held-te-maturity investmaents are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity dates that the Bank has the
positive intent and ability to hold to maturity, Subsequent to initial recegnition, held-to-maturity investments are measured at amaortised cost using
the effective interest method less impairment.

Available for sale investments

AFS investments are non-derivatives that are either designated as AFS or are not classified as (a) loans and accounts receivable from customers, (b)
held-ta-maturity investments or (c) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (trading investrments)

Financial instruments held by the Bank that are traded in an active market are classified as AFS and are stated at fair value at the end of each
reparting period. The Bank also has investments in financial instruments that are not traded in an active market but that are also classified as AFS
investments and stated at fair value at the end of each reporting period (because the directors consider that fair value can be reliably measured).
Changes in the carrying amaunt of AFS manetary financial assets relating to changes in foreign currency rates, interest income caloulated using the
effective interest methad and dividends on AFS equity investments are recogmised in profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying amount of
available for sale investments are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of "Valuation Adjustment”, When
the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss,

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the Bank's right to receive the dividends is established.

The fair value of AFS monetary financial assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that fareign currency and translated as the

described in f) above. The foreign exchange gains and losses that are recagnised in profit or loss are determined based on the amortised cost of the

monetary asset.

Loans and accounts receivables from customers

Loans and accounts receivable from customers are non-derivative financial assets with fived or determinable payments that are not quoted in an

active market. Loans and accounts receivables from customers (including loans and accounts receivable from customers and interbank loans) are

measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment,

Interast income is recagnised by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables where discounting effects are immaterial.

iii.  Classification of financial assets for presentation purposes

For presentation purposes, the financial assets are classified by their nature into the following line items in the Consolidated Financial Statements:

« Cash and deposits in banks: this line includes cash balances, checking accounts and on-demand deposits with the Central Bank of Chile and
other domestic and foreign financial institutions. Amounts invested as overnight deposits are included in this item and in the correspending

items, If a special item for these operations is not mentioned, they will be included along with the accounts being reported.

+  Trading investrments: this item includes financial instruments held-for-trading and investments in mutual funds which most be adjusted to their
fair value,

+ Investments under resale agreements: This iter presents the balances corresponding to the transactions for the purchase of instruments with an
agreement and the securities |lpans. In accordance with current regulations, the Bank does not register as its own portfolio those papers
purchased with retro-purchase agreements,

+ Financial derivative contracts: financial derivative contracts with positive fair values are presented in this item. It includes both independent
contracts as well as derivatives that should and can be separated from a host contract, whether they are for trading or accounted for as
derivatives held for hedging, as shown in Note 8.

« Trading derivatives: includes the fair value of derivatives which do not gualify for hedge accounting, including embedded dervatives
separated fram hybnd financial instruments,
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« Hedging derivatives: includes the fair value of derivatives designated as being in a hedging relationship, including the embedded derivatives
separated from the hybrid financial instruments,

+ Interbank leans: this item includes the balances of transactions with domestic and foreign banks, including the Central Bank of Chile, other than
thase reflected in certain other financial asset classifications listed above.

#  Loans and accounts receivables from customers: these loans are nan-derivative financial assets for which fixed or determined amounts are
charged, that are nat listed on an active market and which the Bank does not intend to sell immediately or in the short term, When the Bank is
the lessor in a lease, and it substantially transfers the risks and rewards incidental to the leased asset, the transaction is presented in loans and
accounts receivable from customers while the leased asset is removed from the Bank's financial statements.

=  Investment instruments: are classified inte two categories: held-to-maturity investments, and available-for-sale investments, The held-to-
maturity investrment classification includes only those instruments for which the Bank has the ability and intent to hold to maturity. The
remaining investrments are treated as available for sale.

iw. Classification of financial liabilities for measurement purposes

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities FWTPL or other financial liabilities,

Financial liabilities FYTPL

As of December 31, 2020 and, 2019, the bank does not poessess any financial liabilities FYTPL.

Other financial liabilities

Cther financial liabilities (including interbank borrowings, issued debt instruments and other payables) are initially recorded at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

v. Classification of financial liabilities for presentation purposes

Financial liabilities are classified by their nature into the fellowing items in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Positicn:

+  Deposits and other an-demand liabilities: this includes all en-demand abligations except for term savings accounts, which are not considered
on-demand instruments in view of their special characteristics. Obligations whase payment may be required during the period are deemed to be

on-demand obligations. Operations which become callable the day after the closing date are not treated as on-demand obligations.

+ Cash items in process of collection; this item includes balances from asset purchase operations that are not settled the same day, and sale of
currencies not yet delivered.

« Obligations under repurchase agreements: this includes the balances of sales of financial instruments under securities repurchase and loan
agreements. The Bank does not record as own portfolio instruments acquired under repurchase agreements,

+  Time deposits and other time liabilities: this shows the balances of deposit transactions in which a term at the end of which they become callable
has been stipulated.

+ Financial derivative contracts: this includes financial derivative contracts with negative fair values (ie. a ability of the Bank), whether they are for
trading or for hedge accounting, as set forth in Note 8,

= Trading derivatives: includes the fair value of derivatives which do not gualify for hedge accounting, including embedded derivatives
separated from hybrid financial instruments,

+  Hedging derivatives: includes the fair value of derivatives designated as being in a hedging relationship, including the embedded derivatives
separated fram the hybrid financial instrurmnents.

» Obligations with banks: Includes abligations with other banks in the country, with foreign banks or with the Central Bank of Chile and which
were not classified in any previous definition.
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« lssued debt instruments: there are three types of instruments issued by the Bank: Obligations under letters of credit, Subordinated bonds and
Senigor bonds placed in the local and foreign market.

«  Other financial liabilities: this itemn includes credit obligations to persons other than domestic banks, foreign banks, or the Central Bank of Chile,
for financing purpases or operations in the narmal course of business.

vi. Modified of financial assets

When the contractual modification of the cash flows has its orgin in financial difficulties of the counterparty and said flows have been adapted so
that it can comply with its payment obligations, this modification will not be considered as substantial and therefore will nat imply the cancellation
of the current financial instrument.

On the other hand, when the modification of the contractual flows criginate for eminently commercial reasons, said modification will be considered
as substantial and therefore will imply the cancellation of the original financial instrument and the recognition of a new one. Any difference that is
generated betwesn the book value of the derecognized financial instrument and the fair value of the new financial instrument will be recagnized in
the Consalidated Statement of Incame.

h) Valuation of financial instruments and recognition of fair value changes

Generally, financial assets and liahilities are initially recognized at fair value, which, in the absence of evidence against it, is deemed to be the
transaction price. Financial instruments, other than those measured at fair value through profit or loss, are initially recognized at fair value plus
transaction costs, Subsequently, and at the end of each reporting period, financial instruments are measured with the following criteria:

i.  Valuation of financial instruments

Financial assets are measured according to their fair value, gross of any transaction costs that may be incurred in the course of a sale, except for
credit investments and held to matunity investments.

Mccording to IFRS 13 Fair Violue Measurement, “fair value® is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liahility
in an orderly transaction in the principal {or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price)
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. When measuring fair value an entity shall take
into account the charactenistics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when phcing the asset or
liability at the measurement date.

The fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: (a) in the principal market for the
asset or liability, or (b) in the absence of a principal market, the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. Even when there is no cbservable
market to provide pricing infarmation in connection with the sale of an asset or the transfer of a liability at the measurement date, the fair value
measurement shall assume that the transaction takes place, considered from the perspective of a potential market participant who intends to
maximize value associated with the asset or liability.

When using valuation technigues, the Bank shall maximize the use of relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs as
available. IF an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, the price within the bid-ask spread that is most
representative of fair value in the circumstances shall be used to measure fair value regardless of where the input is categorized within the fair value
hierarchy {l.e. Level 1, 2 or 3).

Although the use of average prices is allowed as a practical resource to determine the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Bank makes a
adjustment (FYa or fair value adjustment) when there is a gap hetween the purchase and sale price (close out cost),

IFRS 13 establishes a fair value hierarchy that categorizes into three levels the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value, The fair
value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 inputs) and the
lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 inputs).

Every dervative is recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Pasition at fair value as previously described. This value 15 compared ta the
valuation at the trade date. If the fair value 15 subsequently measured positive, this 1s recorded as an asset, if the fair value is subsequently measured
negative, this is recorded as a liability. The fair value on the trade date is deemed, in the absence of evidence to the contrary, to be the transaction
price. The changes in the fair value of derivatives from the trade date are recorded in "Met income (expense] from financial operations” in the
Consolidated Statement of Income,
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specifically, the fair value of financial derivatives included in the portfolios of financial assets or liabilities held for trading is deemed to be their daily
quoted price. If, for exceptional reasons, the quoted price cannot be determined on a given date, the fair value is determined using similar methods
1o thase used to measure over the counter (OTC) derivatives. The fair value of OTC derivatives is the sum of the future cash flows resulting from the
instrument, discounted to present value at the date of valuation {"present value” or “theoretical close”) using valuation technigues commanly used
by the financial markets: "net present value” (NPY) and option pricing models, amang other methods. Also, within the fair value of derivatives are
included Credit Valuation Adjustment (CVA) and Debit Valuation Adjustment (DVA), all with the objective that the fair value of each instrument
includes the credit risk of its counterparty and Bank's own nisk. Counterparty Credit Risk (CVA) is a valuation adjustment to derivatives contracted in
non-arganized markets as a result of exposure to counterparty credit risk. The CVA is calculated considering the potential exposure to each
counterparty in future periods. Own-credit risk (DVA) is a valuation adjustment similar to the CWA, but generated by the Bank's credit risk assumed
by our counterparties,

“Loans and accounts receivable from customers” and Held-to-maturity instrument portfolio are measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. Amortized cost is the acquisition cost of a financial asset or lability, plus or minus, as appropriate, prepayments of principal and the
cumulative amortization {recerded in the consolidated income statement) of the difference between the initial cost and the maturity amount as
calculated under the effective interest method. For financial assets, amortized cost also includes any reductions far impairment or uncollectibility. For
loans and accounts receivable designated as hedged items in fair value hedges, the changes in their fair value related to the risk or risks being
hedged are recorded in "Met income {expense) from financial operations”.

The "effective interest rate” is the discount rate that exactly matches the initial amount of a financial instrument to all its estimated cash flows over
its remaining life. For fixed-rate financial instruments, the effective interest rate incorporates the contractual interest rate established on the
acquisition date. Where applicable, the fees and transaction costs that are a part of the financial return are included. For floating-rate financial
instruments, the effective interest rate matches the current rate of return until the date of the next review of interest rates,

The amounts at which the financial assets are recorded represent the Bank’s maximum exposure to credit risk as at the reporting date. The Bank has
also received collateral and other credit enhancements to mitigate its exposure to credit risk, which consist mainly of montoage guarantees, equity
instruments and personal securities, assets under leasing agreements, assets acquired under repurchase agreements, securities loans and derivatives.

Capital instruments whose fair value cannot be determined sufficiently objectively and financial derivatives that have these instruments as underlying
assets and are settled by delivery thereof are maintained at their acquisition cost, carrected, where appropriate, by losses for deterioration they have
experienced.

ii. Valuation techniques

Financial instruments at fair value, determined on the basis of price quotations in active markets, include government debt securities, private sector
debt securities, equity shares, shart positions, and fixed-income securities issued.

In cases where price quotations cannot be observed in available markets, the Bank's management determines a best estimate of the price that the
market would set using its own internal models. In most cases, these models use data based on observable market parameters as significant inputs
however for some valuations of financial instruments, significant inputs are unobservable in the market. To determine a value for those instruments,
varigus technigues are employed to make these estimates, including the extrapolation of observable market data,

The most reliable evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is usually the transaction price, however due to lack of
availability of market information, the value of the instrument may be derived from other market transactions perfarmed with the same or similar
instrurnents or may be measured by using a valuation technique in which the varables used include only observable market data, mainly interest
rates.

The main techniques used as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, by the Bank's internal models to determine the fair value of the financial instruments
are as follows:

i. In the valuation of financial instruments permitting static hedging (mainly forwards and swaps), the present value methaed is used. Estimated
future cash flows are discounted using the interest rate curves of the related currencies. The interest rate curves are generally observable
market data.

i, In the valuation of financial instruments requiring dynamic hedging (mainly structured options and other structured instruments), the Black-

Scholes medel is normally used. Where appropriate, observable market inputs are used to obtain factors such as the bid-offer spread,
exchange rates, volatility, correlation indexes and market liquidity.
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ii. In the waluation of certain financial instruments exposed to interest rate risk, such as interest rate futures, caps and floors, the present value
method (futures) and the Black-Scholes model (plain vanilla options) are used. The main inputs used in these models are observable market
data, including the related interest rate curves, volatilities, correlations and exchange rates.

The fair value of the financial instruments calculated by the aforementioned internal madels considers contractual terms and observable market
data, which include interest rates, credit risk, exchange rates, quated market price of shares and market rates of raw materials, volatility, prepayments
and liquidity. The Bank's management considers that its valuation models are not significantly subjective, since these methodalogies can be adjusted
and evaluated, as appropriate, through the internal calculation of fair value and the subsequent camparison with the related actively traded price,

ili. Hedging transactions and macrohedge

The Bank uses financial derivatives for the following purposes:

i Tosell to customerns who request these instruments in the management of their market and credit risks;

ii. to use these derivatives in the management of the risks of the Bank entities' awn positions and assets and labilities (“hedging derivatives”),
and

iiil. to obtain profits from changes in the price of these derivatives (trading derivatives).

Al financial derivatives that are not held for hedging purposes are accounted for as trading dervatives.
A derivative qualifies for hedge accounting if all the following conditions are met:
1. The derivative hedges one of the following three types of exposure:

a. Changes in the value of assets and liabilities due to fluctuations, among others, in inflation (UF), the interest rate and/or exchange rate to
which the pasition or balance to be hedged is subject (“fair value hedge™);

b. Changes in the estimated cash flows arising from financial assets and liabilities, commitments and highly probable forecasted transactions
("cash flow hedge");

c. The met investment in a foreign operation ("hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation”).

2. Itis effective in offsetting exposure inherent in the hedged item or position througheout the expected term of the hedge, which means that

a. At the date of arrangement the hedge is expected, under normal conditions, ta be highly effective ("prospective effectiveness™).

b. There is sufficient evidence that the hedge was actually effective during the life of the hedged item or position (“retrospective
effectiveness”).

3. There must be adequate documentation evidencing the specific designation of the financial derivative to hedge certain balances or transactions
and how this effective hedge was expected to be achievad and measured, provided that this is consistent with the Bank’s management of own
risks,

The changes in the value of financial instruments qualifying for hedge accounting are recorded as follows:

a. Faor fair value hedges, the gainz or losses ansing an both hedging instruments and the hedged items (attributable to the type of nsk being
hedged) are included as “Met income (expense) from financial operations” in the Consolidated Statement of Income.

b. For fair value hedges of interest rate risk on 2 portfolio of financial instruments, gains or losses that arise in measuring hedging instruments
and other gains or losses due to changes in fair value of the underlying hedged item (attributable to the hedged risk) are recorded in the
Consolidated Financial Statement of Income under “Met income (expense) from financial operations”,

¢ [For cash flow hedges, the change in fair value of the hedging instrument is included as "Cash flow hedge” in “Other comprehensive income”.

d. The differences in valuation of the hedging instrument corresponding to the ineffective portion of the cash flow hedging transactions are
recarded directly in the Consolidated Statement of Income under "Met income (expense) from financial operations®.
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If a derivative designated as a hedging instrument no longer meets the requirements described above due to expiration, ineffectiveness or for any
other reason, hedge accounting treatment is discontinued, When “fair value hedging” is discontinued, the fair value adjustments to the carrying
amaunt of the hedged item arising from the hedged risk are amortized to gain or loss from that date, when applicable.

‘When cash flow hedges are discontinued any cumulative gain or loss of the hedging instrument recognized under "Other comprehensive income”
(from the period when the hedge was effective) remains recorded in equity until the hedged transaction accurs, at which time it is recarded in the
Consalidated Statement of Incame, unless the transaction 15 no langer expected to occur, in which caze any cumulative gain or loss 15 recorded
immediately in the Consolidated Statement of Income,

iv. Embedded Derivatives in hybrid financial instruments

Embedded Derivatives in other financial instruments or in other host contracts are accounted for separately as derivatives if 1) their risks and
characteristics are not closely related to the host contracts, 2) a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet
the definition of a derivative, and 3) provided that the host contracts are not classified as "Trading investments” or  as other financial assets
(liakilities) at fair value through profit or loss.

v. Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial asset and liability balances are offset, i.e, reported in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position at their net amount, only if there is
a legally enfarceable right to offset the recorded amounts and the Bank intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle
the liakility simultaneously. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, there is not offsetting of financial asset and liability balances.

vi. Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

The accounting treatment of transfers of financial assets is determined by the extent and the manner in which the risks and rewards associated with

the transferred assets are transferred to third parties:

i.  If the Bank transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to third parties, as in the case of unconditional sales of financial assets,
sales under repurchase agreements at fair value at the date of repurchase, sales of financial assets with a purchaszed call option or written put
aption deeply out of the money, utilization of assets in which the transferor does not retain subordinated debt nor grants any credit
enhancement to the new holders, and other similar cases, the transferred financial asset iz derecognized from the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Positicn and any rights or obligations retained or created in the transfer are simultanecusly recorded.

ii. If the Bank retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership associated with the transferred financial asset, as in the case of sales of
financial azsets under repurchase agreements at a fixed price or at the sale price plus interest, secunties lending agreements under which the
borrower undertakes to return the same or similar assets, and other similar cases, the transferred financial asset is not derecognized from the
Consolidated Financial Statement of Financial Position and continues to be measured by the same criteria as those used befare the transfer,
However, the following items are recorded:

- An associated financial lizbility for an amaount egual to the consideration received; this liability is subsequently measured at amortized cost,
- Both the income from the transferred (but not removed) financial asset as well as any expenses incurred due to the new financial liability.

iii. If the Bank neither transfers nor substantially retains all the risks and rewards of ownership associated with the transferred financial asset—as in
the case of sales of financial aszets with a purchased call option or written put aption that is not deeply in ar out of the maney, securitization of
assets in which the transferor retains a subordinated debt or other type of credit enhancement for a portion of the transferred asset, and ather
similar cases, the following distinction is made;

a. If the transferor does not retain contral of the transferred financial asset: the asset is derecagnized fraom the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position and any rights or abligations retained or created in the transfer are recognized.

b If the transferor retains control of the transferred financial asset: it continues to be recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Pasition for an amount equal to its exposure to changes in value and a financial liability associated with the transferred financial asset is
recarded. The net carrying amount of the transferred asset and the associated liability is the amortized cost of the rights and obligations
retained, if the transferred asset is measured at amortized cost, or the fair value of the rights and abligations retained, if the transferred asset
15 measured at fair value.
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Mccordingly, financial assets are only derecognized from the Conzolidated Statement of Financial Position when the rights over the cash flows they
generate have terminated or when all the inherent risks and rewards of ownership have been substantially transferred to third parties, Similarly,
financial liabilities are only derecegnized from the Consolidated Financial Statement Finandcial Positicn when the obligations specified in the contract
are discharged or cancelled or the contract has matured,

iy Recognizing income and expenses

The most significant criteria used by the Bank to recagnize its revenues and expenses are summarized as follows:
i. Interest revenue, interest expense, and similar items

Interest revenue, expense and similar items are recorded on an accrual basis using the effective interest method.

However, when a given operation or transaction is past due by 90 days ar more, anginated from a refinancing or renegotiation, or when the Bank
believes that the debtor poses a high risk of default, the interest and adjustments pertaining to these transactions are not recarded directly in the
Consalidated Staternent of Income unless they have been actually received.

This interest and adjustments are generally referred to as “suspended” and are recorded as memorandum accounts in they are reported as part of
the complementary information thereto and as memerandum accounts. This interest is recagnized as income, when collected,

The resumption of interest income recognition of previously impaired loans only occurs when such loans become current (ie. payments were
received such that the loans are contractually past-due for less than 90 days) or they are no lenger Classified under the C3, C4, C5, or Cb risk
categones (for loans individually evaluated for impairment).

ii. Commissions, fees, and similar items

Fee and commission income and expenses are recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Income using criteria stablished in IFRS 15 “Revenue
from contracts with customers”,

Under IFRS 15, the Bank recognize revenue when (or as) satisfied a performance obligations by transferring 2 senvice {ie an asset) to a customer,
under this definition an asset is transferred when (or as) the customer obtains control of that asset. The Bank considers the termsz of the contract and
its customary business practices to determine the transaction price. The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which an entity expects
ta be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

The Bank transfers cantrol of a good or service over time and, therefare, satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, and/or
the Bank satisfies the performance abligation at a point in time.

The main income arising from commissiens, fees and similar items correspond to:

- Fees and commissions for lines of credits and overdraftsincludes accrued fees related to granting lines of credit and overdrafts in checking
accounts.

- Fees and commissions for gquarantees and letters of creditincludes accrued fees in the period relating to granting of guarantee payment for
current and contingent third party obligations.

- Fees and commissions for card servicestincludes accrued and earned commissians in the periad related to use of credit cards, debit cards and
other cards,

- Fees and commissions for management of accountsincludes accrued commissions for the maintenance of checking, savings and other
accounts,

- Fees and commissions for collections and paymentsincludes income arising from collections and payments services provided by the Bank,

- Fees and commissions for intermediation and management of securitiesincludes income from brokerage, placements, administration and
securitie's custody services.

- Fees and commissions for insurance brokerage fees: includes income arising for insurances distribution.

- Other fees and commissionsincludes income arising from currency changes, financial advisory, cashier check issuance, placerment of financial
products and onlilne banking services,
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The main expense arising from commissions, fees and similar items correspond to:

- Compensation for card operationiincludes commission expenses for credit and debit card cperations related to income commissions card
SErVICes.

- Fees and commissions for securities transactionsincludes commissions expense for deposits, securities custody service and  securitie’s
brokerage.

- Other fees and commissionsincludes mainly expenses generayed from online services.

The Bank has incorporated disaggregated revenue disclosure and repertable segment relationship in MNote 28,

Additionaly, the Bank maintains certain loyalyy programme associated to its credit cards services, for which has deferred a percentage of the
consideration received in the statement of financial position o comply with its related performance obligatien according IFRS 15, or has liguidated
on a manthly basis as far they arise.

iii. Mon-financial income and expenses

They are recognized in accordance with the cnteria established in IFRS 15, identifying the performance obligation and when they are satisfied
(accrued),

iv. Commissions in the formalization of loans

The financial commissions that arise in the formalization of loans, mainly the opening or study and information commissions, are periodized and
recorded in the Statement of the Consolidated Income throughaut the life of the loan.

j) Impairment of Mon-financial assets:

The Bank’s non-financial assets, excluding investment properties, are reviewed at the reporting date to determine whether they show signs of
impairment {i.e, its carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount), If any such evidence exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated, in
order to determing the extent of the impairment |oss.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs 1o sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pra-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of meney and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recaverable amount of an asset i= estimated to be less than its carrying amaount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amaunt. An impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or lass.

In connection with other assets, impairment losses recorded in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date to determing whether the loss has
decreased and should be reversed. The increased carrying amount of an asset other than goodwill attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss
shall not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of amortization or depreciation) had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset in prior years. Losses for goodwill impairment recognized through capital gains are not reversad,

k) Property, plant, and equipment

This category includes the amaount of buildings, land, furniture, vehicles, computer hardware and other ficed assets owned by the consolidated
entities or acquired under finance leases. Assets are classified according to their use as follows:

i Property, plant and equipment for own use

Property, plant and equipment for own use includes but is not limited to tangible assets received by the consolidated entities in full or partial
satisfaction of financial assets representing accounts receivable from third parties which are intended to be held for continuing own use and
tangible assets acquired under finance leases. These assets are presented at acquisition cost less the related accumulated depreciation and, if

applicable, any impairment lasses resulting from camparing the net value of each item to the respective recoverable amaunt.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method over the acquisition cost of assets less their residual value, assuming that the land on which
buildings and other structures stand has an indefinite life and, therefore, is not sulbject to depreciation,
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The Bank applies the following useful lives for the tangible assets that comprise its assets;

Useful life
bt {in menths)
Land
Paintings and warks of art
Carpets and curtains E()
Comginers and hardware 36
Wehicles L]
IT systems and software 36
ATMs Bl
Other rachines and equipment 60
Office furniture &0
Telephane and communication systems (1]
Secunity systems &0
Rights enver 1elephone lires 60
Air conditioning systems B4
Other irstallations 120
Buildings 1,200

The consolidated entities assess at each reporting period whether there is any indicator that the camying amount of any tangible asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. If this is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount and future depreciation charges are
adjusted in accordance with the revised carrying amount and to the new remaining useful life.

The estimated useful lives of the items of property, plant and equipment held for own use are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to detect
significant changes. If changes are detected, the useful lives of the assets are adjusted by correcting the depreciation charge to be recarded in the
Consolidated Statement of Income in future years on the basis of the new useful lives.

Maintenance expenses relating to tangible assets held for own use are recorded as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

ii. Assets leased out under operating leases

The criteria used to record the acguisition cost of assets leased out under operating leases, to calculate their depreciation and their respective
estimated useful lives, and to record their impairment losses, are the same as those for property, plant and equipment held for own use.

I) Leases
At inception of a contract the Bank assesses whether a contract contains a lease. A contract contains a lease if the contracts conveys the right to
contral the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to contral

the use of an identified asset, the Bank assesses whether:

# the contract involves the use of an identified asset - this may be specified explicitly or implicitly and should be physically distinct. If the supplier
has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified;

= the Bank has the right to abtain substantially all of the econamic benefits from use of the asset throughout the period of use, and
# the Bank has the right to direct the use of the asset — this is decision-making purpase for which asset is use,
a. As a Lessee

The Bank recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date in accordance within IFRS 16 “Leases™. The main
contracts that the Bank has are offices and branches related, which are necessary ta carry out its activities.

At the beginning, the right-of-use asset is equal to the lease liability and is calculated as the present value of the lease payments discounted using
the incremental interest rate at the commencement date, cansidering the lease term of each contract. The average incremental interest rate is 1.45%.
After initial recognition, the rnight-of-use is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method in accordance with the lease term of the
contract, and the lease liability is amortised in accordance with the effective interest method. Financial interest is accounted as interest expense, and
depreciation as depreciation expense in each period,
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The term of the lease comprises non-cancelable periods established within each contract, while for lease contracts with an indefinite useful life, the
Bank has determined to assign a useful life equal to the longer non-cancelable period of its lease agreements. The Bank has elected not 1o recognise
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Bank
recognises lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Any modification in the terms or
lease should be treated as a new measurement.

At initial measurement, the Bank measures the right-of-use asset at cost. The rent of these leases are accarding in UF, and payable in Chilean pesos.
According to the provisions of Circular Mo, 3,648 of the CMF (ex 3BIF), the manthly variation in UF that affects the contracts established in said
monetary unit should be treated as a new measurement, and therefore, readjustments should be recognized as a modification to the obligation and
in parallel the amount of the asset must be adjusted for the right to use leased assets,

The Bank has not entered into to lease agreements with guarantee clauses for residual value or variable lease payments.

b. As a lessor

When the Bank acts as a lessor, it determines at the beginning if it correspands ta a financial or operating lease. To do this, it evaluates whether it
has substantially transferred all the risks and benefits of the asset. In the affirmative case, it corresponds to a financial lease, othenwise it is a financial
lease. The Bank recagnizes the lease income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

€. Third party financing

The Bank recagnises the loans with third parties within "Loans and accounts receivable from customers”™ in the Consolidated Statements of Financial
Position, the sum of the present value of the lease payments receivable from the lessee, including the exercise price of the lessee’s purchase aption

at the end of the lease term, when at the inception of the lease it is reasonably certain that the lessee will exercise the option.

The finance income and expenses ansing from these contracts are recarded under “Interest income” and “Interest expense” respectively, in
Consolidated Statements of Income to achieve constant return rate over the lease term.

m) Factoring transactions
Factored receivables are valued at the amount disbursed by the Bank in exchange of invoices or other commercial instruments representing the
credit which the transferor assigns to the Bank. The price difference between the amounts disbursed and the actual face value of the credits is

recorded as interest income in the Consalidated Statement of Income using the effective interest method aver the financing period.

When the assignment of these instruments invalves no liability on the part of the assignee, the Bank assumes the nsks of insolvency of the parties
responsible for payment.

n) Intangible assets
Intangible assets are identified as non-monetary assets (separately identifiable from other assets) without physical substance which arise as a result
of legal or contractual rights. The Bank recognizes an intangible asset, whether purchased or self-created {at cost), when the cost of the asset can be

measured reliably and it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Bank.

Intangible aszets are recorded intially at acquisition ar production cost and are subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated amartization
and any accumulated impairment losses.

Internally developed computer software is recorded as an intangible asset if, among other requirements (basically the Bank's ability to use or sell it),
it can be identified and its ability to generate future economic benefits can be demonstrated,

Intangible assets are amertized linearly based on the estimated useful life, which has been defined by default in 36 months, and can be maodified to
the extent that it is demonstrated that the Bank will benefit from the use of the intangible for a different period mentioned above.

Expenditure an research activities is recorded as an expense in the year in which it is incurred and cannot be subsequently capitalized.
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o) Cash and cash equivalents

The indirect methed is used to prepare the cash flow statement, starting with the Bank’s consalidated pre-tax income and incorparating nen-cash
transactions, as well as income and expenses associated with cash flows, which are classified as investing or financing activities,

The cash flow statement was prepared considering the fallowing definitions:

i, Cash flows: Inflows and outflows of cash and cash equivalents, such as deposits with the Central Bank of Chile, deposits in domestic banks, and
depaosits in foreign banks,

ii. Operating activities: Principal revenue-producing activities performed by banks and other activities that cannot be classified as investing or
financing activities.

i Investing activities: The acquisition and disposal of long-term assets and other investments not included in cash and cash equivalents.

v, Financing Activities: Activities that result in changes in the size and composition of equity and liabilities that are nat operating or investing
activities.

p) Allowances for loan losses

The Bank continuously evaluates the entire lcan portfolio and contingent loans, as it is established by the CMF, to timely provide the necessary and
sufficient provisions to cover expected |osses associated with the characteristics of the debtors and their loans, which detarmine payrment behavior
and recovery.

The Bank has established provisions for probable losses in credits and accounts receivable from customers in accordance with the instructions
issued by the CMF (ex SBIF) and the credit nsk rating and evaluation maodel approved by the Board of Directors, including the modifications
introduced by Circulars N® 3,573 and M® 3,584 and their subsequent amendments which establish the standard method for residential mortgage
loans and Circulars N° 3,638 and N” 3,647 related to commercial loans for group portfolio, complement and specify instructions an provisions and
credits that make up the impaired portfolio,

The Bank uses the following models established by the CMF, to evaluate its loan portfolio and credit risk:

= Individual assessment - where the Bank assesses a debtor as individually significant when their laans are significant, or when the debtor cannaot
be classified within a group of financial assets with similar credit risk charactenstics, due to its size, complexity or level of exposure.

- Group assessment - a group assessment is relevant for analyzing a large number of transactions with small individual balances due from
individuzls or small companies. The Bank groups debtors with similar credit risk characteristics giving to each group a default probability and
recovery rate based on a historical analysis. The Bank has implemented standard models for mortgage loans (Circular M*3,573 and M°3,534),
and commercial loan (Circular N 3,638 and N°3,647) and internal models for consumer loans,

For the company Santander Consumer Finance Limitada the determination of the provision for credit risk is made using internal models under IFRS 9
ta determine the expected losses for this default. These internal models are reviewed monthly and the modifications te said madels are approved by
the Board of Directors on a gquarterly basis, after review and approval by the Company's General Management. These models collectively evaluate
the recevables, for which said loans are grauped bazed on similar credit nsk charactenstics, which indicate the debtor's ability to pay on the entire
debt, principal and interest, in accordance with the terms of the contract. In addition, this allows evaluating a large number of transactions with low
individual amounts, regardless of whether they belang to individuals or small companies, Therefore, debtors and loans with similar characteristics
are grouped together and each group has a risk level assigned to it. During the first half of 2020, Santander Consumer Finance Limitada carried out a
calibration of its credit risk provision models, with the aim of improving the prediction parameters of customer behavior and maintaining the
statistical monitering standards, which resulted in a higher provision with an effect on results of Ch % 1,900 million,

I.  Allowances for individual assessment

An individual assessment of cammercial debtors is necessary according to the CMF, in the case of companies which, due to their size, complexity or
level of exposure, must be known and analyzed in detail.

Consolidate Financial Statements December 2020 / Banco Santander-Chile 24




Banco Santander-Chile and Subsidiaries
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AS OF DECEMEER 31, 2020 AMD 2019

NOTE 01
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued

The analysis of the debtor is primarily focused on their credit quality and their risk category classification of the debtor and of their respective
contingent loans and loans These are assigned to one of the following portfolio categories: MNormal, Substandard and Impaired. The risk factors
considered are: industry or economic sector, awners or managers, financial situation and payment ability, and payment behavior.

The portfolio categories and their definitions are as follows:

i.  Mormal Portfolio includes debtars with a payment ability that allows them to meet their abligations and commitments. Evaluations of the current
ecanomic and financial environment do not indicate that this will change, The classifications assigned to this portfolie are categories fram Al to
Ab.

ii. Substandard Portfalio includes debtors with financial difficulties or a significant deterioration of their payment ability. There is reasanable doubt
conceming the future reimbursement of the capital and interest within the contractual terms, with limited ability 1o meet short-term financial
obligations. The classifications assigned to this pertfclio are categories from B1 1o B4,

iii. Impaired Portfalio includes debtors and their loans where repayment is cansidered remote, with a reduced or na likelihaod of repayment. This
portfolia includes debtors wha have stapped paying their loans or that indicate that they will stop paying, as well as those who require farced
debt restructuration, reducing the cbligation or delaying the term of the capital or interest, and any other debtor who is aver %0 days overdue in
his payment of interest or capital. The classifications assigned to this portfolio are categories from C1 to C6.

Mormal and Substandard Compliance Portfolio

As part of individual assessment, the Bank classifies debtors into the following categaories, assigning them a probability of non-perfarmance (PMP)
and severity (SEV), which result in the expected loss percentages:

- Probability of
Partialic Debtor's Categary Mon-Perfarmance [%] Sevarity (%) Expacted Loss %)
Al Dl a0n 003600
A nin B3 noS2sn
A3 0.25 BYS 021875
|

HEMmEL Form el Ad 200 875 175000
AL 475 S0.0 427500
L 10,00 0.0 2.00000
1 1500 H25 13RTE00
B2 22.00 925 2033000

Substandard Portiolia g3 33,00 p— 3217500
B2 4500 415 4187500

The Bank first determines all credit exposures, which includes the accounting balances of loans and accounts receivable from customers plus
contingent loans, less any amount recovered through executing the financial guarantees or collateral covering the operations. The percentages of
expected loss are applied to this exposure. In the case of collateral, the Bank must demonstrate that the value assigned reasanably reflects the value
obtainable on disposal of the assets or equity instruments. When the credit risk of the debtor is substituted for the credit quality of the collateral ar
guarantar, this methodology is applicable anly when the guarantor or surety is an entity qualified in a assimilable investment grade by a local ar
international company rating agency recognized by the CMF. Guaranteed securities cannot be deducted from the exposure amount, only financial
guarantees and collateral can be considered.

Motwithstanding the foregoing, the Bank must maintain a minimum provision of 0.5% over loans and contingent loans in the normal portfolio,
Impaired Portfolio

The impaired portfolie includes all loans and the entire value of contingent loans of the debtors that are over 90 days overdue on the payment of
interest or principal of any loan at the end of the month. It alse includes debtars wha have been granted a loan to refinance loans over 80 days

overdue, as well as debtors wha have undergone forced restructuration or partial debt condanation.

The impaired portfolio excludes: a) residential mortgage loans, with payments less than 90 days averdue; and, b) loans ta finance higher education
according to Law 20,027, provided the breach conditions outlined in Circular M*3,454 of December 10, 2008 are not fulfilled,

The provision for an impaired portfolio is calculated by determining the expected loss rate for the exposure, adjusting for amounts recoverable
through available financial guarantees and deducting the present value of recoveries made through collection services after the related expenses.
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Once the expected loss range is determined, the related provision percentage is applied over the exposure amount, which includes |loans and
centingent loans related to the debtor.

The allowance rates applied over the calculated exposure are as follows:

Claszification Estimated range of boss Allowance
1 Upta 3% 2%
Lar Greater than 3% and less than 20% 10%
3 Greater than 20% and less than 30% 25%
4 Greater than 30% and less than 50% 0%
5 Groater than S0% and less than RO 55%,
[a:] Greater than 50% 0%

Loans are maintained in the impaired portfolio until their payment ability is normal, notwithstanding the write off of each particular credit that meets
conditions of Title Il of Chapter B-2. Once the circumstances that led to classification in the Impaired Portfolio have been avercome, the debtar can
be removed from this portfolio once all the following conditions are met

i.  The debtor has no obligations of the debtor with the Bank more than 30 days overdue;

ii.  the debtor has not been granted loans to pay its obligations;

jii.  atleast one of the payments include the amaortization of capital;

iv.  if the debtor has made partial loan payments in the last six months, two payments have already been made;

V. if the debtor must pay monthly installments for one or more loans, four consecutive installments have been made;

vi.  the debtor does not appear to have bad debts in the information provided by the CMF { ex SBIF), except for insignificant amaunts.

Il. Allowances for group assessments
Group assessments are used to estimate allowances required for loans with low balances related to individuals or small companies,

Group assessments require the formation of groups of loans with similar characteristics by type of debtor and loan conditions, in order to establish
bath the group payment behavior and the recoveries of their defaulted loans, using technically substantiated estimates and prudential criteria. The
model used is based on the characteristics of the debtor, payment histery, outstanding loans and default among other relevant factors.

The Bank uses methodologies to establish credit risk, based on internal models to estimate the allowances for the group-evaluated portfolio. This
portfolio includes commercial loans with debtors that are not assessed individually, mortgage and consumer loans (including installment loans,
credit cards and overdraft lines). These methods allow the Bank to independently identify the partfolio behavior and establish the provision required
to cover losses arising during the year.

The customers are classified according to their internal and extemnal characteristics into profiles, using a customer-portfolio model to differentiate
each portfolio’s risk in an appropriate manner, This is known as the profile allocation method.

The profile allecation method is based on a statistical construction model that establishes a relationship through logistic regression between
variables (for example default, payment behavior outside the Bank, socio-demographic data) and a response variable which determines the client's
risk, which in this case is over 90 days overdue. Hence, commaon profiles are established and assigned a Probability of Nen-Performance (PMP) and a
recovery rate based on a historical analysis known as Severity (SEV).

Therefore, ence the customers have been profiled, and the loan's profile assigned a PNP and a SEV, the exposure at default (EXP) is calculated. This
exposure includes the book value of the loans and accounts receivable from the customer, plus contingent loans, less any amount that can be
recovered by executing guarantees (for credits other than cansumer lgans),

Notwithstanding the above, on establishing provisions associated with mortgage and commercial loans, the Bank must recognize minimum
provisions according to standard methods established by the CMF (ex SBIF) for those types of loans. While this is considered to be a prudent
minimurm base, it does not relieve the Bank of its responsibility ta have its own methodologies of determining adequate provisions to protect the
credit risk of the portfolio.
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Standard method of residential mortgage loan provisions

As of January 1, 2016 and in accordance with Circular N® 3,573 issued by the CMF, the Bank began applying the standard method of provisions for
residential mortgage loans. According to this method, the expected loss factor applicable to residential mortgage loans will depend on the default
of each lpan and the relationship between the outstanding principal of each loan and the value of the associated mortgage guarantee (Loans to

Value, LTV) at the end of each month.

The allowance rates applied according to default and LTV are the following:

Default days at month Impaired

LTV Range Sl o 1.28 20.59 60-59 il
PF(3:) 1.0916 213407 46.0536 75,1614 100

LTV £40% Severity (%) 0.0225 00441 0.0482 0038z 00537
Expected Loss (%) 00002 00034 00222 00362 00sI7

PIFi) 14758 274332 520824 785511 100

&% LTV =B0% Seventy (%) 21955 28233 29192 zarz 50413
Expected Loss (3) 0.0421 07745 1.5204 23047 30413

PP 25150 27,9300 52,5800 706952 100

B0% LTV S90% Sqverity (%) 21,5527 216600 21,5200 FFRER Z2at0
Expacted Liss (%) 0.5421 60496 11.5255 176390 222310

PNP{3:) 27400 334300 530800 03677 100

LTY 250 Severity () 27,2000 0300 25,5900 01558 2416
Expected Loss (%) 07453 azn3z 15,7064 242355 302436

LTV =Loan capital/Value of guarantee

If the same debtor has more than one residential mortgage loan with the Bank and one of them over 90 days overdue, all their loans shall be
allocated to the impaired portfolio, calculating provisions for each of them in accordance with their respective LTV.

For residential mortgage loans related to housing programs and grants from the Chilean government, the allowance rate may be weighted by a
factor of loss mitigation (L), which depends on the LTV percentage and the price of the property in the deed of zale (5), as long as the debtor has
contracted auction insurance provided by the Chilean gavernment.

Standard method of commercial loan provisions

In accardance with the Circular N° 3,638 and N° 3,647 issued by the CMF, as of July 1, 2019, the Bank began applying the standard model of
provisions for student loans or ather types of commercial loans.

Frior to the implementation of the standard method, the Bank used its internal models for the determination of group business provisions.

a. Commercial leasing operations

For these operations, the provision factor must be applied to the current value of commercial leasing operations (including the purchase option) and
will depend on the delinquency of each operation, the type of leased asset and the relationship, at closing of each manth, between the current value
of each operation and the value of the leased asset (PWE), as indicated in the following tables:

Pr Non-Pard oo (PNP) by default and type of asset (%)
Default days ot month closing Type of asset
Real Estate Mon real Extate

o 079 161

1-29 T4 1202
30-59 2676 4088
60-89 56.76 69.30
Impaired portfolia 10000 100,00
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Sawerity [SEV] by stage and type of asset (%)
PVE Stage Real Estate Non real Estate
PVE £ 40% [ 18.2
40% = PVB = 50% a0s 57400
50% < PVE £ 80% 510 60,40
BO% < PVB s 0% 23.20 75.10
PVE. > 80% 620 78.90

PyB= Current valise of operationleased asset vabue

The determination of the PVE relationship will be made considering the appraisal value, expressed in UF for real estate and pesos for non-real estate,
recorded at the time of granting the respective credit, taking inta aceount any situations that may be causing pricing rises of the asset at that time.

b. Student loans

For these operations, the provision factar should be applied to the student loan and the exposure of the contingent cradit, when applicable. The
determination of this factor depends on the type of student loan and the enforceability of the payment of capital or interest, at the end of each
month, When payment is due, the factor will also depend on its default,

For the purposes of the classification of the loan, a distinction is made betwean those granted for the financing of higher studies granted in
accordance with Law No. 20,027 (CAE) and, on the other hand, the CORFO guarantee credits or other student loans,

Frobabillty Non-Parf oo (PNP) according enforceability, default and type of loan (%)

Is the principal and insterest Default days at Student loans
enforceable manth ehosing CAE CORFO and other

Yes L] 5.20 230

1:29 EHi] 1500

30-59 59.00 4340

60-89 TaH0 A
Impaired portfolio 100.00 100.00

Ho MFA 41,60 16.50

Sevarity (SEV) by stage PVE and type of asset (%)

Is the principal and Student leans

insterest enforeeable CAE | CORFD and other
Y 7oA
Ho 5030 | as.en

¢. Generic comercial loans and factoring

For factaring operations and ather commercial loans, the provision factor, applicable to the amount of the loans and the exposure of the contingent
credit will depend on the default of each operation and the relationship that exists, at the end of each month, between the obligations that the
debtar has with the bank and the value of the real guarantees that pratect them (PTVG), as indicated in the fallowing tables:

Mor-Pai oo (PNP) by default and PTVG stage (%)
Dwfault days at manth closing G ‘
FTVG = 100% PTVG = 100% Mo g

1] 1.86 268 491
1=29 1160 1345 2293
20-53 25,33 282 4520
60-39 41.31 41.31 6163
Impaired partfolic 0000 100,00 10000
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Severity (SEV) by PTVG stage (%)
Guaranies PTVG stage Factoring and ether comerdal loans Factoring with responsibility
withaut respansibility
Guarantss PTVG = 60% 500 320
E0% < PTVG s T5% 2030 12an
7% < PTVG = 30% 3z.2n 2030
% < PTVG 43.00 AT
Mo guaramtes 56,90 5490

The guarantees used for the purposes of calculating the PTVG relationship of this method may be specific or general, including those that are
simultaneously specific and general. A guarantee can only be considered if, according to the respective coverage clauses, it was constituted in the
first degree of preference in favor of the bank and only guarantees the debtor's credits with respect to which it is imputed (not shared with other
debtors), The invoices assigned in the factoring operations, nor the guarantees associated with the mortgage loans, regardless of their coverage
clause, will not be considered in the calculation.

For the calculation of the PTVG ratio, the fellowing considerations must be taken:

i. Transactions with specific guarantees: when the debtor granted specific guarantees, for generic commercial loans and factoring, the PTVG ratio
is calculated independently for each secured transaction, such as the division between the amount of the loans and the contingent credit
exposure and the value of the real guarantee that protects it.

ii, Transactions with general guarantees: when the debtor granted general or general and specific guarantees, the Bank calculates the respective
PTWG, jointly for all generic commercial loan and factaring and not contemplated in the preceding paragraph i), as the division between the sum
of the amounts of the loans and expasures of contingent credits and the general, or general and specific guarantees that, according ta the
scope of the remaining coverage clauses, safeguard the credits considered in the numerator of the menticned ratio.

The amounts of the guarantees used in the PTVG ratio of numbers i) and §i) must be determined according to:

The last valuation of the guarantee, be its appraisal or fair value, according to the type of real guarantee in guestion. For the determination
of fair value, the criteria indicated in Chapter 7-12 of the Updated Collection of Standards should be considered.
Possible situations that could be causing temparary increases in the values of the gquarantees.

- Limitations on the amount of coverage established in their respective clauses,

d. Provisions related to financing with a FOGAPE Covid-19 guarantee

On July 17, 2020, the CMF requested to determine specific provisions of the credits guaranteed by the FOGAPE Covid-19 guarantee, for which the
expected losses must be determined estimating the risk of each operation, without considering the substitution of credit quality of the guarantee,
according ta the corresponding individual or group analysis methad, in accardance with the provisions of Chapter B-1 of the Compendium of
Accounting Standards. This calculation must be carried out in an aggregate manner, grouping all those operations to which the same deductible
percentage is applicable. Therefore, the total amount of the expected losses resulting from the aggregate calculation of each group of operations
must be contrasted with the respective total deductible amount that corresponds to them and proceed as follows, when the expected losses of the
operatiens of a group to which the same percentage of deductible corresponds, determined according to the procedure indicated are less than or
equal to the aggregate amount of the deductible, the provisions will be determined without cansidering the coverage of FOGAPE Covid-19, that is,
without substituting the credit quality of the direct debtor for the guarantee and when they are greater than the aggregate amount of the
deductible, the provisions will be determined using the substitution method provided in section 4.7 letter 2) of Chapter B-1 of the Compendium of
Accounting Standards and will be recognized in separate accounts at that of commercial, consumption and housing provisions, As of December 31,
2020, the Bank has established provisions for this concept of Ch £ 35,872 million (Nate N ® 10 and 31).

lll. Additional provisions
According to CMF regulation, banks are allowed to establish provisions over the limits already described, to protect themselves from the risk of non-
predictable economical fluctuations that could affect the macro-economic environment ar a specific economic sector. According to N*09 B-1

Chapter from the CMF Compendium of Accounting Standards, these provisions will be recorded in liabilities, similar to provisions for contingent
laans.
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V. Charge-offs

As a general rule, charge-offs should be done when the contract rights over cash flow expire. In the case of loans, even if the above does not
happen, the Bank will charge-off these amounts in accordance with Title || of Chapter B-2 of the Compendium of Accounting Standards (CMF).

These charge-offs refer to the derecagnition from the Consaolidated Statements of Financial Position of the respective loan, including any nat yet due
future payments in the case of installment loans or leasing transactions (for which partial charge-offs do not exist).

Charge-offs are always recorded as a charge to loan risk allowances according to Chapter B-1 of the Compendium of Accounting Regulations, no
matter the reason for the charge-off. Any payment received related to a loan previously charged-off will be recognized as recovery of loan
previously charged-off at the Consolidated Statement of Income.

Loan and accounts receivable charge-offs are recorded for overdue, past due, and current installments when they exceed the time pericds described
below since reaching overdue status:

Type of loan Term
Consumer loans with ar without collateral & months
Cther transactions without collateral 24 months
Cormmercial leans with collateral 30 months
Muortgage loans 48 months
Consumer leasing & maonths
Other non-mertgage leasing ransactions 12 manths
Wortgage leasing (househald and business) 36 manths

¥.  Recovery of loans previously charged off and accounts receivable from customers

Ay recovery on “Loans and accounts receivable from customers” previously charged-off will be recognized as a reduction in the credit risk
provisons in the Consolidated Statement of Income.

Any renegaotiation of a loan previously charged-off will not give rise to income, as long as the operation continues being considered as impaired. The
cash payments received must be treated as recoveries of charged-off loans.

The renegotiated loan can anly be included again in assets if it is no longer considered as impaired, also recagnizing the capitalization income as
recovery of charged-off loans.
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q) Provisions, contingent assets, and contingent liabilities

Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing or amount. Provisions are recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position when the
Bark:

i.  Has a present abligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events, and
ii, itis probable that an outflow of resources will be reguired to settle these obligations and
iii.  the amount of these resources can be reliably measured,

Contingent assets or contingent liabilities are any potential rights or obligations arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed only by
the accurrence or non-occurrence if one or more uncertain future events that are not whally within control of the Bank.

The Consolidated Financial Statements reflect all significant provisions for which it is estimated that the probability of having to meet the obligation
is more than likely than not. Pravisions are guantified using the best available information regarding the consequences of the event giving rise to
them and are reviewed and adjusted at the end of accounting peried. Provisions are used when the Labilities far which they were ariginally
recognized are settled, Fartial or total reversals are recognized when such liabilities cease to exist or are reduced.

Frovisions are classified according to the obligation covered as tollows:

- Provisions for employee salaries and expenses
Provisions for mandatory dividends

- Provisions for contingent loan risks
Prawvisions for contingencies

r} Income taxes and deferred taxes

The Bank records, when appropriate, deferred tax assets and liabilities for the estimated future tax effects attributable to differences between the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities and their tax bases. The measurement of deferred taw assets and liabilities is based on the tax rate, in
accordance with the applicable tax laws, using the tax rate that applies to the period when the deferred asset and liability will be recovered or
settled. The future effects of changes in tax legislation or tax rates are recorded in deferred taxes from the date on which the law is enacted or
substantially enacted.

Current taxes for the asset correspond ta the provisional payments that exceed the provision for income tax or other loans at income tax, such as
training expenses or donations to universities. Additionally, the monthly tax payment (P.P.M.) for recovenng by profits absorbed by tax lasses, In the
case of liabilities they correspond to the provision for income tax calculated according to the results tax for the peried, deducted the mandatory or
voluntary provisional payments and other credits that apply to this obligation.

5) Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires the Bank's management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the
accounting policies and the reparted values of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

In certain cases, International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) require that assets or liabilities be recorded or disclosed at their fair values. The
fair walue is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordery transaction between informed market
participants at the measurement date. When availzble, quoted market prices in active markets have been used as the basis for measurement, When
quoted market prices in active markets are not available, the Bank has estimated such values based on the best information available, including the
use of internal modeling and other valuation techniques,

The Bank has established allowances to cover cover probable losses, to estimate allowances. These allowances must be regularly reviewed taking
into consideration factors such as changes in the nature and valume of the loan portfolio, trends in forecasted portfolio quality, credit quality and
econamic conditions that may adversely affect the borowers” ability to pay. Increases in the allowances for loan losses are reflected as "Provision for
laan lasses” in the Consolidated Statement of Income.

Loans are charged-off when the cantractual nights for the cash flows expire, however, for loans and accounts receivable from customers the bank will
charge-off in accordance with Title Il of Chapter B-2 of the Compendium of Accounting Standards issued by the CMF (ex SBIF). Charge-offs are
recorded a5 a reduction of the allowance for loan losses.
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The relevant estimates and assumptions made to calculate provisions are reqularly reviewed by the Bank's Management to quantify certain assets,
liabilities, revenues, expenses, and commitments. Revised accounting estimates are recarded in the period in which the estimate is revised and in
any affected future period.

These estimates are based on the best available information and mainly refer to:

- Allowances for loan lasses (Notes 9, 10, and 31)
- Impairment lasses of certain assets (MNotes 8, %, 10, 11, and 34)
- The useful lives of tangible and intangible assets (Motes 13, 14 and 34)
- The fair value of assets and liabilities (Motes &, 7, 8 11 and 38)
- Commitments and contingencies (Mote 23)
Current and deferred taxes (Note 15)

t) Mon-current assets held for sale

Mon-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

Az of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Bank classified the investments in associates held up to now in Redbanc and Transbank as held for sale, in
accordance with the provisions of IFRS 5 “Mon-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations”, because expects to recover the book value
primarily through the sale of these investments, In order to carry out this reclassification, the Bank has ensured that it complies with the
requirements established for this:

- It must be available in its current conditions for immediate sale and its sale must be highly probable.

» For the sale ta be highly probable, the appropriate level of management must be committed to a plan to sell the asset (or group of assets
for its dispasal), and a pragram to find a buyer and complete said purchase must have been actively initiated.

+ | must also expect the sale to meet the conditions for recognition as a sale ended within the yvear following the date of dlassification.

For this, the Bank will measure investments at book value, given that it represents the lowest value in relation to fair value less costs to sell.
Additionally, the Bank will recagnize any impairment loss on non-current assets held for sale, such as a reduction in the value of those assets to fair
value less costs to sell.

Az of December 31, 2020, the Bank has classified as “non-current assets held for sale” the investments in Transbank and Redbanc, while Mexus was
sold in January 2020. For more information see Mote MN* 40,

Assets received or awarded in lieu of payment.

Assets received or awarded in lieu of payment of loans and accounts receivable from clients are recognized at their fair value. A price is agreed upon
by the parties through negotiation or, when the parties do not reach an agreement, at the amount at which the Bank is awarded those assets at a
judicial auction. In the both cases, an independent appraisal is performed.

My excess of the outstanding lean balance over the fair value is recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Income under "Provisicon for loan
losses™.

These assets are subsequently valued at the lower of the amount initially recorded and the net realizable value, which corresponds te its fair value
(liguidity value determined through an independent appraisal) less their respective costs of sale. The difference between both are recognized in the
Cansolidated Staterment under *Other aperating expenses”.

At the end of each year the Bank performs an analysis to review the “selling costs” of assets received or awarded in lieu of payments which will be
applied at this date and during the following year. On December 2020 the average selling cost has been estimated at 3.2% of the appraisal value
[3.1% for December 31, 2019). Additionally, every 18 months a review of the appraisals (independent) is carried out to adjust the fair value of the
assets,

In general, it is estimated that these assets will be disposed of within a period of one year from their award date. In compliance with the provisions
of article 84 of the General Banking Law, those goods that are not sald within said period are punished in a single installment. On March 25, 2020,
the CMF the CMF issued drcular Mo. 2247 where it has resolved to grant an additional pericd of eighteen months for the sale of all assets that
financial institutions have received in payment or are awarded between 1 March 2019 until September 30, 2020, also allowing the punishment of
said assets to be carried out in installments, proportional to the number of months between the date of receipt and the date set by the bank for
disposal.
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u) Earmings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net income attributable to the equity holders of the Bank by the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the reported period. Diluted eamings per share are calculated in a similar manner to basic eamings, but the weighted
average number of cutstanding shares is adjusted to take into consideration the potential diluting effect of stock optiens, warrants, and convertible
debt. As of Decemnber 31, 2020 and 2019, the Bank did nat have any instruments that generated dilution.

v} Temporary acquisition (assignment) of assets and liabilities

Furchases or sales of financial assets under non-optional repurchase agreements at a fived price (repos) are recorded in the Consolidated
Statements of Financial Position as an financial assignment based on the nature of the debtor (creditor) under “Deposits in the Central Bank of
Chile,” "Depasits in financial institutions” or “Loans and accounts receivable from customers” ("Central Bank of Chile deposits,” "Deposits from
financial institutions” or "Customer deposits”),

Differences between the purchase and sale prices are recarded as financial interest over the term of the contract.

w) Assets under management and investment funds managed by the Bank

Assets owned by third parties and managed by certain companies that are within the Bank's scope of consolidation (Santander 5.4, Sociedad
securitizadora), are not included in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. Management fees are included in “Fee and commission
income” in the Consolidated Statement of Income.

®) Provision for mandatory dividends

As of Decembrer 31, 2020 and 2019, the Bank recorded a provision for minimurm mandatary dividends. This provision is made pursuant ta Article 79
of the Carporations Act, which is in accordance with the Bank's intermal policy, which requires at least 30% of net income for the penod s
distributed, except in the case of a contrary resolution adopted at the respective shareholders” meeting by unanimous vote of the outstanding
shares, This provision is recorded as a deduction from "Retained eamings” — “Provision for mandatory dividends” in the Censolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity with offset to Provisions,

¥) Employee benefits

i. Post-employment benefits — Defined Benefit Flan:

According to current collective labor agreements and other agreements, the Bank has an additional benefit available to its principal executives,
consisting of a pension plan, whose purpose is to endow them with funds for a better supplementary pension upon their retirement.

Features of the Plan:
The main features of the Post-Employment Benefits Plan promaoted by the Banco Santander-Chile are:
L Aimed at the Bank's management.
Il.  The general reguirement is that the beneficiary must still be employed by the Bank when reaching 60 years old.
. The Bank will mixed collective life and savings insurance policy for each beneficiary in the plan. Regular voluntary installments will be paid
into this fund by the beneficiary and matched by the Bank.
V. The Bank will be responsible for granting the benefits directly.
The projected unit credit method is used to calculate the present value of the defined benefit obligation and the curent service cost,
Components of defined benefit cost include:
- Current service cost and any past service cost, which are recognized in profit or loss for the period;
- net interest on the hability (asset) for net defined benefit, which is recagnized in profit ar loss far the periad;

- new hability (asset) remeasurements for net defined benefit include: (a) actuarial gains and losses; (b) the performance of plan assets, and;
(<) changes in the effect of the asset ceiling which are recagnized in other comprehensive income.

Consolidate Financlal Statements December 2020 / Banco Santander-Chile 33




_—
Banco Santander-Chile and Subsidiaries
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AS OF DECEMEER 31, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 01
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued

The liability (asset) for net defined benefit is the deficit or surplus, calculated as the difference between the present value of the defined benefit
ohligation less the fair value of plan assets.

Plan assets comprise the pension fund taken out by the Bank with a third party that is not a related party. These assets are held by an entity legalky
separated from the Bank and exist solely to pay benefits to employees.

The Bank recognizes the present service cast and the net interest of the Personnel wages and expenses on the Consolidated Statement of Income.
Given the plan's structure, it does not generate actuarial gains or losses, The plan's perfarmance is established and fices duning the penod;
consequently, there are no changes in the asset’s cap. Accordingly, there are no amounts recognized in other comprehensive income,

The post-employment benefits liability, recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, represents the deficit or surplus in the
defined benefit plans of the Bank. Ay surplus resulting from the calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits available in the
form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions.

When employess leave the plan before meeting the requirements to be eligible for the benefit, contributions made by the Bank are reduced.

ii. Severance provision:

Severance provision for years of employment are recarded anly when they actually occur or upon the availability of a formal and detailed plan in
which the fundamental modifications to be made are identified, provided that such plan has already started to be implemented or its principal
features have been publicly announced, or objective facts about its execution are known.

iii. Cash-settled share based compensation

The Bank allocates cash-settled share bazed compenszation to executives of the Bank and its Subsidiaries in accordance with IFRS 2. The Bank
measures the services received and the ebligation incurred at fair value,

Until the obligation is settled, the Bank calculates the fair value at the end of each reporting period, as well as at the date of settlement, recagnizing
any change in fair value in the income statement for the period.

z) Mew accounting pronouncements

I. Adoption of new accounting standards and instructions issued by both the current Commission for the Financial Market (CMF) and by
The International Accounting Standards Board:

At the date of issuance of these Consolidated Financial Statements, the new accounting pronouncements issued by both the current CMF (ex SBIF)
and the Intermnational Accounting Standards Board, which have been fully adopted by the Bank, are detailed below,

1. Accounting Standards issued by the current Financial Market Commission (CMF), exSuperintendency of Banks and Financial
Institutions.

Circular N * 2247 - Updated Compilation of Standards. Chapter 10-1. Assets received in lieu of payment. Long sale period. On March 25,
2020, the CMF issued this circular that grants an additional term of & more months (18 total) for the disposal of all assets that financial institutions
have received in payment or are awarded between March 1, 2019 until December 31, 2020, also allowing the punishment of such assets to be carried
out in installments, proportional to the number of months between the date of their receipt and that set by the bank for their disposal. These
measures have been adopted by the Bank immediately.
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Circular N * 2248 - Updated Compilation of Standards. Chapter 12-1. Equity for legal and regulatory purposes. Treatment of guarantees in
favor of third parties in bilateral compensation agreements. On March 30, 2020, the CMF issued this circular modifies the treatment of the
derivative variation margin. This topic is not currently addressed in the provisions of Chapter 12-1 of the Updated Compilation of Standards, but is
consistent with the provisions of the Basel Il Framework, regarding the determination of net exposures of assets and liabilities covered in legally
recognized compensation contracts in the jurisdictions to which the parties agree. Specifically, in the case of derivative transactions entered into
under a bilateral cleanng framework contract, in which the net fair value of the cleared positions is negative, said amount may be deducted from the
guarantees established under the contract, at in arder to determine the asset subject to risk weighting, provided that the guarantees mest the
established conditions, These measures have been adopted by the Bank immediately,

Circular N * 2250 - Updated Compilation of Standards. Chapter 12-1. Heritage for legal and regulatory purposes. It allows adding a
proportion of the State guarantees to the additional provisions. On April 20, 2020, the CMF issued this circular that modifies paragraph 3.1 of
Title | of the aforementicned chapter, where it may be added to the additional provisions referred to in letter b), within the limit of 1.25% indicated
there. , an amount of up to 15% of the guarantees that cover the risk-weighted assets, the guarantees that correspond to guarantees or re-
guarantees granted by the Chilean Treasury, CORFO and FOGAPE. These measures have been adopted by the Bank immediately.

Circular N * 2252 - Aspects related to the Covid-19 Guarantee lines of the Guarantee Fund for Small and Medium-sized Entrepreneurs
(FOGAPE), in the matter of provisions and other matters of its regulation. On April 30, 2020 and within the framework of the publication of Law
Mo, 21,229 and Supreme Decree Mo. 130 that establishes the conditions for granting guarantees to secure financing for those who have seen
affected by the COVID-19 pandemic. Establishes the treatment for the computation of provisions constituted on the granting date for outstanding
credits, as well as the treatment of the portfolio in default and debtors that have contracted financing with a Covid-19 guarantee with other financial
institutions. The prowvisions of this Circular are valid until Octeber 31, 2021, These measures have been adopted by the Bank immediately, the
implementation did not have a material impact.

Circular N * 2257 - Compendium of Accounting Standards for Banks. It allows the recognition of the excess of mortgage guarantee for the
home in the standard model of provisions of the group commercial portfolio. On May 22, 2020, the CPMF issued this circular, taking into
account the effects that the health crisis caused by the Covid-19 pandemic will have an banking activity and credit risk, this Commission has resolved
ta review the aforementioned restriction, in accordance with transitory manner and until the full validity of the aforementioned new legal framework
that includes the Basel Il guidelines, allowing the recognition of the excess mortgage guarantee associated with housing loans in the standard
provision model of the group commercial portfolio in Chapter B-1, determined from the application of a 20% haircut, These measures have been
adapted by the Bank immediately.

Circular N ° 2264 - Information on the deductible associated with financing with the FOGAPE covid-19 guarantee. On July 21, 2020, the CMF
issued this circular that modifies chapter C-3 of the Campendium of Accounting Standards and the instructions of file C50 on "Operations associated
with the COVID-19 credit line for working capital guaranteed by the State” . Adding in the model of statement of financial position the accaunt
1309.1.14 “Pravisions far deductible of guarantees FOGAPE Covid-19" and in the model of income statements the account 4500.1.97 “Provisions for
deductible of guarantees FOGAPE Cowvid-19", while in file C13 it adds field "13. Percentage of the deductible of the state guarantee °. These
maodifications of chapter C-2 will take effect as of July 2020, and the field of the C50 file must be incorporated for the information referring to the
month of July 2020, which is sent on the tenth business day. The Bank has proceeded to implement these regulations immediately.

Circular N * 2265 - Updated Compilation of Standards, Chapter 12-1. Risk weighting of bank loans guaranteed by the Treasury, Corfo and
Fogape. On August 21, 2020, the CMF, in consideration of the situation facing financial markets and audited entities as a result of the health crisis
caused by the Covid-19 pandemic, resolved to modify the risk weight of that part of the assets which are guaranteed by the Chilean Treasury,
CORFO and FOGAPE, in accordance with the provision of the first transitory article of Law MNo. 21,130, This new treatment incorporates into category
2 of the classification of risk-weighted assets the amounts of the credits that are guaranteed by the Chilean Treasury, CORFO and FOGAPE, which
consequently go from having a weighting for credit nisk of 100% to 10%. The Bank has proceeded to implement these regulations immediately.

Circular M * 2267 - Bank factoring operations. Amends Chapter 8-38 of the Updated Compilation of Standards for banks and Circular N ° 36
for factoring bank affiliates. On August 28, 2020, the CMF issued this letter that allows flexibility in the instructions regarding the discount of
invices by banks and their factoring subsidiaries, allowing the discount of invoices from assignees other than their ariginator, given the safeguards
provided by Law Mo, 19,983 in force today. This modification is based on the current mechanisms that said law when the requirements for the
irrevacability of the acceptance of the invoice by the debtar and the consequent condition of unenforceability that protects the assignees. The Bank
has praceeded to implement these regulations immediately.
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Circular N * 2270 - General criteria and guidelines for determining additional equity requirements as a result of the supervision process
pursuant to Title V and Article 66 quingquies of the General Banking Law. On September 11, 2020, the CMF issued this provision, which
establishes that, as part of the annual review process, the capital adequacy of banks should be evaluated, both based on compliance with objective
regulatory requirements, and to support the risk profile of each institution; considering in the latter case, if the effective equity objective defined by
the bank itself, in accordance with the provisions of the new Chapter 21-13, are appropriate to its referred profile. If, as a result of the evaluation
process, this Commission determines that a bank requires a higher level of effective equity to face its risks, such measure may be imposed through a
will-founded resolution and with the favarable vote of at least four Cammissioners, not being able at all If it exceeds 4% of the bank's risk-weighted
assets, net of required provisions. This requlation is effective immediately. The Bank is implementing this regulation in order to meet the stipulated
deadlines.

Cireular N * 2272 - Additional basic capital, articles 66 bis and 66 ter of the General Banking Law. Incorporates Chapter 21-12 to the
Updated Compilation of Standards. On September 25, 2020, the CMF issued these regulations as part of the Basel |l implementation process,
incorporating the new Chapter 21-12 to the Updated Compilation of Standards, which establishes the procedures for the calculation,
implementation and supervision of the buffers of capital for banks. That is, the "conservation buffer” that corresponds to 2.5% of the bank's risk-
weighted assets, net of required pravisions, above the minimum effective equity required according to article 66 of the LGB, and to " cauntercyclical
buffer “which corresponds ta a variable charge that may range between 0% and 2.5% of the bank's risk-weighted assets, net of required provisions
and which, like the conservation buffer, must be constituted with capital ordinary level 1, This standard will be effective as of December 1, 2020. The
established requirements must consider the overall conselidated situation of the bank, The Bank is camying out the implementation of these
regulations in order to caomply with the stipulated deadlines,

Cireular N * 2273 - Ratio between Basic Capital and Total Assets. Incorporates chapter 21-30 to the Updated Compilation of Standards.
|ssued on October 5, 2020, this regulation centains the adjustments and conditions necessary to determine the leverage ratio, in accordance with the
rest of the regulatory changes associated with the factors and methodology to qualify banks of systemic importance and the determination of your
effective equity. The ratio between assets and capital cannot be less than 3% between basic capital and tatal assets (in force since 1997), however,
this madification contemplates the possbility of increasing it to 5% for banks that are classified as systemically impaortant, in line with the Basel 1l
guidelines. This regulation is effective immediately. The Bank is carrying out the implementation of these regulations in order to comply with the
stipulated deadlines.

Circular M * 2274 - Equity for legal and regulatory purposes, Incorporates chapter 21-1 to the Updated Compilation of Standards to replace
chapter 12-1. lssued on October 8, 2020, this regulation introduces a calculation methodology based on the Basel Il Committee standards to
adequately camply with the provisions of article 66, 66kis and 66ter of the LGB, The different elements and levels that make up the assets of the
banks are defined according to the capacity to absorb losses, including the adjustments and exclusions of the items of assets or liabilities that must
be carried out aceording to the final paragraph of article 66 of the LGB, The new provisions, which are in force as of December 1, 2020 and
contemplate a transition period that will last until December 1, 2025. The Bank is implementing these regulations in order to meet the stipulated
deadlines.

Cireular N * 2276 - Circular No. 2,276 - Factors and Methodologies for Banks or Group of Banks rated as systemically important.
Incorporates chapter 21-11 to the Updated Compilation of Standards and updates provisions of chapter 12-14. |ssued an Novernber 2, 2020,
this regulation establishes the degree of systemic importance of a bank, it will be considered an index of systemic importance, determined by the
weighted sum of the relative percentage participation of each bank in the factors indicated below:

« Size - Weighting 30%

» Local substitutability - Weighting 20%
+ Local interconnection - Weighting 30%
» Complexity - Weighting 20%

These regulations will come inta effect an December 1, 2020, and the first resolution that qualifies the banks” systemic impertance quality will be
issued in March 2021, with information from 2020, The additional capital requirement must be established at the rate of a 25% of the required level
on December 1, 2021, 50% on December 1, 2022, 75% on December 1, 2023 and 100% on December 1, 2024. The Bank is implementing this
regulation of way of meeting the stipulated deadlines.
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Circular M = 2279 - Preferred shares, Bonds without a fixed maturity term and Subordinated Bonds. Incorporates Chapters 21-2 and 21-3 to
the Updated Compilation of Standards. lssued on Movember 24, 2020, this regulation incorporates the following chapters to the RAMN:

- Chapter 21- 2 "Additional level 1 capital instruments for the constitution of effective equity: preferred shares and bonds without a fixed maturity
term", this contains the minimum requirements and conditions that preference shares and bonds without expiration term must have ( AT,
additional capital instruments level 1). It establishes reguirerments for the cancellation of dividends and / or interests, and loss absarption
mechanizsms, purchase and redemption conditions, among others, It is effective as of December 1, 2020, but allows - as a transitory pravision - to
compute as equivalents of AT instruments the subordinated bonds that meet the requirements of Chapter 21-3 RAN and voluntary provisions with
a limit of 1.5% of the APR , net of provisians, This will be applicable the first year, and will decrease progressively, reducing by 0.5% each year, until
reaching 0% in 4 years.

- Chapter 21-3 “Capital instruments Level 2 (T2) for the constitution of effective equity: Subordinated bonds”, this will replace Chapter 9-6 of the
RAM as of December 1, 2020 and establishes minimum requirements to be part of the effective equity. Likewise, it establishes requirements for
subordinated bonds with clauses of convertibility into shares. It alse prohibits subordinated bonds from being acquired by banks, subsidiaries or
associates. It applies from December 1, 2020 - as a transitory provision - the issuance of subordinated bonds in force, which do not comply with the
conditions established in this chapter, will continue to be recognized as part of the bank's effective equity fram December 1, 2020, but the
recogrition ratio will decrease by 10% annually with respect to the estimated computable amount each year. The Bank i= carrying out the
implementation of these regulations in order to comply with the stipulated deadlines,

Circular N ® 2280 - Standardized methodology for calculating assets weighted by operational risk. Incorporates chapter 21-8 to the
Updated Compilation of Standards. Issued on December 1, 2020, this regulation establishes that, for the calculation of operational risk, a single
standard methed is established, in accordance with the recommendaticns of the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision, not allowing the use of
its own methodologies that are The second paragraph of article &7 refers. The regulatory standard contained in the new Chapter 21-8 computes
assets weighted by aperational risk from two components. The first component is a business indicator, prepared with infermation from the financial
statements of each bank (BIC, for its acronym in English); and the secand, an adjustment factor made from operating losses experienced in the last
10 years (ILM). These regulations will enter into force on Decernber 1, 2020. Likewise, it was established that until December 1, 2027, assets weighted
by operational risk will be equal to 0. The Bank is implementing this regulation in arder to comply with with the stipulated deadlines.

Circular N ° 2281 - Determination of Assets Weighted by Credit Risk. Incorporates Chapter 21-6 to the Updated Compilation of Standards.
Issued on December 1, 2020, this standard is based on the international standards proposed by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision in
2017, whose standard method is more sensitive to risk, since it has categeries that depend on the type of counterpanty and different risk factors,
together with the possibility of reducing the weights that are applicable to each type of asset, when they are considered credit risk mitigators, such
as the case of compensation agreements, endorsements and sureties, financial guarantees or compensations in balance. In addition, this new
framework will allow the use of internal methadalogies, subject to compliance with the minimum regquirements set forth in the same chapter, which
also considers maintaining a management level of at least categaory B in the |atest Commission evaluation. On a temporary basis, it establishes that
the calculation of APRCs is carried out in accordance with the current provisions of Title I| of Chapter 12-1 of the RAN, until Navemnber 30, 2021; The
new methodology must be applied as of December 1, 2021, In addition, it includes treatment for agreements and maodifies B-1 to agree definitions
of group and contingent portfolio. The Bank is carrying out the implementation of these regulations in arder to comply with the stipulated
deadlings,

Circular N * 2282 - Circular Mo, 2,282 - Incorporates chapter 21-7 on the determination of assets weighted by market risk to the Updated
Compilation of Standards. lssued on December 1, 2020, the provisions contained in the new chapter only contemplate the definition of a
standardized methodalogy, designed to cover the banks' market risk, in whose determination the standards propoesed by the Basel Committee in
2019, The market risk weighting maodel applies to financial instruments classified in the trading book and has a general market companent,
associated with movements in reference interest rates, foreign currencies, raw matenals and stock prices; and a specific component, associated with
idiosyncratic aspects of the issuer, such as credit spread and default. Also, the risk of foreign currency and raw materials is considered far the
positions in the book of banking, This regulation is effective as of December 1, 2020, however, it contemplates a transitory provision that considers a
market risk weight equal to zero until December 1, 2021. The Bank is implementing this regulation of way to meet the stipulated deadlines
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2. Accounting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board

Conceptual framework for financial reporting 2018 - This framework was issued on March 29, 2018, and its purpose is to: (a) assist the |ASBE in
the development of IFRS regulations on a consistent basis of concepts, (b) assist preparers in the development of consistent accounting policies
when there is no stanclard that applies to a particular transaction or other event, or when a standard allows a series of accounting policies; and (c)
assist the parties in the understanding and interpretation of the regulations.

The revised framework includes a new chapter on measurement, guidelines for reporting financial perfarmance, improvements to definition and
guidance, and clarifications of important issues (for example: management functions, prudence and measurement of uncertainties in financial
reparting).

The 1A5E also included an amendment that updates references to the framewaork in certain standards. These amendments are effective for annual
perods beginning on lanuary 1, 20200 Bank Management is evaluating the potential impact of this madification.

Amendments to IFRS 3 - Definition of a business - On October 22, 2018, the 1ASE published this amendment, which clarifies the business
definition, with the objective of helping entities determine whether a transaction should be accounted for as a business combination. ar as the
acquisition of an asset. The modifications:

Clarify that, to be considered a business, an acquired set of activities and assets must include, as a minimum, an input and a substantive

process that together contribute significantly to the ability to produce products;

eliminate the evaluation of whether market participants can replace the missing processes or supplies and continue with the production of

products;

(¢} add guides and illustrative examples to help entities assess whether a substantial process has been acquired;

{d) restrict the definitions of a business or products focusing on goods and services provided to customers and eliminate the reference to the
ability to reduce costs; y

(e] they add an optional concentration test that allows a simplified evaluation of whether a set of activities and busineszes acquired is not a

business,

{a

ib

Entities are required to apply the amendments to transactions whose acquisition date is from the beginning of the first annual reporting period
beginning on or after lanuary 1, 2020, Early application is permitted, The implementation of this standard does not have g material impact en the
Bank’s financiol statement.

Meodifications to I1AS 1 and 1AS 8 - Definition of material or materiality - On October 31, 2019, the IASE published these amendments, whosze
objective is to improve the understanding of the definition of material or with relative importance, coordinating the wording of the definition in the
IFRS Standards and the Conceptual Framewark to avoid the possibility of confusion ansing from different definitions; incorporating support
requirements in 1AS 1 in the definition to give them more prominence and clarify their applicability; and supplying the existing guides on the
definition of material or with relative importance in one place, together with the definition.

This amendment primarily affects paragraph 7 of 145 1, paragraph 5 of |AS 8, and eliminates paragraph 6 of 145 & and is applicable prospectively to
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020, Permit your anticipate app. The implementation of this standard does not have o material
impact on the Bank's financial statement.

Meadifications to IFRS 9, I1AS 39 and IFR5 7 - Reference interest rate reform - On Septemnber 26, 2019, IA58 published this medification that
requires additional disclosures regarding the uncertainty generated by the reform at a reference interest rate, this publication constitutes the first
reaction to the potential effects that the reform would generate to the IBOR in the states financial and modifies the specific accaunting requirements
of cash flow hedge coverage assuming that the reference interest rate is not modified as a result of its reform. These modifications are effective as of
January 1, 2020 with retroactive effect, and early application allowed. The implementation of this standord does not hove @ material impact on the
Bank’s financial statement.

Amendment to IFRS 16 - Rental concessions related to Covid-19. On May 29, 2020, the IASE issued this amendment to provide an exception to
tenants from not accounting for a lease concession as a lease amendment if it is related to Covid-19. But you must disclose the application of this
exception. The modification is effective as of June 1, 2020, with early application allowed even for financial institutions that have not yet been
authorized as of May 28, 2020. The Bank has decided not to take any concession in relation to its lease contracts, therefare that this modification has
not had an impact on the Bank's Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Il. Mew accounting standards and instructions issued by both the Commission for the Financial Market (CMF) and by the Intermnational
Accounting Standards Board that have not come into effect as of December 31, 2020,

As of the closing date of these financial statements, new International Financial Reporting Standards had been published as well as interpretations of
them, which were not mandatery as of Decemnber 31, 2020, Although in some cases the early application is permitted by the 1ASE, the Bank has not
taken that option.

1. Accounting Standards issued by the current Financial Market Commission (CMF), exSuperintendency of Banks and Financial
Institutions.

Circular N * 2243 - Compendium of Accounting Standards for Banks, On December 20, 2019, the CMF issued the updated version of the
compendium of accounting standards for banks (CNCB), which mainly incorporates the new moedifications intreduced by the International
Accounting Standards to the international financial reporting standards [IFRS) in recent years, particularly IFRS 9, 15 and 16, also establishes new
limitations or precisions due to the need to follow more prudential criteria (ie. Chapter 5 of impairment of IFRS 9) that are detailed in chapter A-2.
The amendments seek greater convergence with IFRS, imprave financial information disclosures and contribute to the transparency of the banking
system. On April 20, 2020, the CMF issued Circular Mo, 2249 that postpones the entry into farce of the new CNCB from January 1, 2011 with a
transition date of January 1, 2027 for purposes of comparative financial statements in March 2022. Additionally, the change of criteria for the
suspension of the recognition of income for interest and readjustments (chapter B-2), must be adopted no later than January 1, 2022, with the
transition date the beginning of any previous month as of such date, recording the impact against equity and revealing the date on which this
criterion was adopted.

During 2020, the Bank has conducted an implementation plan for the new compendium based an a diagnosis where, through an exhaustive anaiysis, it
allowed us to determine the impacts generated at the systems level, availability of information, chart of accounts, financigl statements and disclosures. ,
amang others and to be able to elobarate an implementation plan and governance af the project that allows us to dimension the tasks to be executed,
deadlines and necessary efforts, and to te able to contral this pracess in an optimal way, commumicating the advances and situations identified to the
senior administration, which i s strongly involved in this process. At the end of 2020, we abserved significant progress in the defined implementation
plan, wiere we do nol see mafor inconvenignces to face its culmination during 2021,

Circular N * 2283 - Promotion of market discipline and transparency through the disclosure of information requirements from banking
entities (Pillar 3). Incorporates Chapter 21-20 to the Updated Compilation of Standards. Issued on December 1, 2020, this regulation
introduces the requirements for banking institutions to disclose information regarding their position and capital structure in a single format, in order
to reduce information asymmetries, To do this, banking entities must publish the Pillar 3 document independently or together with their financial
statements, reporting each of the tables and forms established in the standard, this will allow the market and users of the information a better
evaluation of the situation of each entity when knowing the risk profile of local banking institutions. This regulation becomes effective as of
December 1, 2022, and must be published for the first time in 2023 (15t quarter). The Bank is evaluating the impact of this regulation and will include
it in the wark table on the subject.

2. Accounting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments - On July 24, 2014, the 1ASE published the final version of IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments, including the regulations
already issued together with 2 new expected loss model and minor modifications to the classification and measurement requirements for financial
assets, adding a new category of financial instruments: assets at fair value with changes in other comprehensive result for certain debt instruments. It
also includes an additional guide on how to apply the business madel and testing of contractual cash flow characteristics,

On October 12, 2017, "Amendment to [FRS S: Characteristics of Anticipated Cancellation with Negative Compensation” was published, which clarifies
that according to the current requirements of IFRS 9, the conditions established in Test SPPI are not met if the Bank should make a settlement
payment when the client decides to terminate the credit. With the introduction of this madification, in relation to termination rights, it is allowed to
measure at amortized cost {or FYOCI) in the case of negative compensation,

At the local level, the CMF of Banks has established that this standard is part of the new CNCE applicable as of January 1, 2021, except in relation to
the impairment of financial instruments {chapter 5.5) and paragraphs 5.4.1 (3} and {b), 5.4.3. and 5.4.4, regarding placements {"Debt from Banks" and
"Credits and accounts receivable from customers”, or contingent credits), since the criteria for these topics are defined in chapters B-1 and B-2 of the
aferementioned Compendium .
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Amendments to IFRS 10 and 1AS 28 - Sale and Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture - On
september 11, 2014, the 1458 published this amendment, which clarifies the scope of the gains and losses recognized in a transaction that involves
1o an associate or joint venture, and that this depends on whether the asset sold or contribution constitutes a business. Therefore, the IASE
concluded that all of the gains or losses should be recognized against the loss of contral of a business, Likewise, profits or losses resulting from the
sale ar contribution of a non-business subsidiary (IFRS 3 definition) to an associate or joint venture must be recognized only to the extent of
unrelated interests in the associate or businass set.

This standard was initially effective as of January 1, 2016, however, on December 17, 2015 the |ASB issued "Effective Date of Amendment to IFRS 10
and 145 28" indefinitely postponing the entry into force of this standard.

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts - This regulation issued on May 18, 2017, establishes principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of insurance contracts issued. It also requires similar principles to apply 1o reinsurance contracts held and investment contracts issued with
discretionary participation components. IFRS 17 supersedes IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts,

IFRS 17 will apply to annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2021, Its early application is permitted. This rule does not apply directly to the
Bark, however, the Bank has an interest in the insurance business and will ensure that this rule is applied correctly and in a timely manner.

Medification to 1AS 1 - Classification of liabilities as current and non-current - On January 23, 2020 the IASBE issued this modification that
affects only the presentation of liabilities in the statement of financial position, The classification as current or non-current should be based on the
rights existing at the end of the reporting period and align the wording in all the affected paragraphs by referring to the right to defer settlement for
at least 12 months and specify that only the rights in force at the end The reporting pericd affects the classification of a liability. Along the same
limes, it clarifies that the classification is not affected by the expectations of whether an entity will exercise its right to defer the settlement of a
liability and makes it clear that the settlement refers to the transfer to the counterparty of cash, equity instruments , other assets or services. This
modification is effective as of January 1, 2022 with retroactive effect, and early application allowed. The Bank's administration will evaluate the
impact that this rule will have on the presentation of the statement of situation.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020. On May 15, 2020, the 1A5B issued the following improvements;

- IFRS 1 First Adoption of IFRS's - Subsidiary as first-time adopter; the amendment allows a subsidiary that applies paragraph D16

(a) of IFRS 1 measure the accumulated differences using the amounts reported by its parent, based on the date.

- IFRS 2 Financial Instruments - Fees in the “10% test” for derecognition of financial liabilities: The amendment clarifies that Fees should include an
entity when it applies the “10% test” in paragraph B3.3.6 of IFRS 9 when assessing derecognition of a financial liability. A entity will include only
commissions paid and received between the entity (the debtor) and the lender, including commissions paid and received by the entity or the lender
on behalf of athers,

- IFRS 16 Leases - Lease Incentives: The amendment ta llustrative Example 13 that accompanies IFRS 16 removes from the example the illustration
of reimbursement of impravements to the landlord to resabve any possible confusion regarding the treatment of leasing that may arise because of
how lease incentives are illustrated in that example,

- |AS 41 Agriculture - Taxes on fair value measurement: the amendment eliminates the requirement of paragraph 22 of |45 41 for entities

exclude cash flows from taxes when measuring the fair value of a biological asset using the present value technigue. This will guarantes

consistency with the requirements of IFRS 13.

The improvements to IFRS 1, IFRS % and 145 41 are effective as of lanuary 1, 2022, with earlier application permitted, The amendment to IFRS 16 only
refers to an illustrative example, so it does not set an effective date. The Bank's management will evaluate the impact that this standard

will have on the presentation of the situation.

Improvements to 1AS 16 Property, plant and equipment - Income before intended use. On May 15, 2020, the 1ASE published this improvement,
which prohibits deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any income fram the sale of items produced while they are
located and placed in the necessary conditions for it to operate. in the manner intended by management. Instead, an entity recognizes the income
from the sale of those items and the cost of producing them, in profit or loss. This amendment is effective as of January 1, 2022, with early
application permitted, The Bank's administration will evaluate the impact that this regulation will have on the presentation of the statement of
situation.

Medification 1AS 37 - Onerous contracts, costs of fulfilling a contract. On May 15, 2020, the 1ASE published this amendment, which establishes
that the cost of fulfilling a contract caomprises the costs that are directly related to the contract. The costs that are directly related to a contract can
be incremental casts of fulfilling that contract {(examples wauld be direct labor, materials) or an allacation of other costs that are directly related to
the fulfillment of contracts (an example would be the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used to
fulfill the contract). This amendment is effective as of January 1 2022, with early application allowed. The Bank's management will evaluate the
impact that this standard will have on the presentation of the statement situation,
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Maodification to IFRS 3 - Reference to the conceptual framework. On May 15, 2020 the 1458 published this amendment which updates IFRS 3 1o
refer to the 2018 Conceptual Framework instead of the 1989 Framework, Additionally, it adds to IFRS 3 a reguirement for transactions and other
events within the scope of 1A5. 37 or IFRIC 21, for an acquirer to apply 1AS 37 or IFRIC 21 (instead of the Conceptual Framework) in identifying
liabilities assumed in a business combination, and adds an explicit statement stating that an acquirer should not recognize assets contingents
acquired in a business combination. This amendment is effective as of lanuary 1, 2022, with early application permitted. The Bank's management will
evaluate the impact that this standard will have on the presentation of the balance sheet.

Reform of the benchmark interest rate. Phase 2 - On August 27, 2020 the IASE has finalized its response to the ongoing rate refarm of interbank
offer (IBOR) and other reference interest rates by issuing a package of amendments to IFRS Standards. The The amendments are intended to help
companies provide investors with useful information on the effects of the reform on the states financial institutions of those companies. The
amendments caomplement those issued in 2019 and focus on the effects on the financial statements when a company replaces the rate of reference
interest for an alternative reference rate as a result of the refarm.

The modifications of this final phase refer to:

+  changes in contractual cash flows: a company will not have to derecognise or adjust the carrying amount of instruments due to the
changes required by the reform, but will update the effective interest rate to reflect the change to the reference rate alternative;

«  hedge accounting - a business will not have to discontinue its hedge accounting just because it makes the changes required by the
reform, if the hedge meets the other hedge accounting criteria; ¥

= disclosures: a company will be required to disclose information about new risks arising from the reform and how it manages the transition
at alternative reference rates.

These amendments are effective for annual reparting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2021, and early adoption is permitted. The Bank has
been warking since 2019 on the transition of different risk-free reference rates (hereinafter alsa "RFR"), including the LIBOR rate. In this context, the
Bank’s work plan includes the identification of the impacted customers, the impacted areas, the various risks to which the Bank is exposed, the
determination of work teams regarding each risk, the invalvement of the high administration in a robust project governance plan and an action plan
for each of the impacted / identified risk areas, which will allow us to face the challenges imposed by the changes in the reference rates,
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NOTE 02
ACCOUNTING CHANGES

Az of the date of these Consolidated Financial Statements, there are no accounting changes to disclose.
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NOTE 03
SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

Az of December 31, 2020, the following significant events have occurred and affected the Bank's operations and Consolidated Financial Statements,
a) The Board

On March 23, 2020, in an extraordinary session of the Board of Directors, it was agreed to modify the summaons to the Crdinary Sharehalders
Meeting, initially scheduled for April 21, 2020 and to establish a new date far April 30, 2020, with the in arder to propose a new distribution of
profits and payment of dividends, taking it from the 60% anginally proposed to 30% of the retained earnings as of December 31, 2019 eguivalent to
5 D.BTES1310 per share and to propose that 30% of the profits for the fiscal year 2019 is destined to retained earnings and the remaining 40% is
destined to increase the Bank's reserves,

In accordance with Chilean laws (articles 9@ and 10 of Law Mo, 18,045, and the provisions of Amicle 147 of Law 18,0486), the Board of Directors of
Banco Santander agreed, on the session held on October 21, 2020, 1o call an Extracrdinary Shareholders’ Meeting for November 26, 2020 in order to
discuss the proposed distribution of a dividend of $0.87891310 Chilean pesos per share, corresponding to 30% of the profits for the year 2019,
which are classified as retained profits in the Bank's equity, taking into account that, the ratio between the Bank's regulatory capital and its
riskweighted assets reached 15.13%, and the ratio between basic capital and its risk-weighted assets was 10.70% as of September 30, 2020.

b) Shareholders Meeting

At the Ordinary Shareholders' Meeting of Banco Santander-Chile held on April 30, 2020, together with approving the Financial Statements for the
year 2019, it was agreed to distribute 30% of the net profits for the year (which are called in the financial statements * Profit attributable to equity
holders of the Bank *), which amounted to § 552,003 million, Said profits correspond to a dividend of $ 0.67891310 for each share. Likewise, it was
approved that the remaining 40% of the profits be destined to increase the Bank's reserves and the remaining 209 be destined to retained earnings
from previous years.

Board Election: the election of Messrs. Alfonse Gémez, Claudio Melandr, Rodriga Vergara, Félis de Vicente, Orlando Poblete, Juan Pedra Santa
Maria, Ana Dorrego, Rodngo Echenique and Lucia Santa Cruz, as Regular Directors, and Blanca Bustamante and Oscar voan Chrismar, as Alternate
Directors, who will hold their pasitions for a peried of three years until the next renewal of the entire Board of Directors,

Appointment of external auditors: the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers Consultores Auditores Spa as external auditors for the 2020 financial
year is approved.

At the Extraordinary Shareholders' Meeting of Banco Santander-Chile held on November 26, 2020, it was agreed to distribute a dividend of §
0BTES1310 per share, carresponding to 30% of the retained earnings of fiscal year 2019, correspanding to MM § 165,279 which was paid the bank
business day follewing the halding of the Meeting.

c) COVID-19

Coronavirus COVID-19 ar SARS CoV-2 iz a highly cantagious infectious disease, which was first detected in Wuhan, China during December 2019,
Subseguently, on March 11, 2020, the Organizacion Mundial de |a Salud (OMS) declared as a pandemic. In Chile, on March 18, 2020, the President of
the Republic decreed a state of naticnal catastrophe to implement sanitary and econemic measures in this regard,

As a consequence of this pandemic, there have been falls in the financial markets and an increasing threat of recession. To mitigate this impact, lacal
and internatianal arganizations have published certain aid measures.

On March 23, 2020, the CPM published a package of measures aimed at granting greater flexibility to the financial system:

+ Regulatory treatment that facilitates the possibility of deferring up to three installments in the payment of maortgage loans.

» Facilities for banks to make loan terms for SME debtors more flexible up to 6 months,

» Possibility of using surplus mortgage guarantees to guarantee loans to SMEs,

« Extension of terms for the disposal of Assets received in lieu of payment {Circular Mo, 2247, see Note 1 letter z).

* Treatment of the variation margin of dervatives (Circular N ° 2248, see Mate 1 letter 2 and Mote N * 22 Basel capital requiremernts).

On April 2, 2020, the CMF published additional transitary measures for the treatment of provisions. The new measures seek to provide an accaunting
framework for the rescheduling of credit, facilitate its conditions and avoid computing higher provisions.
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NOTE 03
SIGMIFICANT EVENTS, continued

The exceptional treatment will be in force until July 31, 2020 and considers the freezing of provisions in the following situations:

» Mortgage: the maxzimum grace period or dividend extension will be & months for those debtors who are up to date or have a
arrears not exceeding 30 days within the period of validity indicated,

+ Commercial: the maximum grace ar extension period will be 4 months for thaze debtars who are up to date or have a default of no mare than 30
days or a fee within the indicated period of validity.

» Consumer; the maximum grace or extension period will be 3 months for those debters who are up to date or have a default of no mare than 30
days within the indicated period of validity.

In addition, the CMF requests that measures be taken to facilitate customer and user service, and maintain adequate risk management palicies and
establish prudent dividend distribution policies, given the situation,

On April 12, 2020, the Government of Chile announced a program, prior agreement with the country's main banks, to provide access to Fagape
Covid-19 lines that provide working capital financing with better conditions {rate and grace period ) to natural or legal persons, who are
entrepreneurs ar companies, that have been affected as a result of the pandemic. In relation to the credits that are granted under the Fogape Covid-
19 program, the provisions of the credits in installments of the debtor that are rescheduled, and that meet the established conditions, may remain
constant during the grace or rescheduling period that granted by the financial institution. This for up to a period of six months, For its part, the Bank
has conducted exhaustive reviews of the rescheduled portfolio and Fogape operations, and has decided to establish additional provisions (see letter
4

The aid measures that the Bank has granted in the current pandemic context are classified into new operations granted under Fogape guaranteos
and rescheduled operations:

As of December 31, 2020

Covid-19 Mchs
Operations with Fogape guarantes 2,076,119
Reschedulings 9,098,028

The rescheduling mainly affected mortgage operations, and included the rescheduling of principal, interest, readjustments and related insurance.
The rescheduled installments were added at the end of the ariginal maturity of the operation.

The vaccination plan against COVID-19 began on December 24, 2020, with the first arrival of 9750 doses of the vaccine from the Pfizer BioMtech
laboratory. As of December 31, 2020, Chile had received 154,050 doses of the Pfizer BioMNtech vaceing, for the vaccination plan in all regions of the
country, and will receive more than 6.5 millien doses of the AstraZeneca / Oxford vaccine during the first quarter of 2021 and mare than 10 million
of Coronavac vaccines, to continue the vaccination plan in its next stages. At the time of publication of these financial statements, 2,320,696 peopls
have been vaccinated in Chile, which represents 13% of the population. During the first quarter of 2021, it is expected to vaccinate around 5 million
pecple and reach 80% of the population, that is, approximately 15 million people, by the end

of the first half of 2021.

Central Bank of Chile

On April 9, 2020, the Central Bank of Chile (BCCh) announced mew measures to support the operation of financial markets, which are indicated below:

+ Extension af terms in liquidity management programs in pesas and dollars through REPO, FX - Swap operatiens to 4,000 million and US 5 4,500 million in NDF.

+ Transitory modification of the monetary reserve regulations, expanding the constitution of the reserve requirement in foreign currency obligations from US
dollars ta euros, ven and Chilean pesos,

+ Temporary adjustment of liquidity requirements for banking companies, suspending compliance with the requirements for mismatches of terms (30 and 30
days) and making it easier to regulate and comply with the short-term lguidity limit (LCR), in coordination with the CME, which will remain 70% of by 2020,

d) Laws and Regulation

On February 24, 2020, the law that modernizes the tax system is published in the Official Gazette. Among other aspects, this new regulation implies
modifications to the Income Tax Law, madifications to the Value Added Tax (WAT) and madifications to the Tax Code.
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NOTE 03
SIGMIFICANT EVENTS, continued

On March 30, 2020, the CMF reports flexbility in the implementation deadlines of Basel Il In coordination with the Central Bank of Chile, they
resglved to postpone by one year the implementation of the capital requirements required by the regulation and to maintain the general regulatory
framework in force for bank capital requirements until December 2021.

At the end of March 2020, the Central Bank established the Conditional Credit Facility to Increase Loans (FCIC) and the Liguidity Line of Credit (LCL)
programs. These are lines for banks, with resources and incentives far them to continue financing and refinancing loans to househalds and
companies, especially those that do not have access to the capital market. The imitial amaount is equivalent to US § 4.8 billion and may increase, as
loans increase, In turn, the additional line has a growth margin of four times the initial line, equivalent to US $ 19.2 billion, which would bring the
total closer to US & 24 billion, This measure also considers the expansion of collateral to access this facility, including a portfolio of commercial loans
of individual evaluation, categories A1 to A3 (see note 13),

On April 20, 2020, the CMF announced that it would postpone the entry into force of the new CMCEB from January 1, 2022 with a transition date of
lanuwary 1, 20271 for purposes of comparative financial statements in March 2022, However , the change of criteria for the suspension of the
recognition of incame for interests and readjustments (chapter B-2), must be adopted ne later than January 1, 2022, with the transition date the
beginning of any month prior to such date, recording impact against equity and revealing the date on which this criterion was adopted.

On May 29, 2020, Law Mo, 21234 was published, which limits the lizbility of holders or users of payment cards and electronic transactions in the
event of loss, theft, theft or fraud. The Law establishes that the burden of proof for operations that the user is unaware of having authorized will
always fall on the issuer. The only record of the operations will not be enough, necessarily, to demonstrate that it was authorized by the user, nor
that the user acted with fault or carelessness that are attributable to him, The issuer must proceed to cancel charges or restitution of funds within a
period of 5 business days from the date of the claim, if the amount is less than 35 UF or 7 additional days for higher amounts. Additionally, issuers
are prohibited from offering insurance whose coverage corresponds to risks that must be assumed by the issuer in accordance with the new law.

Financial portability: The Law that regulates the financial partability of clients was published in the Official Gazette on June 9, 2020 wath effect fram
490 days later. The main purpase of this Law is ta facilitate the client's change of financial provider. The Bank is adjusting its processes and cantrols to
comply with the aforementioned Law.

e) Cnmpanies

on March 20, 2020, Klare Corredora de Seguros 5.4, received notification from the CMF of its registration in the Registry of Assistants of the
Insurance Trade as 2 General and Life Insurance Broker. Currently the company operates under the modality of a 100% digital Insurance Broker.

On July 6, 2020, it was communicated through an essential event that Banco Santander Chile has attended the registration of a new company called
“Saciedad operadora de Tarjeta de Pago Santander Getnet Chile SA°, prior authorization granted by the CMF through of Resolution Ma. 3223 dated
June 30, 2020, whose purpose is the operation of credit cards, debit cards and payment cards with provision of funds, in accordance with the
provisions of the requlations of the Central Bank of Chile and the CMF. This is a subsidiary company and support to the business of Banco
Santander-Chile, which has a 99.99% stake together with Santander Asesorias Financieras Limitada with a 0.01% stake.

A Material Event published on December 22, 2020, disclosed that “Sociedad Operadora de Tarjetas de Pago Santander Getnet Chile 5.0, called for
an Extraordinary Sharehalders’ Meeting for lanuary 7, 2021, The purpose was to discuss the monetary contribution and the analysis and appraisal of
the assets that shareholders will contribute, account for the aperations in scope of Title XV of Law 18,046, and other social interest agreements and
granting powers ta comply with the resolutions reached in this meeting.

On Decernber 30, 2020, Banco Santander-Chile, made a capital contribution to “Socedad Operadora de Tarjeta de Pago Santander Getnet Chile 54"
by MChs 4,273,

1) Issuance of bank bonds
1.1) Senior bonds

During December 2020, the Bank has issued current bonds for USD 750,000,000, The detail of the placements made during the current year is
included in Mote 19.

Term Issuance rate Maturity
Series Currency Issue date Amount
{years) (Annual) % date
uso uso 5 270 01-07-2020 750,000,000 01-07-2035
Tatal uso 50,000,000

Consolidate Financlal Statements December 2020 / Banco Santander-Chile 45




Banco Santander-Chile and Subsidiaries

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AS OF DECEMEBER 31, 2020 AMD 2019

NOTE 03
SIGMIFICANT EVENTS, continued

1.2) Subordinated bonds

During December 2020, the Bank has issued current bonds for USD 200,000,000 and UF 5,000,000, The detail of the placements made during the
current year is included in Note 16.

Series Currency T8rm RsStuancel rate Issue date Amount Mt
(years) (Annual) % date
usD usn 10 379 01-21-2020 200,000,000 01-21-2030
Tatal uso 200,000,000
USTDWZD320 UF 15 and 3 months 3.50 03-01-2080 5,000,000 09-01-2035
Taral UF 5,000,000

g) Others

The Bank's Board of Directors approved the constitution of additional voluntary provisions in order to mitigate eventual future effects of the current
health crisis on the Bank's loan portfolio, these are the dates and amounts of approval:

« June 2020 for MCh $ 30,000

« July 2020 for MM § 30,000,

= Qctober 2020 for MM § 25,004,

= December 2020 for MM § 25,000,

The additional provisions were distributed in MCh 3 90,000 for provisions on the commercial portfalio, MCh § 10,000 for provisions on the mortgage
portfolio and MCh § 10,000 for provisions an the consumer portfolio.
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NOTE 04
REPORTING SEGMENTS

The Bank manages and measures the performance of its operations by business segments, The infarmation disclosed in this note is not necessarily
comparable to that of other financial institutions, since it is based on management’s internal information system by segment.

Inter-segment transactions are cenducted under normal arm's length commercial terms and conditions. Each segment's assets, liabilities, and
incame include items directly attributable to the segment to which they can be allocated on a reasonable basis. A business segment comprises
clients ta wham a differentiated product offering is directed but which are homageneous in terms of their performance and which is meazured in a
similar way.

In order to achieve compliance with the strategic objectives established by senior management and adapt to changing market conditions, from time
to time, the Bank makes adjustments in its organization, modifications that in turn impact to a greater or lesser extent, in the way in which it is
managed. As such, current disclosure provides infarmation for all periods presented on how the Bank is managed as of December 31, 2020,

The Bank has the reportable segments noted below:

Retail Banking

Consists of individuals and small to middle-sized entities (SMEs) with annual income less than Ch$2,000 millien. This segment gives customers a
variety of services, including consumer loans, credit cards, auto loans, commercial loans, foreign exchange, mortgage loans, debit cards, checking
accounts, savings products, mutual funds, stockbrokerage, and insurance brokerage. Additionally the SME clients are offered government-
guaranteed lpans, leasing and factaring,

Middle-market

This segment is made up of companies and large corporations with annual sales exceeding Ch$2,000 million. It serves institutions such as
universities, government entities, local and regional governments and companies engaged in the real estate industry who carry out projects to sell
properties to third parties and annual zales exceeding Ch$800 million with no upper limit. The companies within this segment have access to many
products including commercial loans, leasing, factoring, foreign trade, credit cards, mortgage loans, checking accounts, transactional services,
treasury services, financial consulting, savings products, mutual funds, and insurance brokerage. Alse companies in the real estate industry are
offered specialized services to finance residential projects, with the aim of expanding sales of mortgage loans.

Global Corporate Banking

This segment consists of foreign and domestic multinational companies with sales over Ch$10,000 million. The companies within this segment have
access to many products including commercial loans, leasing, factoring, foreign trade, credit cards, mortgage loans, checking accounts, transactional
services, treasury services, financial consulting, investments, savings products, mutual funds and insurance brokerage.

This segment also consists of a Treasury Division which provides sophisticated financial products, mainly to companies in the Middle-market and
Global Corporate Banking segments. These include products such as short-term financing and fund raising, brokerage services, dervatives,
securitization, and ather tallor-made products, The Treasury area may act as brokers to transactions and also manages the Bank's investment
portfolio.
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NOTE 04
REPORTIMG SEGMENTS, continued

F: ivities ("Other”

This segment mainly incledes the results of cur Financial Management Division, which develops glebal management functions, including managing
inflation rate risk, foreign currency gaps, interest rate risk and liquidity risk. Liquidity risk is managed mainly through wholesale deposits, debt
issuances and the Bank's available for sale portfolio. This segment alio manages capital allocation by unit. These activities usually result in a negative
contribution to inceme.

In addition, this segment encompasses all the intra-segment income and all the activities not assigned to a given segment or product with
customers,

The segments’ accounting policies are those described in the summany of accounting policies. The Bank earns most of its incame in the form of
interest income, fee and commission income and income from financial operations. To evaluate a segment’s financial performance and make
decisions regarding the resources to be assigned to segments, the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) bases his assessment on the segment's
interest income, fee and commissien income, and expenses.

Below are the tables showing the Bank's results by business segment, for the periods ending as of December 31, 2020 and 201%:

December 31, 2020

Loans and
accounts
receivable Met fee and Financial
from Net interest commission transactions,  Provision for Support Segment's
customers income incame net loan losses EXpPERSEs net
{1) (2) (2} contribution
MCh$ MCht MCh3 MCh3 MCh$ MCh3 MCh$
Retail Banking 24,279,248 1,049,543 213431 28,051 [253,261) (596.464) 441.300
Middle-market B.136,402 346,225 38,335 18,311 [105,846) {91132 2058593
Glabal Corparate Banking 1,704,454 114,229 23,180 78,185 [43,295) {72.715) 93564
Other 2B9.026 83,851 [7.668) 17,058 [102,671) (3.235) {17665}
Taotal 34,405,170 1,593,848 267,278 141,585 {511,073) (T68,546) 723,092
Othar aperating incomae 21,652
Other operating expenses (92.446)
Income from investments in associates and other companies 1,388
Income tax axpense (131,123}
Result of continuous operations 522,563
Result of discontinued operations -
Met income for the peried 522,563

(1) Loens recervable from customers plus the balance indebted by banks, without deducting their allowances for loan losses,
(2} The sum of net income (expense) from financial operations and foreign exchange gains or losses,
{3} The sum of personnel salaries and axpenses, administrative axpenses, depreciation and amartization.

Consolidate Financial Statements December 2020 / Banco Santander-Chile 48




B ————
Banco Santander-Chile and Subsidiaries
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AS OF DECEMEBER 31, 2020 AMD 2019

MNOTE 04
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December 31, 2019

Loans and
accounts
receivable Met fiee and Financial
from Het interest commission  transactions,  Provision for Suppart Segment’s
customers income Income net loan losses EHPENSEs met
{1) {2) (3) contribution
MCh$ MCh% MChS MChS MCht MChs MChS
Retail Banking 22,918,568 960,248 230,627 30,097 {374,842) (575,511} 270819
middle-rnarket B053,456 296,587 38,712 17,174 42.812) (97.054) 214611
Global Carporate Banking 1,671,662 98,154 29,103 94,761 (758) (65,343) 155,817
Other 48,005 50,662 {11,356) 54,983 {2,235) (11,953 99,301
Total 32,731,735 1,416,851 287,086 207,018 (420,447) (749,861) 740,648
Other upcraling PR 24 50K
Other operating expenses (63.747)
Income from investments in associates and other companies 1,146
Income tax axpense (150,168}
Result of continuous operations 552,477
Result of discontinued operations 1,659
Het income for the period 554,176

(1} Loans receivable from customers plus the balance indebted by banks, without deducting their allowances for loan losses.
(2} The sum of net incorme (expense) from financial operations and forelgn exchange gains or losses,
(3} The sum of persennel salaries and expenses, administrative expenses, depreciation and amortization
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NOTE 05
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

a)  The detail of the balances included under cash and cash equivalents is as follows:

As of
December 31,
2020 2019
MCh$ MChS
Cash and depaosit in banks
Casgh BBS 39T 861,178
Depaosit in the Central Bank of Chile 1.313,3%4 1.731.079
Deposit in domestic banks 1,57 948
Deposit in foraign banks B22,926 961,315
Subtotal 2,803,288 3,554,520
Cash items in process of collection, net 41,332 156614
Cash and cash equivalents 2,894,620 3,711,334

The balance of funds held in cash and at the Central Bank of Chile reflects the reserves that the Bank must maintain on average each month.

b) Operations in process of settlement:

Operations in process of settlerment are transactions with only settlement pending, which will increase or decrease the funds of the Central Bank of
Chile or of banks abread, usually within the next 24 or 48 working hours to each end of operation. These operations are as follows:

As of
December 31,
2020 2019
MCh$ MChs
Assets
Documents held by other banks (decumeant to be cleared) 137366 217304
Funds receivable 315567 137 668
Subtotal 452,963 355,062
Liahilities
Funds payable 361,631 106 245
Subtotal 361,631 198,248
Cash items in process of collection, net 91,332 156,814
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MOTE 06
TRADING INVESTMENTS

The detail of instruments deemed as financial trading investments is as follows:

As of
December 31,
2020 2019
MCh§ MChS

Chilean Central Bank and Government securities
Chilean Central Bank Bonds 419 1,952
Chilean Central Bank Motes E :
Other Chilean Central Bank and Government securities 131,827 266,252
Subtotal 132,246 270,204

Other Chilean securities
Time deposits in Chilean financial institutions
Mortgage finance bonds of Chilean financial instituticns
Chilean financial institutions bonds -
Chilean corporate bonds 1472
Other Chilean securities -
Subtotal 1,472 -

Foreign financial securities
Fareign Central Banks and Government securities
Qther foreign financial instrumants - -
Subtetal - -

Investments in mutual funds
Funds managed by related entities
Funds managed by third parties - -
Subtetal - -

Total 133,718 270,204

Az of December 31, 2020 and 2019, there were no trading investments sold under contracts to resell to clients and financial institutions.
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NOTA 07
INVESTMENTS UNDER RESALE AGREEMENTS AND OBLIGATION UNDER REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

a)  As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Bank does not have investment under resale agresments,
b) Obligations arising from repurchase agreements

The Bank raises funds by selling financial instruments and committing itself to buy them back at future dates, plus interest at a predetermined rate.
Az of December 31, 2020 and 2019, obligations related to instruments sold under repurchase agreements are as follaws:

Az of December 31,

2020 2019
From 1 day Maore tan 3 More From 1 day Maore than 3 Mare
and less tan months and less than and less than3 months and bess than 1
3 maonth than 1 year Tyear Tatal maonth than 1 year year Total
MChE MChE MChE MChS MChS MChE MChE MCh%

Securities from the Chilean Govemment
and the Chilean Central Banbk:
Chilean Central Bank Bonds .
Chibean Central Bank Modes 461961 - - 461,361 =
Crther securities from the Govemmant
and the Chilean Central Bank

SOT.448 - g 507,448 THEN 13 i 375,924

Subtatal 963,409 = = 269,409 378,831 3z - 378,924

Instrumants from other domastic
institutions:

Timedeposits in Chilean fancial

instituticns

Maortgage finance bands of Chilean = - - - =

financial instibutions

Chilean fnancial ingtitutions bonds - = - s =

Chilean corporate bonds - - - - &

Other Chalean sacurities - - - =

395 - = 393 127 4 3 131

Forgign financial securities: 5 =
Farelgn government of central bank
securitins
Orther foreign Chilean securites - - . - 5
Subtatal . - .
Investments in mutual funds: - - s E & i i 3
Funds managed by related entities - - - - .
Funds managed by ather - E . - -

Subtotal = ke - % =

Totales 965,808 = = 565,202 320,018 ar . 380,055
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NOTA N"07
INVESTMENTS UMDER RESALE AGREEMENTS AND OBLIGATIOMN UMDER REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS, continued

€]  Below is the detail by portfolio of collateral associated with repurchase agreements as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, value at fair
value:

As of December 31,
2020 019

Available for Available for Trading
sale portfolic  Trading pertfelio Total sale portfolic portiolie Total
Mchs MCh$ MChE mchi KChS MChs

Securities fram the Chilean Geverment and the Chilean
Central Bank:
Chilean Central Bank Bonds B 5 E 2 = b
Chilzan Central Bank Mates 4651965 461,965 = 5 G
Cither securities from the Govemment and
the Chilean Central Bank

507543 = 507,543 3va0z4 N ATeSd

Subtokal 959,508 = 965,508 T84 - aTh a2

Other Chilean securites:

Time deposits in Chilean financial

institutions

marigage linance bond of Chilean

fimancial institutions

Chilean financial institution bonds = = F B = =

Chilean corporate bands . - - .

Other Chilean sefuritses = - E - - -
Substotal 339 - 399 131 - 13

399 - 399 131 - 131

Foreign financial securities:
Foreign Central Bank and Government 2 = i
securitics ) ) °
Other Fareign finandial instraments - - f - E 3
Subtotal . = n B

Tatalis 69,907 = 969,907 180,055 - 180,055

M
L
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AS OF DECEMEBER 31, 2020 AMD 2019

NOTE 08
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING

a)  Asof December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Bank holds the following portfolio of derivative instruments:

As of December 31, 2020

Motional amount Fair value
More than 3
Upto 3 months to Mare tham
Moaonths 1 year 1 year Tatal Assets Liabilities
MCh$ MCh$ MChE MChS MChS MCh$

Fair value hedge derivatives
Currency forwards - - 5 - . E
Interest rate Swaps 50,000 A06E7 SOE4113 5,524, 800 33816 83,666
Cross curmency swaps AT AN G0n.5a7 5434700 B,554,087 294,562 178524
Call currency options - - - e - B
Call interest rate aptions - = - - - -
Put currency options
Put interest rate options - - - . - .
Interest rate futures - - . - - -
Other derivatives . . . .

Subtotal 367,400 1,012,674 10,698,813 12,078 887 328,378 262,195
Cash flow hedge dervatives
Currency forwards 2121328 503,280 601,582 3,226,188 2985 3,556
Interest rate swaps - = 2 - - -
Crass CUITEncy swWaps 434350 A8 3T 7377 491 10,700,222 35,90 TR 386
Call currency options - - - 5 - 5
Call interest rate options - - - = 5 =
Put currency options
Put interest rate options - - - - - E:
Intarast rate futures . - . .
Other derivatives -

Subtotal 2,545,684 1,001,653 10,373,073 13,926,410 38,687 186,942
Trading derivatives
Currency forwards 22729787 12,175,074 B.215,576 43,120,437 1,085.327 1,158.904
Interast rate swaps 14,006,503 22118742 a7 803,004 133,928 254 3,651,651 3,588912
Cross curmency swaps LR ] 15138056 138352345 160,209,466 3521440 3.819.436
Call CUfrency opliang 129330 31,641 57,581 218,561 1,527 a0
Call interest rate options. - 5 - . - -
Put currency cptions 112,145 16173 58,276 136,554 4875 1,552
Pul interast rate optiong - E ) - g e
Interast rate futures - - - . - =
Other derivatives - - L - 2 =

Subtotal 43,696,839 43,473,686 244,486,787 337,663,312 2,664,820 8,569,523
Total 46,609,923 51,454,013 265,564,673 363,668,600 9,032,085 9018660
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Banco Santander-Chile and Subsidiaries
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AS OF DECEMEER 31, 2020 AMD 2019

NOTE 08
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AMD HEDGE ACCOUNTING, continued

Az of December 31, 2019
Motional amount Fair value
More than 3
Upto3 months to Maore than
maonths 1 year 1 year Total Assets Liabilities
MCh MChs MChs MChS MChS MCh$

Fair value hedge derivatives
Currency farmards - - = 7 - -
Interest rate swaps 163 EYRR ] 1847134 2,546,386 EEEL 064
Cross currenty Swaps 07,008 863, %34 13357058 14,628,050 226,870 285,281
Call currency apticns - . - - - -
Callinterest rate options .
Put currency options - - - - =
Put interest rate options = - = - -
Interest rate futures
Cther dervatives - - - - - -

Subtotal THE, 646 1, 181,594 15,204,186 17174436 266,330 329,545
Cash flow hedge derivatives
Currency farwards 95,105 1B GE5E TEE 256 1,886,017 4,131 3,505
Interest rate swaps - - - - - .
Cross Currenty Swaps 2.266,507 1938222 10,848,233 15,053,362 196,413 43,183
Call currency options - . . - - -
Call interest rate options - - - - -
Put currency aplaans - - - - - =
Put interest rate options = E - - - -
Interest rate futures - - - - -
Other dernvatives n 3 5 - - -

Subtotal 2,366,012 2,956,878 11,616,489 16,939,379 110,544 46,688
Trading derivatives
Currency forwards 24T, 586 18508, 702 TaT9464 54,660,752 1,023,583 1,137 4%6
Interest rate swaps 16678457 40582503 53,105,046 146,680 442 2465235 2,270,686
Cross curnency swaps TT2ET24 04T 483 113206678 141,390,865 4277430 3605518
Call currency options 17,871 47,012 81,804 146,787 §176 240
Call interest rate options = - " - - -
Put currency optians 16,400 41,872 BOESS 138,936 190 483
Put interest rate options -
Interest rate futures - - - - -
Other dernvatives = £ = = - -

Subtotal 52,912,177 79,947 958 210,157,647 343,017,762 7,771,734 7,014,421
Taotal 56,066,835 84,086,430 236,978,332 377,131,597 8,148,608 7,300,654

N
wn
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AS OF DECEMEER 31, 2020 AMD 2019

NOTE 08

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING, continued

b)  Microhedge accounting

Fair value microhedge

The Bank uses cross-currency swaps, interest rate swaps and call money swaps to hedge its exposure to changes in fair value of hedged items
attributable to interest rates. The afarementioned hedging instruments change the effective cost of long-term issuances from a fived interest rate to

a variable interest rate.

The hedged items and hedge instruments under fair value hedges as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, classified by term to maturity are as follows:

Within 1 year Between 1 and 3 Between 3 and 6 Over 6 years Total
A5 of December 21, 2020 years yRars
PMChS MChi MCh MChE MChS
Hedgad itam
fvailable for sale i it

Chilean Sovereign bonds D587 10687 138,044 243440 &858

sartgage finanoe bands 98 918

Armerican treasury bards - - 17R.118 - 178118

Chilean General treasury bonds - -

Central bark bards (BCPF) - - - -
Time dopesits and ather demand labilities

Time depasits 58238 58,277 116,455
Issued debt instrements

Senior bands B0z 81,349 411283 1220521 4,232,724

Subordinated bonds . 244,363 142454 391,857
Obligations with Banks:

inberank lpans B

Cenbral bank losns - - 3,865.000 - 3,565,000
Taotal 156,948 grim 6,543,356 1,612,455 9,182,930
Hedging instrument

Cross CUmen oy Swaps 35,261 B3548B4 2,056,864 1.220.521 4,209,130

Iberest rate SWaps 0LE8T 5687 o, 456 45 391,934 4,974,800
Total 156,948 BT1,1T1 6,543,156 1,612,455 9,183,930

Within 1 year Batween 1 and 3 Between 3 and 6 Qrver B yoars Total
As of December 31, 2019 yoars years
PAChS MChE MCh MChE MChS
Hedged itam
Available for sale investmicnts

Chilean Soveraign bonds - - 805 334650 400,295

Martgage finandng bands = 2728 = - 2,728

Armerican Treasury bords - - 149474 37,369 186,243

Chilean General freasury bonds DEA GRS 289,369

Central bank bands - 254 685 - - 254 685
Tima dopesits and other domand labllitles

Time degosits 605,259 281921 225515 1,192,695
Issued delit instruments

Loniar bands a51.681 113346498 2,253,402 3324059 7,262,370

Subordinated bonds ke i ) - =
Obligations with Barnbks:

Inbarbank losns - - -
Tatal 1,336,940 1. 362401 2,634,486 3,756,158 9,689,985
Hedging instrumant

Crose cunmency swaps 63T 92 1, E0240 2, 270407 1324099 7,793 509

Interest rate swaps L) JEL.000 ADL0TS 432059 1,206,385

1,326,940 1,862,401 2,634 486 32,756,158 9,689,505

Total
—
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AS OF DECEMEER 31, 2020 AMD 2019

NOTE 08
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AMD HEDGE ACCOUNTING, continued

Cash flow microhedges

The Bank uses cross currency swaps to hedge the risk from variability of cash flows attributable to changes in the interest rates of mortgages, bonds
and interbank loans at a variable rate. To cover the inflation risk in some items, both forwards as well as currency swaps are used,

The notional values of the hedged items as of Decernber 31, 2020 and 2019, and the periads when the cash flows will be generated are as follows:

Within 1 year Batwean 1 and 3 Between 3 and 6 Ouar B ygars Total
Az of December 31, 2020 years years
MCh§ MChS MCh§ MChE MChE
Hedged iterm
Loans and accounts receivables from customers
wbartgage loan 1926918 2EH1A51 261,742 2084180 9,292,791
Commerial loans = = = e .
sl for sale i W5
Time deposits (AS1) - - 42,532 - 42,532
Chilean Sovereign bonds = = ) ] B
Chilean Central Bank bands 1754875 &a1, 731 196428 1,264,094
Time deposits and ather time liabilities
Time depasits
Issued debt instruments
Senior bonds [vaniabde rate) 167430 - - : 167,430
Seniar bands {foed rate} 1,125,253 610,385 543,700 215,865 2,795,203
Interbank barrowings
inbernank loans AT T 35,k 163,360
Total 3,547,337 3,342 835 4,139, T6S 2,656,471 13,926,410
Hedging instrument
CROSE CUMMENECY SWaps 422737 £721,253 4,338,765 2EHEATE 10,700,222
Currency forwards 2624 506 G015 - - & 236,188
Total 3,547,337 3,342,835 4,339,765 2,606,473 13,926,410
Within 1 year Between 1 and 3 Between 3 and 6 Over 6 years Total
Az of Decembaor 21, 2019 yaars yoars
MChi MChE BMCh§ MChE MChE
Hudged itam
Loans and accounts receivables from customers
Mortgage loan 333473 1,305,595 1,995,155 3,136,952 9972447
Cammercial loans . - - . .
Ay ailable for sale i 1t
Timee gepasits - = B B
Chilean Scevereign bonds - = 82,727 - B2,727
Chilean Centradl Bank bands - - 207285 225,981 492,267
Time depesits and ather time liabilites
Timse daposits - - -
Issued debt instrements
Sermar bards [variabde rate) 355118 341,283 - - 600 401
Serear bonds (fived rate) HO3 596 1696, 555 1,152,461 1068511 4,722,163
Interbank borrowings
Interbank loans H20.442 142,932 - & 59,374
Total 5,322,890 3,686,405 3,497,630 4,432 454 16,939,379
Hedging instrument
Cross cumenty Swaps 4,205,129 2,918,149 3,497 530 4432454 15,053,362
Curency forsards 1,117,761 TEE, 256 1,886,017
Total 5,322,890 31,686,405 1,497,630 4,432 454 16,939,375
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Banco Santander-Chile and Subsidiaries
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AS OF DECEMEER 31, 2020 AMD 2019

NOTE 08
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING, continued

An estimate of the periods in which flows are expected to be produced is as follows:

b.1) Forecasted cash flows for interest rate risk:

Within 1 Between 1 and 3 Between 3 and & Qver & years Total

As of December 31, 2020 year years years
MCh$ MChi MCh3 MChs MChs

Hudg¢d item
Inflows 18,219 2,284 2,512 - 23,015
Clutflaws (80, 303) [123,604) {104, 18E} (B3, 307 (401,502}
HMet flows (72.084) {121.320) (101, 686) (B3.397) (378.487)
Hedging instrument
Inflows 90,303 123,604 104,198 £3,397 401,502
Olutfleows (*} (18219 [2.284) (2.512) - (23.015)
Met flows 72,084 121,320 101,686 83,397 378,487

{*) Only includes cash flow forecast portion of the hedge instruments used to cover interest rate risk.

Within 1 Between 1 and 3 Between 3 and & Qvar & years Tatal

As of December 31, 2019 year years years
MCht MCh$ MChS MChs MCh$

Hedged item
Iniflosas 25328 10,220 217 = 35,765
Clutflows (356.663) {245,480) (154,689) (163,151) (920,003)
Net flows (331,355) (235,260) (154,472} {163,151} (B54,238)
Hedging instrument
Inflows 356,683 245,440 154,689 163,151 920,003
Qutflows i*) (25,326 (10,2200 (217) - (35.765)
Net flows 331,355 235,260 154,472 163,151 864,238

{*) Only includes cash flow forecast portion of the hedge instruments used to cover interest rate risk.

b.2) Forecasted cash flows for inflation risk:

Within 1 Between 1 and 3 Batwaan 3 and 6 yaars OQver 6 years Tatal

As of December 31, 2020 year Years
MCh$ MChS MChS MChs MChS

Hedged item
Inflaws 114,734 257,598 457,045 406,499 1,235,977
Outflows {32,238) [18,702) {55,344) {26,993) (134,321)
Net flows 82,496 237,906 401,658 379,506 1,101,656
Hedging instrument
Iriflemes 32,238 19,702 55,388 26,993 134,321
Cutfiows 1114,734) [257,698) {457, 046) (406,499) (1,235,977)
Net flows (B2 496) (237,996) (401,658) (379,506} (1,101,656)
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AS OF DECEMEER 31, 2020 AMD 2019

NOTE 08
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING, continued

Within 1 Between 1 and 3 Between 3 and 6 Qver & years Total

As of December 31, 2019 year years years
MChS MCh$ MCh3 MCh$ MCh$

Hedged item
Iniflows 74,574 103,485 215972 422,162 823,394
Qutflaws [19,468] (50,151) (33,1400 (52,880} [155,637)
Net flaws 55,108 59,335 182,832 369,482 667,757
Hedging instrument
Iniflows 19486 50,151 33,740 S2.BBD 155,637
Qutflaws [74,574) [109,485) (216,972} (422,362} [823,394)
Net flows (55,108) (59,335) (183,832) (369,482) [667.757)

b.3) Forecasted cash flows for exchange rate risk:
As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Bank did not have cash flow hedges for exchange rate risk.

¢} The accumulated effect of the mark to market adjustment of cash flow hedges produced by hedge instruments used in hadged cash flow was
recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, specifically within Other comprehensive income as of December 31, 2020 and
2019, and is as follows:

A of December 31,

Hedged item 2020 2019
MCh$ MCh$
Interbank loans (9E2) (1.872)
Issued debt instruments (6,990) (16,345}
Available for sale investments (25.833) (2,905}
Leans and accounts receivable from customers. {102980) 119.313)
et flows (136, 765) (40,435)

Since the inflows and outflows for both the hedged element and the hedging instrument mirror each other, the hedges are nearly 100% effective,
which means that the fluctuations of fair value attributable to risk compaonents are almost completely offset.

During the year, the bank did nat have any cash flow hedges of forecast transactions.

d) Below is a presentation of income generated by cash flow hedges amount that were reclassified from other comprehensive income to income

for the year:
As of December 31,
2020 2019
MCh% MChs
Band hedging derivatives (3,745 {1200
Interbank loans hedging derivatives 1 1955)
Cash flow hedge net income {3,148) (1,075}
[*) See Note 24 “Equity” | letter g)
] Met investrment hedges in foreign operatians:

#s of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Bank does not have any net forsign investment hedges in its hedge accounting pertfolio,
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Banco Santander-Chile and Subsidiaries
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 08

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING, continued

fi Fair value macrohedges

The Bank has macracoverages for loans and accounts receivable from clients, specifically for the mortgage loan portfolio and for the commercial

loan portfolio, the following is the detail,

Naotional amount

Within 1 year Betecen 1and 3 Between 3 and B Quer & years Total
As of Decemnbeer 31, 2020 years years
MChS MLhs MCh§ MCh MCh§
Hedged item
Loans and accounts receivables from
CustEmarns
Mortgage [oan B23,126 TaG352 . TI54T4 2,344,957
Cammerdal loans 400,000 150,000 - - 550,000
Total 1,223,126 936,352 - 735,474 2,894 957
Hedging instrument
Cross currancy swaps B23126 O ELF - Tihave 2,344,957
Currency forwards 400,000 150,000 - - 550,000
Tatal 1,223,126 438,352 - 735,479 2,894,957
Metional amaumnt
Within 1 year Between 1 and 3 Between 3 and 6 Oiwer § years Taotal
As of Decembser 31, 2019 years years
MChE MCh MChE MChE MChE
Hedged item
Loans and accounts receivables from
CUStoMErs
Mertgage loan £33,300 1,189,037 1,545,239 %466,875 6 834,451
Commaergial laans . S, B0 ey e - B50,000
Total 633,300 1,785,037 1,595,230 3,466,875 7,484,451
Hedging instrsmant
Cross currency swags 633,300 1,185,037 1,545 234 3,465 875 6,834,451
Currency forwards = G00,000 50,0 = 630,000
Total 633,300 1,789,037 1,595,239 3,466,875 ¥ 484 451

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, MCh § 327,938 and MCh § 210,867 are presented in "ather assets” for the valuation of the net assets or liabilities
hedged at fair value in a macra hedge (Mote Mo, 16),
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Banco Santander-Chile and Subsidiaries

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AS OF DECEMEBER 31, 2020 AMD 2019

NOTE 09
INTEREANK LOANS

a)  As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the balances for “Interbank loans” are as follows:

Asof
December 31,
2020 20]m9
MCh$ MCh%

Domestic banks

Loans and advances ta banks -

Creposits in the Cantral Bank of Chile - not available - -
Mon-translerable Chilean Central Bank Bands - -
Cither Central Bank of Chile loans

Interbank loans - -
Cheercralts in :hm:lunr_] accaunis - -
Mon-transferable domestic bank leans - -

Fareign trade credits Chilean exparts 4,591 -
Other damestic bank bans - -
Allowances and impairment for domestic bank loans 4] -

Foreign interbank loans
Interbank loans - Foreign 14,339 14852
Cwerdrafts in checking accounts - -
Mon-transterable foreign bank deposits - _
Cther foreign bank loans E .
Provisions and impairment for foreign bank loans 4] (19

Total 18,920 14,833

b)  The amount of provisions and impairment of interbank loans is detailed below;

As of December 31,
2020 2019
Domestic Foreign Domestic Foreign
banks banks Tatal banks banks Total
MChS MChs MCht MChE MChS MChS
Balance as of January 1 - 19 19 - 29 29
Charge-offs - - - - -
Pronvigians established 9 21 30 3 55 55
Pronssans released 150 (34 ‘3QJ = 165) {'55]
Total 4 6 10 - 19 19
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Banco Santander-Chile and Subsidiaries

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AS OF DECEMEBER 31, 2020 AMD 2019

NOTE 10

LOANS AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVAELE FROM CUSTOMERS

a) Loans and accounts receivable from customers

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the composition of the loan portfolio is as follows:

Asgets before allowances Established Allowances
As of December 31, 2020 Man- Aggiats
N I Sub lard compliance Individual Group MNet
portiolie portfollo portiollo Total allowances  allowances Total Balances
MCh$ MCh$ MCh$ MCh$ MChs MCh3 MECh3 MChs

Commercial loans
Cammercial loans () 12,080,177 T00ESE T7REE3 13,559,895 [26R.29E) 1252.328) (520,584 13,029,211
Foreign trade laans 102,748 195,262 41,261 1239271 [5RA 3513 (60,012) 1.179,259
Checking accounts debtors 104,216 LEE] 12.005 125,610 553 [.225 (11.778) 113,832
Factaring transactions 488533 5195 3,851 437,670 15839 (53 {6,492 a1, 187
Student Loans 55,040 7340 63,380 3630 {3,630 59,750
Leasing transactions 1,118,641 153,005 82571 1,355,157 1170 18002 (25,003] 1,330,154
Cither Inans and acoount 171,523 2arz 22848 196,544 154613 113629 £19,090) 177,454
receivible

Subtotal 15022978 1065878 948,580 17,037 536 (357, 6:49) (209, 04 (B4, 583 16,500,847
Mortgage loans
Loans with mortgage finance 7,428 10 000 (45 1453 16
brands
Martgage mutwal loans #1015 1,845 S2960 (3390 1319 92,631
Other mortgage mutual loans 11,906,388 +04,660 12,311,056 {60,307 (50,307) 12250148

Subtotal 12,004,931 - 406,854 12,411,828 (61,281) (61,281 12,350,544
Consumer loans
Instaliment consumer koans 3454520 234072 EL S 1247223 [247,223) FAd1 369
Credit card balances 1118130 7778 1,125,908 e (16,323 1.104, 985
Leasing transactions 3105 16 EAR 35 135 3,086
Othar consumer loans 121,411 1847 123258 550 {4,660 118,558

Subtatal #&,697, 166 243,713 4,940,879 (268,84 1] [268,841) 4,672,038
Tatal 31,725,075 1,065,878 1,590,287 34,390,240 [357.645) (6719, 162} [A76,811) 33415429

[*)Centaing fogape provigsions for Ch § 35,789 milkan
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AS OF DECEMEBER 31, 2020 AMD 2019

NOTE 10
LOANS AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVAELE FROM CUSTOMERS, continued

Assets before allowances

Established Allowances

As of December 31, 2019 Man- Assets
MNarmal Substandar  eompliance Individual Graup Met
portfolio portfolio partfolio Total allowances  allowances Total Balances
MCh$ MChE MChS MCh$ MCh$ MCh$ MChS MCh$
Commercial loans
Commercial lnans 10469,540 05,266 655,110 11,776,216 {154,666 [220.722) (384, 388) 11,301,828
Foreign trade lsans 1,520,321 152811 40,501 1,713,633 B055) 15051 [53.136) 1,660,457
Checking accounts debtors 168,528 12,056 14,600 196,895 [3.685) 18464 [13.150) 183,743
Factoring transactions 479,240 6027 3,233 4RO, A0D {534) 11,9043 [6,238) 483,162
Student Loans 62,505 - 8965 1,278 14555) [4,858) 66,415
Leasing transactions 1, 21085 123,645 20,363 1,424,862 18,247 19,345 127,592) 1,387,270
Other loans and account receivable . 1430 23,594 242,554 16781) 116.31%) 123,080 219,474
Subtotal 14,123,261 206,095 285,375 15,914,831 (236,543 (275,893 512,442 15,402,329
Mortgage loans
Loans with martiiage finance 11.3m - Ry 12,29 192} [3' 1] 12,306
Mortgage mutual loans 56,014 4,138 100,152 518 (516) 99,636
Other mortgage muiual loans 10,626,455 24,079 11,150,545 |67 853) [57,853) 11,082,852
Subtotal 10,733,871 - 520,124 11,262,995 [65,461] [EE.461) 11,194,534
Consumer loans
Installment consumer loans 3,653,345 . 257053 3,910,338 [260,125) [260,129) 3,650,269
Cradit card balances 1357770 = 19,940 1.377.710 11.315) [41.315) 1,336,395
Leasing transactians 1555 . BE 3,352 (114 (114 3,838
Other consumer loans 243,15 - 3,641 246,997 [HLEST) [10.687) 236,310
Subtotal 5,288,137 - 280,920 5,539,067 (112.245) (312, 245) 5226812
Tatal 30,115,365 06,095 1,695,419 32,716,883 (236,543 (656,559 [853.148) 31,823,735
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Banco Santander-Chile and Subsidiaries
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A% OF DECEMBER 31, 2020 AMD 2014

NOTE 10
LOANS AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE FROM CUSTOMERS, continued

bl Portfolio characteristics

As of Decernber 31, 2020 and 20719, the portfolic before allowances is as follows, by customer's economic activity:

Comemaerclal loans

anufacturing LITRED 1285014 = L LATREZT 12874 4o L
Mining 431E1E LRl - - 43LE1E 40742 R 24
Electricty, gas, and water 334,274 356410 384074 355470 112 109
Agricudture and livestock 1. 3450 2T : s 1345 R 12072 13 ELE]
Foresl 1PHITE 185,006 - - 179178 165,208 Qs sk
Fishing 234,151 25R553 34,151 2EA553 QE8 A3
Tramspark TrrEm TRRLETT ' - TITAD AT i 21
Comimuricalions 015 0850 - - 1,115 40,950 R 074
Construction 553363 E35435 30365 955435 T i
Commarce LTIRERE A%z 14318 TA0R AT T LR h L 1A% mnze
Sardnes 2EBAEISE 2TRA15 - - AREEEIE 2706415 E32 A4
Clithwer 247 EIE 4008556 4847 B35 41004 566 1251 1225
Subtatal 1045127 15514831 14,330 14,852 17056, 466 15,909,645 #5.57 Ad.65
Mortgage boans 12411825 11262305 = = V2411825 TL2E2.595 07 3443
Consumer loans 498007 5530057 - - 4940873 5539057 14.35 6.5
Tatal 34,394,821 32706383 14338 14,852 34,408,170 32,731,735 10000 10000

[*y Includes domestic interbank loans for Chd 4,537 million as of December 31, 2020 (Ch30 million as of December 31, 20149), sea Note &
[** Includes foreign interbank keans for Chi 14,239 million as of December 21, 2020 {Ch314,852 million as of December 31, 2019), see Mote 9
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AS OF DECEMEER 31, 2020 AMD 2019

NOTE 10

LOANS AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVAELE FROM CUSTOMERS, continued

c) Impaired portfolio (*)

i} Asof December 31, 2020 and 2019, the impaired portfalio is the following:

Az of December 31,

2020 2y
Cammarcial Mortgage Consumar Total Commerclal Mortgage CORELImer Tatal
MChE MChE MChE MChE BMChS MChE MChE MChE

Indevidually impaired - e A x
portfalio 588,334 588,334 87, 7&0 487,760
Mon-gerarming lasns x
tealloctively ovaluated) 331,352 108,625 46438 AE6,435 400,209 179,863 91,264 671,336
Caber empaired portioho 219,650 298,263 197285 715214 215596 34287 183,656 757.513
Total 1,139,376 A6, 854 243,112 1,785,982 1,108,565 529,124 20,920 1,916,609

(*} The impaired portfolio corresponds to the sum of loans classified as substandard B3 and B4 category as well as the non-compliance portfolio
{C1-CB). As they are debtors subject to group evaluation, it includes all the credits of the "Portfolio in Default”

i) The impaired portfolio with or without warranty as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 is the following:

As of December 31
2020 2019
Commercial Morigage Consumer Total Commercial Mortgage Consumer Total
MChs MChS MChS MChs MChS MChS MChS MCh3
Lecured geby T2 TRS 81,082 34,740 1,136,687 L33 L T | a00E3 1218243
Ursecured debt 418,591 25,712 208,093 653,296 406,234 41,385 250,731 698,360
Tatal 1,139,376 406,854 243,713 1,789,983 1,106,565 529,124 280,920 1,916,609
iii} The portfolio of nen-performing loans as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 is the following:
As of Degember 31,
2020 2019
Commercial Martgags Consumar Tatal Commarclal Mortgage Consumar Total
MChS MCh$ MChS MEhS MCh$ MCh3 MCh3 MChS
Secured debt 177,316 101,279 FAED) 285,731 204,195 164, 200 BE5T 375,052
Unsecured debt 154,056 7,345 19,703 200,704 196,014 15,663 B4,607 296,284
Tortal 331,382 108,625 46,128 486,435 400,209 179,853 91,264 671,336
iv) Reconciliation of loans, with past due loans as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, is the following:
As of December 31,
2020 2019
Cammarcial Maortgage Camsumer Total Commercial Martgage Consumar Tatal
MERS MCh$ MCh$ MChS MChS MEChS MChS MCh$
h defaul |
MEn clots B el te g 329,009 107,905 43128 480,042 395,633 177730 o023 668,436
greater than 90 days
With defaults up o B9 deyd = 1
chazeiac b eyt ptiotic 217 720 3,300 6,303 526 2131 241 2,900
Tatal 331,382 108,625 46,428 486,435 40,200 179,863 91,264 671,336
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Banco Santander-Chile and Subsidiaries
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AS OF DECEMEBER 31, 2020 AMD 2019

NOTE 10
LOANS AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVAELE FROM CUSTOMERS, continued

d)  Allowances

The changes in allowances balances during 2020 and 2019 is the following:

Commercial Mortgage Mortgage Interbank
Activity during 2020 Loans [*) Loans Loans Laans
Individual Group Group Group Total
MChS MChs MChs MCh$ MChs MCh$
Balance as of January 01, 2020 236,549 275,593 E8,461 312,245 13 893,167
Allowancss estabished Rk 124057 15,854 223493 3 548,155
Allwances released 4 BT 154,384) [17.147) 179.846) {39) (196, 298)
Allowances released due to charge-off 18713y 156516 (5923) 1147,051) (258,203}
Balance as of Decomber 31, 2020 357,649 289,040 61,281 268,841 10 aT6,821
T Commercial Maortgage Mortgage Interbank
Activity during 2019
ity 4 Loans Loans Loans Loans
Individual Group Group Group Total
MChS MCh3 MChE MChE MChs MChE
Balance as of January 01, 2019 42597 230,866 64, 241 272,681 Fal B10AT4
Allwances established 93,556 118,187 17462 246,530 5% 475, 790
Allowances released 158,084) (12,1000 18,2631 49576) [B5) (128,088}
Allowances released due to charge-off W52 (610600 14.379 (157390 ] (264,343}
Balance as of December 31, 2019 236,549 275,893 68,461 112,245 19 893,167

[*) Contains fogape provisions for Ch § 25,789 millkan
[**|The stock of provisions of Santander Consumer Finance Limitada as of the acguisition date are added.

Im addition to credit risk allowances, there are allowances held for:

i} Country risk to cover the risk taken when holding or committing reseurces with any foreign country, these allowances are established
according to country risk classifications as set forth in Chapter 7-13 of the Updated Compilation of Rules, issued by the CMF (ex SBIF), the
balances of allowances as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are Chi 49 million and ChE 552 million respectively. These are presented as
"Allowances” in the liabilities section of the "Consolidated Interim Statement of Financial Position™,

i) According to CMF {ex SBIF) regulations (compendium of Accounting Standards), the Bank has established allowances related to the
undrawn available credit lines and contingent loans. The balances of allowances as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are Chs 17,283 millien
and Ch$21.411 million, respectively, and are presented as “Allowances” in the labilities section of the “Consolidated Interim Statement of
Financial Position”.

i} Under the nules of the CMF {ex SBIF), banks are allowed to establish provisions above the limits described abowve, in order to protect
themselves from the risk of unpredictable economic fluctuations that may affect the macroeconomic environment or the situation of a
specific economic sector. The Bank has additional provisions for § 126,000 million ($ 16,000 million december, 2020}, which are presented
as liabilities in the *Provisions” caption of the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position.
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Banco Santander-Chile and Subsidiaries

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2020 and 2015

NOTE 10

LOANS AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE FROM CUSTOMERS, continued

] Portfolio by its impaired and non-impaired condition

A5 of Deoember 31, 2020

Mon-impared Impaired Tesl porifelic
Tatal non-
iy Bt Lt Empained il Bt Cosdria i Towil mmpained  Commaicial Mongage Congumir Total partfala
MChE FACHS siChy MChE wich FACHS ML M:r_|“$ MACHE K L] MChs
Cumen portiolio 15218.5599 TLETLIET A671,752 FZ.30Z548 TITAT1 223 TR 10853 1.081,732 1B E3R0T0 VEOAEEES L T3E.255 33334280
Crandue bor 1423 davs 3=A13 235997 525 e 3m ZME B0 23518 51371 SBATS 23803 EEA 165762
Crmrdun for 3080 dryy &304 A0EFTF 1n.7E 185318 0, B0 LR 19 REFE 176858 13154 1TA N6 BE 6L 80,158
Crrrhus for B0 dayi o0 mig 200009 107, W5 43126 480,042 EF T ] 10 43128 430042
Total portfelio before allewance: 14, B84, 140 12,004,950 444971688 32400257 1,149,478 406,894 ML 1,140,943 1T.08T,558 12411804 4940 4TS 4,590, 240
Oovinrdoms loarm oss S 0 drp) - -
prananhedas poitioli percaddags 10 111% 1% a a15% 18.48% AT 1275 1% 146 2% 15%
vt [ans (90 diys oF More) pressned A wE P - 193% a87% 0EMS .
A panfoho pererntsce
Az of December 31, 201%
Mon-impaired Impaired Todal porifelio
Tatal non- Tartal
Cemmunzial Fangage Canwumir irmgaairad Cemrrarsial Comumir  Total impaired  Com=arcid Mangage L
MRS RCHS MRS IACHS. [ FALHS MChE MChi RS FACHE MChS
— — — — — - -
Current partlcle 14 606 338 1421, 161 EoeEE10 B000E, 166 GE4BED AEERESS 1I047E E42470 15,163,248 AE0E, NS AT ELELESH
Ot bor 129 days FET4E 47417 TICETa 250344 - 30,355 TREAE AZLIES SR 135,544 328,738
vmrrdua dor 3580 caye M07132 265203 AR 451,264 113,605 50157 116,190 FE T ) A18.350 126506 ELTT- 1
vt bor 90 days oF Baie 399,633 S1003 EEBA36 LT E] 17730 91,008 E68.436
Tetal portielio before allwancn 14,208,266 18,733,871 5258137 30800374 1,104,565 Seh iR 280520 1,916,609 15,914,831 11,262,995 553,057 32,T16,633
Keseivue s esc Reom S diaal 135% 231% 140% FET) 1374% 0% i 20.65% It P e 3364
pranted ay podfole perentage
Sl (30 dave o mors) e - W% 1355% a0 Ia89% 21 1500 104% 204%

g izko Rl
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Banco Santander-Chile and Subsidiaries
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2020 and 2019

NOTE 11
AVAILABLE FOR SALE INVESTMENTS

hs of December 31, 2020 and 2019, details of instruments defined

as available for sale investments are as follows:

As of
December 21
2020 2019
MCh$ MCh%
Chilean Central Bank and Government securities
Chilean Central Bank Bands 272602
Chilean Central Bank Wotes 1,008,450 1,186,724
Other Chilean Central Bank and Government securities 5,344,910 1,908,031
Subtotal 6,353,360 3,367,557
of which zold under repurchase agreement G690 279,924
Other Chilean securities
Time deposits in Chilean financial institutions 299 EEL
artgage finance bonds of Chilean finandial institutions 14,022 16,748
Chilean financial institution bonds -
Chilean corporate bonds
Other Chilean securities 2410 2410
Subtotal 16,731 19,556
of which sold wnder repurchase agreemeant EL 137
Foreign financial securities
Foreign Central Banks and Govemment securities 268,803 197,665
Other foreign financial securities 522648 425474
Subtotal T92.451 623,159
of which zold under epurchase agreement - -
7,162,542 4,010,272

Total

The Bank holds instruments, belonging te “Chilean central bank and gowvernment securities”, which guarantee derivatives transactions through
Comder Contraparte Central 5,4, in the local market a5 of December 31, 2020 and 2019 for an amount of Ch$158,600 and Ch$65, 140, while "Foreign
financial securities™ guarantee denvatives transactions through London Clearing Houwse {LCH) as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 Chi67,685 and
Ch§73,109. Additionally, the Bank maintains guarantees with Euroclear as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 Ch$258,183 and Ch$390,954 to comply

with the initial margin required by European EMIR standard.

As of December 31, 2020, the instruments available for sale include the balances of unrealized net profits of $ 100,135 million recognized as
“Waluation accounts” in equity, distributed between a gain of $ 98,576 million attributable to equity holders of the Bank and a gain of 3 1,159 million

attributable to non-controlling interest.

As of December 31, 2019 the instruments available for zale include the balances of unrealized net profits of % 30,398 million recognized as “Valuation
accounts” in equity, distributed between a gain of § 29,349 million attributable to equity halders of the Bank and a gain of 3 1,049 million attributable

to non-controlling interest,
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Banco Santander-Chile and Subsidiaries
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2020 and 2019

MNOTE 11
AVAILABLE FOR SALE INVESTMENTS, continued

Gross profits and losses realized on the sale of available for sale investments as of december 31, 2020 and 2019, are as follow,

As of December 31,
2020 2019
MCh$ MCh$
Sale of avaiilable for sale investrments generating realized profits 3,696,741 5.7E1,636
Realized profits B2.525 G3,E28
4ale of available for sale investments generating realized losses ITalde 607,349
Realized lossas 2,246 156

The Bank evaluated those instruments with unrealized losses as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 and concluded they were not impaired. This review
consisted of evaluating the economic reasons for any declines, the credit ratings of the securities’ issuers, and the Bank's intention and ability to hold
the securities until the unrealized loss is recovered. Based on this analysis, the Bank believes that there were no significant or prolonged declines nor
changes in credit risk which would cause impairment in its investment partfalio, since mast of the decline in fair value of these instruments was
caused by market conditions which the Bank considers to be temparary. All of the instruments that have unrealized losses as of December 31, 2020
and 2019, were not in a continuing unrealized loss position for more than ane year.
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Banco Santander-Chile and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2020 and 2019

MOTE 11
AVAILABLE FOR SALE INVESTMENTS, continued

The following charts show the available for sale irvestrments cumulative unrealized profit and loss, as of December 31, 2020 and 2019

As of December 31, 2020:

Liess than 12 inosih MoFe than 12 mosiy Tatal
Unimakned Usrealoed Urasnadired Usreakized
Wmeitingd 058 Fair ahie palin st ks Amorveed cem Fairvalar feafit [ Aroeoedien i vakie et Uaieakned lass
Mot Mot uon Mo WG [T Mint [T WG Mo ) [rany

Chilsan carstral bank and govarmment icu i
Chilzan central bank fond
Chilean ceriral Bank rotes A4S 1o0m AR - - : B . - 1000850 LIS
Otivar Chilmsn central bank and govemmant sezurites 518 ED 534500 95130 5453 £238143 SEadEg EAE (39,455

Sulbaonal LE L] LELEE ] E L] 139,855 B 2G.539 LECERL ] #6180 [E-E L]
Other Chilean secyruties
Time deposits i Ohilean finarcial instibstions = o i i
Mestgage Teanoe ba al Chilgan finandia 12293 e ™ - - - - - [ERCT 1402 25
Chilgan Tinar b B ] = = 2 T
Chilksan conparate bonds
Cheer Chilean secunbes s 2din 2ias Eol] 2410 L105

Fukbteial TRET 1ETI 2414 - g 5 B . Lae? 1w 2034
Fariign fnandial securites
Foregm central bank and govermaent secunties DEAATT BN 20247 el 255477 23 EN3 267 19341
Citbver Farmign secwifies ARz ST2040 A3254 - i 8 # 3 anpmd 72040 AD754 5

Fubioial TELETT TREER w5 L)) & = = = FELATI TREAR wEEEN 4340
Tarsl T80T TR ST 15515 159.8300 . . TO62ADT TG 54T 159,535 (34000
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Banco Santander-Chile and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2020 and 20149

MOTE 11
AVAILABLE FOR SALE INVESTMENTS, continued

The following charts show the available for sale irvestrments cumulative unrealized profit and loss, as of December 31, 2020 and 2015

As of December 31, 2019:

Liess than 12 inosih MoFe than 12 mosiy Tatal
Unimakned Usrealoed Uvaeadined Usreakized
Wmeitingd 03 Fai sl pralin e ks Amorteed cem Fairvalar feafit [ Aroeoedien i vakie et Uaieakned lass
Mot Mot uon Mo WG [T 1) (Y] WG Mo ) [rany

Chilsan carstral bank and govarmment iscu i
Chikzan ceniral bank fond ETLETY ETZER G nmm g = = B 2 LR 1500 [AFEEE
Chilean cerviral Bank rotes 1LIBGART 1106724 o - 1186417 1I86T 237 3
Dthwer Chilmar central bank and gmvsmmant sezuritas LEGRELS i - ] IETH 2533y 1833615 180 036 ELiE 35338

Subaonal 335,08 BIETSET 3.5 A EH] i 2 ) 3 3351081 3367 55T 43,5910 L5
Other Chilean secyruties
Tima depasits imoOndean financial inst butiore el ¥ i L
Mestgage Teanoe ba al Chilgan fimandia 15,062 16,78 ™5 - - - - - 15552 1578 TIE
Chibgan Tinar b B =
Chiksan conparate bonds
Cthrer Chilean secunbes 4 2410 2003 o 5 T 3 5 a7 2410 L3

Fukbteial TR TET a5 A = i ~ d 1a7e? LLE417 7ed
Fariign fnandial securites
Feepsgn ceantral bank and goverment secunities 193 769 157,665 L] {11845 g - - - 198,293 197 65 WA 11445
Cthver Farmign secwrifies aan 475474 i g : anw? a25.474 AN 0278

Fubioial W1E I SILIEE FLARE N8 : - = - EZ0IE SRR T1.652 [AESAL]
Tarsl 1979874 4010377 L LEr 13963y E - g : 157474 A037E Ut 13630
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Banco Santander-Chile and Subsidiaries

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2020 and 2019

NOTE 12
INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND OTHER COMPANIES

a) The Consolidated Statements of Financial Position reflect investments in associates and other companies amounting to Ch$10,770 million as of
Decemnber 31, 2020, Chi 10,467 million as of December 2013, as show in the following table;
Investment
Ownership interest Investment value Profit and loss
As of December 31, As of December 31, As of December 31,
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
% % MCh$ MCh$ MChs MCh3
Company
Centro de Compensacion Automatizado 5.4, 3233 3333 2. 7BE 2,184 a03 293
Sociedad Interbancaria de Depdsito de Valores 5.8, 29,29 29,29 1.63% 1,485 302 LY
Camara de Compensacion de Pagos de Alto Valor 5.4 15.00 15.00 a7 958 28 )
Administrader Financiero del Transantiago S.A 20000 20.00 3476 3,946 337 350
Servicios de Infraestructura de Mercade OTC 5.0, 1207 12,07 1,528 1,556 [24) B
Subtotal 10,396 10,168 1,245 1,024
Shares ar rights in other companies
Bladex 136 136 - 13
Stock Excharges 228 154 142 104
Ortras 10 8 - -
Total 10,770 10,467 1,388 1,146
b) Investments in associates and other companies do not have market prices.
€}  Summary of financial information of the partners between exercises 2020 and 2019
Az of December 31,
2020 2019
Het Het
Assets Liabilities Equity Income Assets Liabilities Equity Income
MEhS MChE MCh$ MChE MCh$ MCh$ MCh3 MCh$
Centro de Compensacion Automatizada 5.4 11134 2,953 6,371 1,810 8,550 1,993 5671 aal
Sociedad Interbancaria de Depdsito de Valores SA. S.B40 314 4,496 1,030 5074 4 4,208 a61
Cémara de Compensacidn de Pagos de Alto Valor 5.4, T.158 122 6,240 140 1312 9di 6,193 193
Administrador Financiero del Transantiago 5.4, 49,841 30,670 17.227 1,344 54,712 34787 17.978 1,947
Servicios de Infraestructura de Mercado OTC 5.4, 14,480 2232 12,441 [193) 15,152 2,682 11,993 477
Total 88,453 36,891 46,781 473 90,860 A0,457 46,044 4,359
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Banco Santander-Chile and Subsidiaries
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2020 and 2019

MOTE 12

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND OTHER COMPANIES, continued

d) Restriction an the ability of partners to transfer funds to invastars.

There are no significant restriction in relation to the ability of the associates to transfer funds in the form of dividends in Cash or reimwursements

of loans or advances, to the bank,

@)  Activity with respect to investrents in other companies during 2020 and 2019, is as follow:

Opening balance as of January 1,

Acquisition of imestments
Sale of investmants
Participation in income
Dividends received

Other adjustment (%)

Totales

As of December 31,

2020 2019

MChS MChS
10,467 32,293
(20 -
1,366 1,14
(S0E) (133
(557} (22.842)
10,770 10,467

"jBunng 201%, the Bank has entered into a process of sale of the shares of some companies, therefore, the freatment established in IFAS 5 on the
participation of said companies has been applied, which is described in nate Mo. 01 letter t] and note Moo 40, additionally in this line are the effects of MTK

for investments ewned by the Bank's subsidiaries,

f)  We have evaluated the objective evidence indicated in 145 No 28 and we have not detected any type of impairment on the investments that the

Bank.
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Banco Santander-Chile and Subsidiaries
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2020 and 2019

MNOTE 13
INTANGIBLE ASSETS

a) As of December 31, 2020 and 2019 the compaosition of intangible assets is as fallows:

As of December 21, 2020
Met opening
Average balance as of
remaining January 1, Accumulated
useful life 2020 Gross balance amortization Net balance
MCh3 MCh% MCh$ MCh$
software development 2 73,389 320,531 (237.994) 82,537
Taotal 73,389 320,531 [237,594) 82,537
As of December 31, 2019
Avarage Mat opening
remaining balance as of Accumulated
ugieful life January 1, 2019 Grogs balance amortization Nat balance
MCh$ MCh% MCh$ MCh$
Software development 2 66,823 250,002 {176,613) 73,389
Taotal 65,923 250,002 [176,613) 73,289

b) The changes in the value of intangible assets during the periods of December 31, 2020 and 2019 is as follows:

b.1) Graoss balance

Software

Grosz balances develapment Tatal

MCh MChS
Balances as of January 1, 2020 250,002 250,002
Additions 35,170 35170
Disposals and impairment {*) (838) (B3E)
CQither - :
Balances as of December 31, 2020 284,534 284,534
Balances as of January 1, 2019 218,415 218415
Additions 32,860 32,860
Disposals and impairment {*) (1.227) (1.227)
Clthir [44] {46)
Balances as of December 31, 2019 250,002 250,002

[*} See Note 34 a).
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Banco Santander-Chile and Subsidiaries

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2020 and 2019

MNOTE 13
INTANGIBLE ASSETS, continued

b.2) Accumulated amortization

Software

Accumulated amortization development Total

MCh§ MCh3$
Balances as of January 1, 2020 (176.612) (176,613)
Amartization for the period (25, 384) (25,384)
Cther changes - -
Balances ag of December 31, 2020 (201,997) (201,997)
Balances as of January 1, 2019 (151.492) (151,492)
Amaortization for the period (26, 348) (26,348)
Dther changes 1.227 1,227
Balances as of December 31, 2019 (176.613) (176.613)

¢} The Bank has no restriction an intangible assets as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, Additionally, the intangible assets have not been pledged as
guarantee to secure compliance with financial liabilities, Also, the Bank has no debt related to Intangible assets as of those dates.
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Banco Santander-Chile and Subsidiaries

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2020 and 2019

NOTE 14
FIXED ASSETS AND RIGHT OF USE ASSETS AND OBLIGATION FOR LEASE CONTRACT

a)  Asof December 31, 2020 and 2019 the property, plant and eguipment balances is as follows:

As of December 31, 2020

Met opening
balance as of Gross Accumulated Met
January 1, 2020 balance depreciation balance
Mchs MChS MChS MCchs

Land and building %) 120,133 175420 (65,3400 114,080
Equipment 55,494 243,084 1190,636) 52,448
Other 22,206 75,159 {54,447) 20,712
Total 197,833 497 663 (310,423) 187,240

As of December 31, 2019

Mot opening

balance as of Gross Accumulated Het
January 1, 2019 balance depreciation balance
MCh$ MChS MCh$ MCh$
Land and building 120,245 175,370 {25,237) 120,133
Equipment 56,865 219,600 {164,106) 55,494
Cither 21,963 6,758 147,552) 22,206
Total 159,073 464,728 (266,895) 197,833

b)  The changes in the value of property, plant and equipment as of December 31, 2020 and 2013 is the following:

b.1) Gross balance

2020 Land and buildings Equipment Other Tatal

MChS MChS MChS MChS
Balances as of January 1, 2020 175,370 219,600 69,758 464,728
Additions 1.556 25233 T.500 34,289
Disposals (3,719 (1.748) (2059 (7.566)
Impairment due to damage . d
Other 6,213 - - 6,213
Balances as of December 31, 2020 175,420 243,084 75,158 487.663
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Banco Santander-Chile and Subsidiaries

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2020 and 2019

NOTE 14
FIXED ASSETS AND RIGHT OF USE ASSETS AND OBLIGATION FOR LEASE CONTRACT, continued

Land and

2019 buildings Equipment Other Tatal

MCh3 MCh$ MChS MChS
Balances as of January 1, 2019 166,910 192,328 62,156 421,394
Additions 0473 33,302 7O 50,377
Disposals = (6,020} (6,030)
Impairment due to damage (*) (1.013) 2 {1,013}
Dther - - - -
Balances as of December 31, 2019 175,370 218,600 69,758 464,728

[*] Banco Santander-Chile have recognized in its consolidated financial statements a5 of Decernber 31, 2019 an impairment of 1,013 milllon, due to
social unrest in the country,

b.2) Accumulated depreciation

2020 Land and bulldings Equipment Other Total

MChS MChi MChs MChi
Balances as of January 1, 2020 (55,237) (164, 106) (47.552) (266,885)
Depreciation forthe period [B%8T) {28,370) (B.915) (46,273)
Sales and disposals during the pericd 370 1,640 2021 7,562
thers (4,817 - - {4,817}
Balances as of December 31, 2020 (65,341) (190,636) (54,447 {310,423}

2019 Land and buildings Equipment Other Total

MCh$ MChS MCh$ MChS
Balances ag of January 1, 2019 {54,671} {135,463) {40,193) (230,327)
Depreciation for the period (a,120) (24 9048) (B, 86) {44,957)
Sales and disposals during the pericd 7554 1,325 - E,B73
Cthers - ; [450) [450)
Balances as of December 31, 2019 {55,237) (164,108) (47,552) (266,895)

¢} The compaosition of the right ofuse assets as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 is as follows:

As of December 31, 2020

Met opening balance as of Gross Accumulated Mat
January 1, 2020 balance depreciation balance
MChs$ MChS MCh$ MCh$
Land and building 157,572 197573 {49,576) 147,997
Lease improveaments 52,928 128,079 {75,465) 53.614
Equipment - - - -
Other - - - -
Total 210,500 326,652 (125,041} 201,611
As of December 31, 2019
Met opening balance as of Gross Accumulated Het
Jamuary 1, 2019 balance depreciation balance
MCh$ MChS MCh$ MCh$
Land and building 154,284 182,910 [25,338) 157,572
Lease improvements 54,513 127,035 [74,107) 52,928
Equipment - = - -
Other - - - -
Total 208,797 309,945 (99,445) 210,500
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Banco Santander-Chile and Subsidiaries

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2020 and 2019

NOTE 14

FIXED ASSETS AND RIGHT OF USE ASSETS AND OBLIGATION FOR LEASE CONTRACT, continued

d) The movement of the right of use assets under lease during the 2020 pericd, is as follows:

d.1) Gross balance

Land and Lease
2020 building improvements Taotal
MChS MCh$ MCh$
Balances as of January 1, 2020 182,910 127,035 309,945
Additions 24,136 12070 36,206
Disposals (9473) (3.813) [13.288)
Impairment - - .
Orther (6,213} (6,213)
Balanc¢es as of December 31, 2020 197,573 129,079 326,652
Land and Lease
2019 building improvements Taotal
MChs MCh$ MCh$
Balances as of January 1, 2018 154,284 122,658 276,942
Additions 48,008 7013 55,021
Disposals (17.66%) (2,636 (20.305)
Impairmaent (*) (1,713) = 11,713)
Orther - - -
Balances as of December 31, 2019 182,910 127,035 309,945

[*) Banco Santander-Chile have recognized in its consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 201% an impairment of & 1,713 million, due to

sotial unrest in the country.

d.2) Accumulated amortization

Land and Lease
2020 building improvements Total
MCh% MCh$ MCh$
Balances as of January 1, 2020 (25,33E) (74,107) (99,445)
Amartization for the period (27, 731) (10,038 (37.769)
Sales and disposals during the period 3,496 3,862 7,358
Transfers - - -
Cithiers (3} 4517 4,815
Balances as of December 31, 2020 (49.576) (75.465) {125,041)
Land amd Lease
2019 building improvemants Tatal
MCh$ MCh3 MCh$
Balances as of January 1, 2019 . (68,145) (68,145)
Amortization for the perioad (26,55 (7, BB (34,787)
Sales and disposals during the period 1,551 1936 3,487
Transfers - - -
Others =
Balances as of December 31, 2019 (25.338) (74,107) (99,445)
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NOTE 14
FIXED ASSETS AND RIGHT OF USE ASSETS AND OBLIGATION FOR LEASE CONTRACT, continued

&) Obligation for lease contract

A5 of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the obligations for lease agreements are as follows:

As of
December 31,
2020 2019
MCh$ MCh$
Chbligations for lease contracts 148,565 156,494
Taotales 149,585 156,494

fi  Esxpenses associated with assets for the right to use leased assets and Obligations for lease agreements

As of
December 31,

2020 2019

MChE MCh%
Depreciation T TES 34,787
Interests 2651 2065
Short term lease 1625 4177
Total 42045 41,929

g) Asof December 31, 2020 and 2019, the maturity level of the obligations for lease agreements, according to their contractual maturity is as
followrs:

As of
December 31,

2020 2019

MCh$ MCh$
Due wert e 1 year 25 576 26,081
Due after 1 yaar but within 2 years 23461 24311
Due after 2 years but within 3 years 21472 21,667
Due after 3 years but within 4 years 19,343 19411
Due after 4 yaars but within 5 years 16,336 16582
Due after 5 years 43447 0082
Total 148,585 158,454
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MOTE 14
FIXED ASSETS AND RIGHT OF USE ASSETS AMD OBLIGATION FOR LEASE CONTRACT, continued

h) Operational leases - Lessor

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the future minimum lease cash inflows under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

As of
December 31,

2020 2019

MCh$ MCh$
Due within 1 year T4l al3
Due after 1 year Bt withuin 2 YIS 1.015 598
Due after 2 years but within 3 years EE 500
Due after 3 years but within 4 years EL 498
Due after 4 years but within 5 years 448 412
Due after 5 years 1,263 1,563
Tatal 4,B61 4,174

i} Asof December 31, 2020 and 2019 the Bank has no finance leases which cannct be unilaterally cancelled.
jy  The Bank has no restriction on property, plant and equipment as of Decernber 31, 2020 and 201% Additionally, the property, plant, and

equipment have not been provided as guarantees to secure compliance with financial liabilities. The Bank has no debt in connection with
property, plant and equipment.
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NOTE 15
CURREMNT AND DEFERRED TAXES

a) Current taxes

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Bank recognizes taxes pavable (recoverable), which is determined based on the currently applicable tax
legislation, This amount is recorded net of recoverable taxes, and is shown as follows:

As of
Decamber 31,

2020 2019

MChs MChS
Summary of current tax liabilities (assets)
Current tax [asse1s) - {11,648}
Current tax liabilities 12977 -
Total tax payable (recoverable) 12,977 (11,648)
Detail of current tax (assets) liabilities (net)
Income tax 1725444 154,578
Lass:
Pravisional monthly payments (156, 387) {161,087}
Credit for training expenses (2,137) (2,145}
Grant credits (1360 (1,149
Cther (E3) (1.835)
Tatal tax payable (recoverable) 12,977 (11,648)

b) Income Tax

The effect that the tax expense has on income for the penod ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 is comprised of the following iterms:

__As of December 31,

z0z0 2019
MCh$ MChE
Income tax expense
Current ban 173,544 154578
Credits (debits) for deferred taxes
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (38.614) 11,372
Subtotal 134,230 165,950
Tax foo rejected expenses (Article N° 21} 1,354 927
Cither 14,561) [16,709)
Mat incoma tax expense 121,123 150,168
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2020 and 2019

MNOTE 15
CURREMT AND DEFERRED TAXES, continued

¢}  Effective tax rate reconciliation

The reconciliation between the income tax rate and the effective rate used in the determination of the income tax expense as of December 31, 2020
and 2019 is as follows:

As of December 31,
2020 2019
Tax rate Amount Tax rate Amount
Y MChs % MChS
Tax calculated over profit before tax 27.00 176495 27.00 189,714
Permanent differences (1} [6.54) (42,7300 (716} [50.297)
Rate change effect 021 1,354 LRE] 927
Oither (0BT 13,9946) 140 9824
Effective rates and income tax expense 20.06 131,123 21.37 150,168

(11 Mainly corespands ta the permanent differences eriginated from the Own Tax Monetary Carrection and the effect of the bonds receieed ta article 104 of LIR

d)  Effect of deferred taxes on other comprehensive income

A summary of the separate effect of deferred tax on other comprehensive income, showing the asset and liability balances, for the periods ended
Decermber 31, 2020 and 2019 is the following:

As of December 31,

2020 2019

MCh$ MChS
Deferred tax assets
Avallable for sale investments 14,081 1793
Cash flow hedges 36,927 10919
Total deferred tax assets recognized through other comprehensive income 51,018 18718
Deferred tax llabilities
Available for sale investmants 41128 (16,007
Cash flow hedges s -
Total deferred tax liabilities recognized through other comprehensive income (41,128) (16,007)
Met deferred tax balanees in equity 9,890 2,711
Deferred taxes in equity attributable to equity halders of the bank 0.0 2,593
Daferred tax in equity attributable to non-controlling interests (313} (282)
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NOTE 15
CURRENT AND DEFERRED TAXES, continued

e)  Effect of deferred taxes on income
Durirg 2020 and 2019, the Bank has registered in its financial statements the effects from deffered taxes.

Below are effects of deferred taxes on assets, liabilities and income allocated due to ternporary differences:

As of
Diaecambaer 31, )
2020 2019
MChS MChs
Daferrad tax assets
Interests and adjustments 8,166 953
Men-recurring :har\g(:-u"s 17,705 15325
Assets received in lieu of payment 3,294 2,933
Exchange rate adjustments a9 -
Property, plant and equipment . 6,361
Provision for laan losses 259,245 195,990
Prowision for expenses 101,321 Bopog
Leased assets 89,458 16226
Subsidiaries tax losses 7,394 5416
Assats for the right to wse leased assets 428 248
Total deferred tax assets 487,100 444,149
Deferred tax labilities
valuation of investments (19,967) (17.341)
Property, plant and equipmeant {7,394)
Anticipated expenses (18,6891) (20.347)
Waluation provision (6,591) (6,508
Derivatives (37,265) (36,512}
Exchange rate adjustments g [2.817)
Cihers (30 (7
Total deferred tax liabilities (87,928) (83,601)
fi  Summary of deferred tax assets and liabilities
A summary of the effect of deferred taxes on equity and income is as follows:
As of
December 31,
2020 2019
MChS MCh$
Deferred tax assets
Recognized through other comprehensive income 51,013 18,718
Recognized through profit or loss 487,100 444,149
Total deferred tax assets 538,118 462, 867
Deferred tax labilities
Recognized through other cemprehensive income 41,128 (16,007)
Recognized through profit or loss (B7,938) [B3,601)
Taotal deferred tax liabilities {1239,066) {99,608)
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NOTE 15
CURRENT AND DEFERRED TAXES, continued

g)  Supplementary information related to the circular issued by internal tax service and the CMF.
Far purposes of disclosure and accreditation of provisions and penalties, banks must include in the tax note of their states
annual finandial statements, a detail of the movements and effects generated by the application of article 31, No. 4 of the LIR, as established
in the document attached ko the joint circular,

g.1) Receivables and accounts receivable

As of December 31,
2020 ZMg
Assets at tax value Assets at tax value
Dverdue Cwverdue
nsseu.at with without Assels.at with without
financial financial
value Total guarantee  guarantee value Total guarantee  guarantee
MChs MCh3 MCh$ MCh3 MChs MCh3$ MChi MCh$
ateriank loans 18530 18930 B 14,854 14,852 =
Cammercial laans 15,184,707 15,212,954 11287 130565 14,158,593 14,185,448 113,326 158,278
Carsumer loars 4937758 4,530,250 427 fETE 5091501 5136406 13583 16,681
Maortgage loans 12411825 12,423,182 5043 ga3 11,262,995 11,273,700 63944 1445
Tatal 32,553,214 32.645.316 178,437 139,835 30,528,241 30,610,407 178,663 176,474
g.2) Provision on overdue portfolio without guarantees
Balance as of
Balance as of Pravisions Provisions Decembar 31,
January 1, 2020 Charged-off  established released 2020
MChs MChS MChS MChS MOhs
Commarcial kaars 158,278 [B3,258) 337,542 (250,571 130,565
Consumer kang 15,641 (I45ETD 176,506 (38,70 E6TE
Maorgage kaans La45 20 32,586 (31,812] 552
Total 176,414 {237,005) 541,034 [340,518) 139,835
Balance as of
Balance as of Provisions Provisions Decamber 21,
January 1, 2019 Charged-off  established released 2019
MChS MChE MChE MChE MCh
Cammaicial lnans 177.97 [67.92E) 325,745 (23702} 158,278
Cansumer loans 22027 1144962 ¥ ek [EL b 16,691
Marlgage loans 103 (1,727 34,404 132,263} 1445
Total 201,129 (Z14,615) 537415 (347.515) 176414
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NOTE 15
CURRENT AND DEFERRED TAXES, continued

g.3) Direct charged-off and recoveries

As of December 31,

2020 2012

MCh$ MChs
Direct cgarged-off Art, 31 Mo, 4, second paragraph 131.943) (32,709
Condonations that onginated liberation of provisions : x
Recoveries or remgotiations of credits charged off 70,154 B2 487
Total 38,205 49,778

g.4) Application Article 31 Mo, 4 paragraphs | and I

As of December 31,

2020 2019

MChS MMS
Charged-off according to first paragraph £ -
Cendonations according to third paragraph 3,504 5602
Total 3,594 5,602
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MOTE 16
OTHER ASSETS

The composition of other assets is the following:

As of
December 31,
2020 2019
MCh$ MCh$
Assets for leasing (1) 62,967 67,139
Assets received or awarded in lieu of payment (2)
Assets received in lieu of payment B2ED 12,387
Assets awarded at judicial sale 17430 2277
Prowision on assets received in lieu of payment or awarded (1.196) 2.042)
Subtotal 24,523 32,522
Other assets
Guarantee deposits {margin accounts) (3) BB 350 314,616
Maon-current assets classified as held for sale (4) 22036 22,304
Inwestments in gold 7BS 680
VAT credit tax 27519 22663
Prepaid expenses (B) 327,938 210,867
Assats recovered from leasing held for sale 3BT.6EE 432030
Macro-hedging valuation adjustrment (5) 319 3575
Pension plan assets 673 a70
Accounts and notes receivable 100,504 147,708
Mates receivable through brekerage and simultaneaus transactions 41360 43354
Other receivable accounts 33,567 44,262
Other assets 97,186 92428
Subtotal 1,651,366 1,334,647
Taotal 1,738,856 1,434,308

11 Corresponds to the assets available to be delivered under the financial lease modality,

2] The goods recaived in payment correspond to the goods received as payment of debts due from customers. The set of goods that remain acquirad in this way
musl not excesd 20% of the Bank's effective equity at any time, These assets currently represent 0.18% [0.29% as of December 31, 2019} of the Bank's effective
aquity.

The assets awarded in judicial auction, correspond to ascets that have been acquired at judicial auction in payment of debts previcusly contracted with the Bank
The assets acquired at judicial auction are not subject to the above mentioned margin, These properties are assets available for sale. For most assets, the sale can
be campheted within ane year fram the date the asset is received or acquired, In case the good is net seld within a yeaer, it must be punished
Additionally, a provision is recarded for the difference between the initial award value plus the additions and their estimated realizable value, when the former is
higher.

3 Correspond to deposits left in guarantee from determined derivative contracts, These guarantees become operative when the valuation from these derivatives
surpases the dafined thrasholds for the contracts, these can be in favor or against the Bank.

4) Corresponds o the interects in Redbanc 5.0, and Trandbank 5.0, which have been reclassiflied as non-current assets classified as held for sale in accordance with
IFRS 5 *Mon-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations *, far additional infarmation see Mata 1 t), Mate 40.

51 Corresponds ta the balances of the market value of the nat assets or liabilities coverad by hedges in a macro hedge (Mote Mo, 08).

&) In this item, the Bank has recorded the prepaid expense related to the Santander LATAM Pass pragram, which will naturally be consumed as our clients use fhe
Bank's transactional products, and therefore, the respective LATAM miles are assigned to them. Pass (loyalty program administered by LATAM airlines Group
SA). During the month of May 2020, LATAM Aidines Group 54 initiated a recrganization process in the Court of the Southern District of Mew York under Chapter
11, & process whose main abjective is for the ailine ta continue operating, In this context, LATAM has publicly indicated that its intention is to honar all current
and future tickats, as well as travel vouchers, miles and frequent fiyer programs. The Court of the Southern District of Mew York, agreed in the first hearing to
honor and maintain the frequent flyer program, explicitly “in the ordinary course of business® {that is, without changes), since it considered it as an important
asset for the company, Along the same lines, LATAM has formalized two tranches of the DIP (Debtor in Possession) financing proposal fer a total of USD 2,200
million, managing to capture all the resources that LATAM has indicated as necessary to operate during the crisis.
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NOTE 17
TIME DEPOSITS AND OTHER TIME LIABILITIES

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the composition of the item time deposits and other liabilities time is as follows;

As of
Decamber 31,
2020 2019
MCh$ MChS
Deposits and other demand liabilities
Checking accounts 11,342,643 8,003 108
Cther deposits and demand accounts 1,583,183 41002
Other demand liabilitias 1,635,062 1463221
Subtotal 14,560,893 10,297,432
Time depasits and other time liabilities
Time depasits 10,421,872 13,064,932
Time savings account 153,330 123,787
Other time liabilities 5,589 4.086
Subtotal 10,581,791 13,192 817
Tatal 25,142,684 23,490,249
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MOTE 18
INTEREANK BORROWINGS

a) Asof Decernber 31, 2020 and 2019 the line item interbank borrowings is as follow:

As of December 31
P e
BMChS MChE
Loans abtained frem the Central Bank of Chile 4,959,260 =
Loans from financial institutions in the country 217,102 2BEGOY
Loans from financial institutions abroad
Banca Santander 5.8, Madnd 034 485
The Bank of Mova Scotia 171024 134,819
The Bank of Mew Fork Mellon T05HED 119616
Bank of America KA. US Fareig 80,711 355,051
curcher Kantonalbank T1.304 -
‘Walls Fargo Bank M. 1255 21823
Stale Bank of India 36,013 28,231
Sumitema Mitsui Banking Comparation EELH ] 175415
‘Wachovia Bank MA 10,254 -
Banga Santander Hong Kang TAED 3697
Bank of Takio Mitsubishi 2055 156
Barca Santander Brasil 5.4, 1659 TE73
Standard Chartered Bank 1497 153,373
Jp Margan Chase, Mew Yark 1571 -
Standard Chartened Bank 1516 1413
Cajs Madrid - Caja de Aharras 62 -
The Hongkang and Shanghai Bank a4 -
Karea Exchange Sank Ta0 Tal
Indlusteial ard Commercisl Bark 755 a8
Hareg Eong and Shanghai Banking B4 [Z5F]
Knokrnin Bank 376 185
Banca Do Brasil 265 -
U5, Bank 248 =
China Merchants Bank 231 a7
Tarwan Cocporative Bank 227 iy
Bank of China 223 952
Hua Man Cammarsial Sank Ltd, 200 L]
Bangue Bruxelles Lambert 54 174 -
Banga Monte Del Paschi [y Siera LLE] kL
Uricredita Italiara Spa 161 83
Kely Hara Barlk 156 g
Barca Santander Ceniral Hispana 141 Bay
Bper Banca 5. P4 137 -
Hdfz Bank Lemited iEL el
Bank Leurni Le ksrael B.M. 128 =
Barik of Barada 124 9
Fartis Bank SA,0Y. Brussels 108 L]
Banca Commerciale ILaiana Bg 50
Catxa Destalvis | Pensions de Barcelona &7 63
Barca Bpm Spa B4 &6
Rabobank, Hong Kong Branch % 47
Banca de la Republica Orental T4 23
Kbe Bank Ny 1] 406
Canara Bank &1 GG
Hakils Bark Limited 61 3B
Frst Unian Mational Bank BD -
Camabank 54, 58 166
leici Bank Limited 52 =
Katak Mahindra Bank Limited 49 -
Citibank MN.A A 269,541
Aran Bank Flc 41
Chira Constructian Bark 3B -
Credit Agricole Italia 5.P.A 13
Bankinter, 5.4, £} .
Banco de La Macion Argenting n N
Bank of East Asia, Limifed 29 a2
Banco Popular Espannol, 5.4 29 -
Barca Interamencana de Finanz 20
Agricultural Bank of China 18 152
‘Woor Eank 15 155
Deniziark A5, | Istanbul 18 -
Urnted Bank of India 14 LE
Banca Popolare 14 =
Subtotal 1,152,198 1,495,414
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MOTE 18
INTEREANK BORROWINGS, continued

Ag of Decamber 31
2020 2019
MChE MChS
Leans from fimancial institutions abroad
Habib Metropolilan Bank Limile 13 -
E. Sun Commercial Bank Led. 1 154
Mevea Ljubljarska Barka DD, 7 -
Iredian Dhveerseas Bank &
Shanghai Cammerdial and Saving 1 &
Mizubz Rand Ltod My = B340
Barclays Bank Plc Londan FEE03
Cofparacion Andina De Fomento 5 7507
Zirchor Kantonalbank TEO02
The Torario Dominion Bank - .
Hishe Bank FLE . BA.THB
Bank af Montreal - 56123
Banca Latinoamenicana de Comer = 15731
Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria . &1
BBWA Barmcamer, 554 - 553
Bank of Communications 245
Eank of The West : 261
Danske Bank A5 . 224
Dreutsche Bank &G, . 193
Bank of Taman - 135
Shinkan Bank 123
Banca [ Credito Cooperativo - 12
Jpinit Stock Commercial Bank Fo . 10
Banca Naranste Del Lavars 5P - 106
Iredussinad Bank of Kovea e a6
Banco Bradesco 5.4, . B4
Eank ol Negha - 83
China Everbright Bank 0
Cases Di Risgarmio 0 Parna E - 69
Mizuba Carporate Bank Ltd, BY
Banco Camercial Porugues - 63
Shanghai Pudong Development Ba - 59
Kasikornbank Public Campany Li . EE]
Banco Rio de La Flata SA - 24
Australia and Mow Zealand Bank 23
Citie Industrial Bank - 19
Shangail Pudang Development Ban o 14
Banco Caiva Geral . 10
Hibg Bark USA - 2
Sulbtotal 38 737.801
Tatal 6,128,599 2,519,818
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NOTE 18
INTEREANK BORROWINGS, continued

b) Obligation with Central Bank of Chile

Within the framewcrk of the measures that the Central Bank has arranged to face the impact of the shocks to which the Chilean economy has been
exposed, as a result of the current Covid-19 pandemic, the Conditional Credit Facility for the Increase of the Placements (FCIC). This correspands to a
special financial line open to banks, in arder for them te cantinue financing loans to households and companies.

This facility can be withdrawn through an operation similar to a REPOQ, that is, its use is backed by eligible collaterals. Amang these are: Central Bank,
government and private bonds (bank and corporate] and, more recently, commercial loans from the individual evaluation portfolio that are classified
as having high credit quality. The resources destined for the FCIC can also be accessed through the Liquidity Credit Line (LCL), whose limit is the
reserve requirement in national currency.

The FCIC consists of an initial line and an additional one. The first reaches US § 4.8 billion. The additional line can reach 4 times the initial line, this Us
% 19,200 million and its availability depencls on two factors: growth of the base portfolio and targeting of credits towards smaller companies, in
addition to the aforementioned, the Central Bank created the FCIC 2 for an amount of US $ 16,000 millien.

The maturity of these obligations are as fallows:

As of Dacember,

2020 2019

MCh$ MCh%
Due Within 1 year -
Due Within 1y 2 years 1,104,752
Drue Within 2 y 3 years -
Due Within 3 y 4 years 3,854 501
Due Within 5 years -

Total 4,959,260 -

c) Loans from domestic financial institutions

These obligations maturities are as follows:

As of December,

2020 2019
MChS MCh$
D Within 1 year 217,102 148,835
Due Within 1y 2 years. - 117,344
D Within 2 v 3 years - 4,187
Due Within 3 y 4 years - 2237
D Within 5 years
Total 217,102 286,603

d) Foreign obligations

As of December,

2020 2019
MCh% MChS
Crue Within 1 year 1,116,510 1,970,790
Drue Within 1y 2 years 3566T 225,025
Crue Within 2 v 3 years - 37400
Drue Within 3 y 4 years - -
Drue Within 5 years
Total 1,152,237 2,233,215
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MNOTE 19
ISSUED DEBT INSTRUMEMTS AMD OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the composition for this item is as follows:

As of
December 31,

2020 2019

MChS MCh%
Other financial labilities
Ohbligatiens to public sector - 9,198
Other demestic obligations 175344 204,705
Foreign chligations B.974 12,455
Subtatal 184,318 226,358
Issued debt instruments
Mortgage finance bonds 12,314 18,502
Senior bonds 6,740,989 8,574,213
Meetgage Bonds B4.335 89,924
Subardinated honds 1,357,539 818,084
Subtotal 8,204,177 9,500,723
Total 8,388,495 8,727,081

Debts classified as current are either demand obligations or will mature in one year or less. All other debts are classified as non-current. The Bank's
debts, both current and nan-current, are summarized below:

As of December 31, 2020

Current Mon-current Taotal

MChS MCh3 MChS
Martgage finance bonds 45482 7352 12,314
Seniar bonds 1124558 5,625,431 6,749,989
Mortgage Bonds 5465 TE.8T0 £4,335
Subordinated bonds . 1,357,559 1,357,533
Issued dobt instruments 1,135,005 7,069,172 8,204,177
Other financial liabilities 184,028 290 184,318
T 1,319,033 7,069,462 8,388,495
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NOTE 19

ISSUED DEBT INSTRUMEMTS AMD OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES, continued

As of December 31, 2019

Current MNon-current Total

MCh$ MChS MCh$
Mortgage finance bonds 6,013 12,489 18,502
Senior bonds 24,078,202 496,011 B 574213
Mortgage Bonds 5137 Ba787 89,924
Subardinated bonds 2 B18,084 818,084
Issued debt instruments 2,089,352 741131 9,500,723
Other financial liabilities 226,033 325 226,358
Total 2,315,385 T411,696 a727.081

a) Mortgage finance bonds

These bonds are used to finance mortgage loans. Their principal amounts are amortized on a quarterly bazgiz. The range of maturiy of these bonds is
between five and twenty years. Loans are indexed to UF and create a yearly interest rate of 5.20% as of December 31, 2020 (5.3%% as of December 31,

2018),

As of
December 31,
2020 201%
MCh$ MChS
— e
Due within 1 year 4,582 6,013
Due after 1 year but within 2 years 3E16 4,944
Due after 2 years but within 3 years 2,375 928
Due after 3 years but within 4 years L] 2442
Due after 4 years but within 5 years 162 1,005
Due after 5 yvears & 170
Total mortgage finance bonds 12,314 18,502
b) Senior bonds
The fellowing table shows senior bonds by currency:
As of
Decembar 31,
2020 2019
MCh$ MChs
Santander bonds in UF 4,017,708 4,814,804
antander bonds in USD 1,263,714 1,649,238
Santander bonds in CHF 466,738 A9%, 485
Santander bonds in Chi 639,489 1,242,633
Santander bonds in ALD 125781 124,748
Santander bonds in JPY 68,093 17797
Santander bonds in EUR 168,466 165,708
Total senior bonds 6,749,985 8,574,213
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Banco Santander-Chile and Subsidiaries
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2020 and 2019

MNOTE 19
ISSUED DEBT INSTRUMEMNTS AMD OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES, continued

i. Placement of senior bonds:

As of December 31, 2020 the Bank has placed bonds for UF 1,996,000 and USD 742,5000,000 detailed as follows:

Series Currency Amount placed [:::::} rﬁ;::::arlre Issue date Amaount M:::':w

w1 UF 1,996,000 5 and 3 months 1.55 anual 12-01-20148 2,000,000 06-01-2025
Total UF 1,996,000 2,000,000

Eand UsD s 42 SN 000 5 .70 anual 0707 - 2080 TS0, K 07-01-2045
Total USDH 742,500,000 50,000,000

During 2020, the Bank repurchased the following bonds:

Date Type Currency Amount
01-02-200 Senior UF 3570
01-03-2020 Samior UF 300,000
01-08-2030 Lenior uF GO,000
01 =08 200 Seniar F 27000
01-13-2020 Semior CLP 20000000
01-14-2020 Senior UF 109,000
07-T4- 205 Senlar CLP S, BALO00 DON
01-14-2020 Senior UF 131,000
01-14-2020 Senior uF 322,000
071-15-20&0 Senior usD 2,430,000
01-15-2020 S UF 47000
01-16-2020 Senior CLp 406,000,000
01-16-20E0 Sanior UF 1,000
01-17-200 Saniar UF 28,000
01-20-2030 Zeniar F 74,000
01-21-2020 Senior WF 177,000
01-21-2020 Sanior UF 181,000
01-21-2020 Senior CLP 320000000
01-22-2020 Seniar CLP 11430000000
01-24-2020 Sanior UF 2,000
01-29-203) Senior UF 1,000
01-29-2020 Semiorn CLP 120000000
01-30-2020 Seniar [all 10,000,000
0137200 Saniar UF 40,0040
02-06-2020 Senior CLP 5,000,000,000
02-07-2020 Seniar fally 1,180,000,000
02-17-20] Lonior CLP T A 20000 D00
D2-1Z-2020 Senar CLP 2,520.000 000
02-13-2020 Senior CLP 10,000,000,000
Q2-17- 205 Seniar UF AL
02-17-2020 Sanior UF 15,000
02-18-2000 Senior uF S0,000
02 - 18- 2000 Zeniar LIF 4 000
02-20-2020 Samiorn UF 350,000
02-20-2030 Senior UF 115,000
B2-21-2000 Zeniar LF a7.000
02-21-2020 Seniar UF 24,000
02-24-2030 Senior UF 250,000
02-24- 2000 Seniar UF 000
02-26-2020 Semion UF 168,000
02-26-2020 Senior uF 1,000
DE2-2¥-200 Senior UF THOD, DO
02-27-2020 Semior UF 11,000
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Banco Santander-Chile and Subsidiaries
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2020 and 2019

MOTE 19
ISSUED DEBT INSTRUMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES, continued

Date Type Currency Amount
27-02-2020 Senior CLP 6, 750,000,000
0203200 Seniar uF 1,000
05-03-2030 Semior UF 2,000
0r3-03-2020 Sanior UF 261,000
ra-03-2030 Senior uF 150,000
11-03-20240 Semar LIF 2,000
17-03-2020 Sanior UF B50,000
18032000 Seniar [4]3 150,004
19-03-2020 SEmOr 5D 500,000
23-02-2030 Senior (13 95,000
E3-03-200 emar LIs0 5000000
24-03-2020 Semar CLP 1. 250000000
0032020 Senior uF 62,0040
21032000 Senior UF R0 00
31-03-2020 Seniar UF 3,000
01-04-2020 Senior cLp 4,000,000 000
0242000 Senior UF 5,184, 0K
02-04-2020 Sanior CLP 16,710,000,000
03-04-2020 Senior CLP 32,800,000.000
D304 20 Semor UF 2T
05-04-2020 Sanior CLP 1079, 400,000,000
06042020 Senior uF 157,000
050420 Semar Mal T 00
07-04-2020 Senior cLp 3,990.000,000
OF == 200 Senior UF 6659000
OF <l 2000 Semor AR TELEHIR 000
08-04-2020 Seniar CLp 210,000,000
130420240 Lenior LR ST0L000,000
T4-04- 2060 Semior CLP & OO0 DO
17-0d-2020 Senior cLP 11,30:0,000,000
L ] Sanior ush 49,000,000
14-05-2020 Senior usD 47,000,000
02-06-2020 Senior CLP 6,020,000.030
03-06-2030 Seniar uF 100,030
03-06-2030 Senior CLP 10,750,000,000
05-06-2020 Senior s 5,000,000
B8-06- 2030 Senior CLP 23,000, 000,000
12-06-2020 Senior P 150,000,000
16-06-2020 Senior CHF 12,160,000
1706200 Seniar CHF 3. 7H5,000
19-06-2020 Senior CLP 112,450,000, 000
22-D6-2020 Sanior CLP 1,500,000,000
26062000 Fenior CLP 3,500,000,000
02-07-2020 Semior CLP 4, 620,000, 00
100 = 2 0 Seniar CHF 2000000
10-07-2020 Sanior CLP 500,000,000
15-07-2020 SEMOr CLP AS0,000:000
17-07-2020 Senior uF 1,000
17-07-2020 Senior CLP 29, 780,000,000
13-08-2020 Senior uF 345,000
14-08-2020 Seniar LIsD 3350000
21082030 Seniar UF 100,004
21-08-2020 Seniar UF V000
24-08-2020 Semior LIF 11,000
25-08&- 203 Senior UF 14,000
3-0a-2020 Semor UF 24,00
-0 200 Seniar UF 0000
r3-09-2020 Sanior UF 45,000
10-09- 2020 Semar LIF 210,000
23-09-2020 Senior usth 5,000,000
28-09-2020 Senior LF 50,000
29-0a-203) Senior 413 1,000
30-09-2020 Seniar UF 43,000
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NOTE 19
ISSUED DEBT INSTRUMEMNTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES, continued

Date Type Currency Amount
10-0-2020 Senior UF 4,000
10 -0 2030 Seniar UF 1,000
T0-0G- 200 Semior WIF 1,000
10-06-2020 Senior CLP 30,000,000
10-06-2000 Senior UF 1,00
10-06-2027 Senior UF 1,000
10-15-2020 Sanior UF 2,000
10-20- 2030 Senior CHE 2000 000
10-01-2020 Senior ustr 5,153,030
10-12-2020 Senior uso 30,000,000
11-16-2030 Senior usD 1000000
11-15-2020 SEMar sl 10000800
11-15-2020 Senior s 477 510,000

During 2019 the Bank has placed bonds for UF 29,678,000, CLP 150,000,000,000, EUR 55,000,000, AUD 185,000,000 y en CHF 250,000,000, detailed as

fallows:

Series Currency Amaunt placed Term (years) k‘::t:m lssue date Slﬁz:'::::tmm M:':t:‘y
T UF 5000000 4 2505 02-01-201% SO0 02-01-2023
TH UF SETAO00 4 and & manths 255% 02012016 5A78, 000 08072023
T4 13 &, 000,000 a 2E0% 02012016 18,00, 0 20 - 2027
T8 UF 5,000,000 14 1.70% 11-01-2018 000,000 05-01-2023
TR UF 5,000.000 5 and 4 manhs 2.60% 02-01-2018 5000, 008 08-01-2024

Tatal UF 28,678,000 38,678,000
0] cLp TEOMOO00000 2 and & months ICF + [B0% 11012018 75,000,000,000 11192001
P-5 cLp TE,000,000,000 2 and & manths 5.3% 0E-01-2015 150,000,000, 000 05-01-2022

Total e 150, 000,000,000 225, 000,000,000
EUR EUR J0L000000 T 1.10% 02-01-20149 40000000 02-07-2026
EUR EUR 25,000,000 15 1.25% 11=26:2019 25 000,000 11-26-2034

Total EUR 55,000,000 65,000,000
ALUD AU 22,000.000 15 306% 05-20-2019 Z2000,000 05-20-2034
AUD AU 20000000 5 1.13% oF-11-20a 20000000 OF-11-2024
ALD AUD 28,000,000 5 1.13% OF172019 28000000 07172024

ALUD auD 15,000,000 5 1.13% OF-17-2019 15,000, 000 OF-17-2024

AUD AUD 75,000,000 20 305% 08-30-2019 T5000,000 02-25-2039
AUD AUD 12,000,000 15 316% 11-12-2019 TZ2.000,000 11-20-2034

AUD AUD 13,000,000 15 201% 11-21-2019 13,000,000 11-27-2024

Total AUD 185,000,000 185,000,000
CHF CHF 150,000,000 5 and 6 manths 038% 03-12-2019 150,000,000 0A-27-2024
CHF CHF 100,000,000 " 014% 08-29-2079 TO0000, 000 08-29-2029
Total CHF 250,000,000 250,000,000
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Banco Santander-Chile and Subsidiaries

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2020 and 2019

NOTE 19

ISSUED DEBT INSTRUMEMNTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES, continued

During 2013, the Bank partially repurchased the following bonds:

Date Type Currency Amount
0z-12-2019 Senior cLe 10,000,000,000
02-14-2019 Senior CLP 30,000,000.000
02-1%9-2019 Senior e 4,200,000,000
02-22-2019 Senior CLe 14,240,000,000
0-22-2019 Senior CLe 30,000,000
nz-22-209 Senior L 10,000,000
03-01-2019 Senior e 11.800,000,000
03-0d4-2019 Senior CLe A0,080,000,000
03-05-20149 Senior CLF 20,000,000,000
03-15-2019 Senior uUF 156,000
03-1%-2019 Senior UF 418,000
03-20-2019 Senior CLP G,710,000,000
03-20-2019 Senior UF 154,000
03-21-2019 Cenior UF 100,000
03-25-2019 Seenior UF 100,000
03-26-2019 Senior UF 90,000
04-08-2019 Senior L 3,950,000,000
04-10-2019 Senior UF 409,000
04-16-2019 Senior UF 55,000
04-17-20149 Senior CLP 130,000,000
04-18-2019 Sanior e 330,000,000
05-16-2019 Senior cLe 14,880,000,000
05-16-2019 Senior UF 9,000
06-13-2019 Senior UF 1.000
10-01-2019 Senior cLe 10,960,000,000
10-02-2019 Senior CLE 100,000,000
10-04-2019 Senior CcLP 60,000,000
11-05-2019 Senior el 15,220,000,000
11-07-2019 Senior CLe 3,620,000,000
11-13-2019 Senior cLe 5,320.000,000
11-14-2019 Senior uF 2.977.000
11-28-2019 Semior LUF 340,000
12-02-2019 Senior UF 105,000
Maturities for senior bonds are the following:
Az of
Dacember 21,
2020 2019
MChS MChs

Duse within 1 year 1,124,558 2,078,202

Dasir aftier 1 year but within 2 years 1,047,241 1,147,825

Duser after 2 years but within 3 years 742,081 1.221,393

D after 3 years but within 4 years 1,228,524 742,236

Duwe after 4 years but within 5 years 1,250,897 1,276,746

Due after 5 years 1,356,694 2,105,800

Total senior bonds 6,749,589 8,574,213
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Banco Santander-Chile and Subsidiaries
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2020 and 2019

NOTE 19
ISSUED DEBT INSTRUMENTS AND OTHER FINAMCIAL LIABILITIES, continued

¢} Mortgage bonds

The detail of mortgage bonds per currency is the following:

As of
December 31, E
2020 2019
MCh$ MChS
Martgage bonds in UF 84,335 89,924
Tatal martgage bands 84,335 B9.024
i. Placement of Mortgage bonds
As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Bank has not placed any mortgage bonds,
ii. Maturities of mortgage bonds is as follows:
A of
Dacember 21,
2020 2019
MCh$ MCh$
Druse within 1 year 5,465 5,137
Cree after 1 year but within 2 years 8773 B.24B
Cwee after 2 years but within 3 years 9,056 B.514
Cwee after 3 years but within 4 years q,348 B.TEE
D after 4 years but within 5 years 9,648 0,072
D after 5 years 42,044 50,165
Total mortgage bonds £4,335 B5,924
d) Subordinated bonds
Detail of subordinated bands per currency is as follows:
As of
December 31,
2020 2019
MChS MCh$
Subordinated bonds denaminated in Chi & 2
subordinated bonds denarminated in USD 202,634 -
Subordinated bBonds denaminated n UF 1,154,905 818,084
Total subordinated bonds 1,357,539 518,084
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Banco Santander-Chile and Subsidiaries
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2020 and 2019

NOTE 19
ISSUED DEBT INSTRUMEMTS AMD OTHER FINAMCIAL LIABILITIES, continued

i. Placement of subordinated bonds

As of December 31, 2020 the Bank has placed bonds for LSD 200,000,000 and UF 11.000.000 detailed as follows:

: Series Maximum Matirity
Series Currency Amount placed Tarm (years) Issuance rate Issue date seiand date
Bone USD US0 200,000,000 10 3.75% 01-21-2080 200000, DO 21-01-2035])
Total USD 200,000,000 200,000,000
USTOH20914 UF 000,000 14 y & months 100% 09-01-2014 2000, 000 01-09-2024
USTOHI0a4 UF 3,000,000 19 ¥ 5 months 115k 09-01-2014 3,000,000 01-09-2058
UETRAWENEED UF 5,000,000 15 ¥ 3 months 3.507% 03-01-2080 5000, 000 01-03-20355
Tatal UF 11,004,000 11,000,000
ii. The maturity of the subordinated bonds is as follows:
The maturity of the subordinated bonds is as follows:
As of
December 31,
2020 2019
MCh% MChE
Drnee within 1 year - i
Dwe after 1 year but within 2 years
Dwue after 2 years but within 3 years -
Due after 3 years but within 4 years
Mows aftar A waare biin within S waare = 4
Cwee after 5 years 1,357,534 E18,0B4
Total mortgage bonds 1,357,539 818,084
e} Other financial liabilities
The composition of other financial liabilities, by maturity, is detailed below:
As of
December 31,
2020 2013
Mchs Mchs
Non-current portion:
Dua after 1 year but within 2 years 42 40
Due after 2 year bat within 3 years 47 43
Due after 3 pear but within 4 years 50 47
Due after 4 year but within 5 years 35 52
Due after 5 years 6 143
Non-current portion subtotal 280 325
Current portion:
Amounts due to credit card operators 134,790 151,984
Acceptance of letters of credit 1450 5,708
Qther lang-term financial obligations, short-term portion 47778 58,340
Current portion subtotal 184,028 226,033
Total other financial liabilities 184,318 226,358
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Banco Santander-Chile and Subsidiaries

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2020 and 201%

NOTE 20

MATURITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

#s of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the detail of the matudities of assats and labilities is as follows:

Botwasn T Batweon i Pdicew than 1
A of December 31, 2030 Up 1o Barbwaeens 1 and ared U e 1 e Between 1 and and Muore than pear
Dwmrand 1 manth 1 manths 12 manths Suhbbctal ¥ yean 5 yeamn. 5 yoars Saitintal Tedal
FChS MChE MIChS MChE WICHE MChS WI0HS. MChS MChE MChS
— — — — — — — — — ——

Asimbi
Canih asedl dhaponits in Basks 280328 2,80% 338 3,883 k83
Cash items in process of collaction 452951 s 0 = 452963 2 - = - 452,863
Trading imsitmanty - &al 2630 a 5800 LEE] B IST 191 Ol A, 0 133,13
Irsastrrasnts urad ev resals agresments - E - - - . - : .
Finareial dasivatioes contracs InE25 A0 adE AR 1,542,596 pRFERED] LER2 14T A03a0m1 T4, 887 9,002,085
Ireibank boans (1) - 12363 5581 - 1B.530 . - - - 13,530
Logns and accounis recewables. from cusomens (21 T LERRIL 1AL 1ATG24G 114G Ankaasa BIRGAT RIS ETOTE TR} T4, 753,740
A kb hor salic PainnTieaL 1,005.363 £33 1Ea W7 1.196.45% 205,150 237B75L 3xa7 5, 96E, 0 T 162 542
Hedd b matueky e stments - £ - = - E: 7 > - -
s i e i S [ B8 350 - £08 359 60, 53
Total assers 4038324 ¥R 165 1,248 268 4,655 603 13177850 552911 4397302 31,437,352 &1,424, 265 54,602,125
Liabsifnses
Depceits arad oiher demand Labilties 14 SEOLES3 14560393 - 14,560, B33
il ilinsis in gresiria al cellaiin 2&1 631 . 381,631 3E1,631
Cibhigations uns srchase agrasments WA 5 40,808 - - 98, B3
Time deponiis and oiter ime luikbes [EELH ) Al LHIZ9S 1AM 244 10a50am RLR R ] A4 3 AR LAl 13,580,751
Firaracial deskeibees contrams 3BEG0) AEITR 331,358 LT§3.424 1552482 1,708, 505 amsa0dn T.255.215 3,018,560
Irneibank boeroad nge 16EIZ 23E414 222932 ELCTER 1333672 1140 476 3B5AEN 4,984 937 £,373.559
hued debs inromenis 347 T IIT 343156 1135005 1813341 2,439,550 2756271 T063,172 2,204,177

wtial ksl 44478 E-AEH 1,378 0 134,828 Ea Aas L3 2] 184,313

o dor |iriss agpeements I5526 25428 44933 ISEPH 43447 124,080 149,585
Graaramees reoeved (mangin acoot ms [FOF - 34205 - 624,705
Tontal liali s 15,467,957 TAE1ATA 4,009 245 3,589,747 31,200,003 4,714,324 B14273E BEIT.582 19,574, 584 50,983,667

1) Interbank loars are preserted on a gross basis, The amaunt of allowances is Ch310 milion
12} Lears and accounts recerables from customers are presented on a gross basis, Pravisions on lcars smounts sccording 1o customer type are the fallawing: Commencal loares ChE 646,689 millian, Mortgsge loans

ChE &1,281 millicn and Consumer loars Chd 260841 millian.

Consaolidated Financial Statements December 2020 7 Banca Santander-Chile 99




Banco Santander-Chile and Subsidiaries
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2020 and 201%

NOTE 20
MATURITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES, continued

Bartwaan 3 Eatwoun 3 iore than 1
A of December 27, 2009 Up o Between 1 and and U 50 1 yearr Between 1 and and Pefigre: than Fear
Bamand 1 manth 3 momtha 12 mantha Subksal ¥ yoan 5 yean 5 yoamy Subtatal Tartal
MEh_S MG w:r& MChE MACHE. I-HILF DT PTRE PACRE MChE
Finasial Assets
Cash gnad depreits in banks ASLRD 2 i3 5 LB R0 = p B = 1,554 520
Cash items in prooess of collecton L5062 355,062 . 355,082
Trading ireesimmnt . 38644 (21 5,269 i@, 7o k] 11,581 30,815 Fplok-
It usdi risib dgrissrwats - - - - - . . - - -
Tirawmcial derieires conirscy . N A4 LA MG 2315417 1085401 1186, 5103, 163 5,830,191 a,148 600
Intarhank ipans (1] = TREAT Lk £ 14052 = g = = T4, E52
Loan: snd sccoants reasvaldes from cusmomers (2 N1 2858221 2402260 SGEASET 11,340,243 B.04.433 LE10EDD .TE1L521 21,3764 32,715,683
ALl for sale mastments 1131500 ave2 E2130 1,187,282 EQE,EBE T2EAIS 1,588,275 2,B¥3 F30 4,010,272
Hid Lo fraturity i i . -
Guararfes dipasti |mang 314676 - - - 514,616 - - - - 314,618
Toial financial asseis 4,535,365 4513767 2802047 T255 064 T8 121267 EOTEZET 5 Ta02T 16,465,315 0,203,633 45, 3E5.017
Finasarial LisbiFies:
[Repcaits and of her demand bakilities MFHTANE - - - 10207413 . ] - - 10257402
Cash items in prodes ol colkecion 158,248 1o, 243 . 153,243
Orbganions uincker fingurichase g st nisnts - 3EQ.055 - - B3,055 . - - - 3E0,055
Time depoaits and ofter time labillies 142273 LIBSET 45054014 21785 12,649,087 AL 16110 FRF i) £42, 560 14,192,817
Firancial decivatives comiracts - Az2TAN EEREES 45168 1,002,258 1100 1180 5 154,768 5,50, 190 TIRESA
Irmarbank beesorainegs 94 3EZEED 24,067 1141814 FAE 11 34T EEE 2 - 83,173 2.519.E13
lmued debas instruments = 285,150 759519 1044 7L 2,063,352 2394257 Zoazaan 24223 TAITY 3,500,723
Oihar hisaricial Lk ks 181,01 5155 209:8 BEAE 2FE,033 B3 | 143 25 23,353
Crbiganions for b agrecmimis - - 26,051 E,DET 45,378 35393 50,063 132,433 153,434
Guararfess recewd (mangin scccurmhy) LRt - - - o84, 714 . - - - 4,714
Total financial labiktie 11,793,762 6841, 245 6,747 834 5510,334 0,753,755 4,435 884 3,425,089 ] 14,065,558 44,853,313

(13 Interbank kaans are presented on a gross basis, The amount of alowances i Chi 19 millian.
12y Loans and accounts receivables from oustamess. are presented on & gross basis. Provisions amounts accoeding b oustamer type of losn are the foliowing: Commerdial loans for Thd 512842 millian, Mortgsge
loars for ChE 63,461 millicn snd Corsumes loans for Chi 312,245 millior,
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Banco Santander-Chile and Subsidiaries

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AS OF DECEMEBER 31, 2020 AMD 2019

NOTE 21
PROVISIONS

a) Az of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the detail for the provisions is as follows:

As of
December 31,
2020 2019
MCh$ MCh%

Provision for employes salaries and expenses 104,270 101,223

Provision for mandatory dividends. 155,234 165,628

Provision for contingent loan risks:

Prowision for lines of credit of immediate disponibility 17,293 21,411
Other previsians for contingent loans 19,460 17,135

Brovision for contingencies 33,814 15,388

Additanal provisions 126,000 16,000

Fravision for foreign bank loans A9 552

Total 456,120 337,397
k) Below is the activity regarding provizions during the year ended December 31, 2020 and 2019;

Provision
Provision for Provision for  Provision for Provision for
employee salaries  mandatory contingent loan  Provision for Additonal foreign bank
and expenses dividends risks contingencles  provisiens laans Tatal
MCh$ MCh$ MChS MCh$ MCh3 MCh$ MCh$

Balances as of January 1, 2020 101,223 165,628 38,606 15,388 16,000 552 337,397
Provision estatlished 76,281 155,234 7.823 25,088 126,000 279 390,705
Application of provisicns (T1.481) (165628} - - = - (237.109)
Provisions relased [1,755) - (9.67E) {6,662) {16,000) [182) {34,875)
Reclasification - - - - - - -
Cther 2 - - - B E 2
Balances as of December 31, 2020 104,270 155,234 36,753 33,814 126,000 43 456,120
Balances as of January 1, 2019 93,379 177,571 29407 8,963 20,000 620 329,940
Provision established 73318 TBE EZE 15870 2r0Th 16,000 393 304,196
Application of provisions (70,385) (177,571 - (155) - . (248,111)
Provisicns relased (552 - (6,680 121,395) (20,000) (A58 (49,093)
Reclasification - - - - - - -
Cther 465 - - - - - 465
Balances as of December 31, 2019 101,223 165,628 1B606 15,388 16,000 552 337,397
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Banco Santander-Chile and Subsidiaries
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AS OF DECEMEBER 31, 2020 AMD 2019

NOTE 21
PROVISIONS, continued

¢} Provisions for personal salaries and expenses

As of December 31,

2020 2019

MChS MCh%
Provision for seniority compensation bB5E 6,747
Provision for stock-based persanal benefits = -
Provision for perfarmance bonds 65,786 GE,555
Provision for vacation 29,307 23,864
Provision for other personal benefits 2319 1.967
Total 104,270 101,223

d)  Compensation year of services

As of December 31,

2020 2019

MCh$ MCh%
Balances as of January 6,797 9,531
Ingrease in the provisicen 2,600 3,742
Payments made (2.663) 6,435)
Advance payments = -
Released of provisions (6B} (a4
CHRer movements - 3
Total 6,658 6,797

e)  Movement of the provision for compliance bonds
As of Decamber 31,

2020 2018

MCh$ MChs
Balances as of January 68,595 59,633
Increase in the provision 58,924 51,608
Payments mada (60, 144) (52,839)
Advance payments [1,589) (4BE)
Released of provisians 451
Total 65,786 68,595

fi  Provision for vacation

As of December 31,

2020 2019

MChS MCh$
Balances as of January 23,864 22,792
Increase in the provision 13,585 11,644
Payments made {8,144) (10572)
Advance payments - -
Releasad of provisions 2 -
Total 29,307 23,864
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MOTE 22
OTHER LIABILITIES

Other liabilities consist of

As of
December 31,

2020 2019

MCh$ MCh$
Accounts and notes payable 227518 214,216
Income received in advance 828 a4l
Adjustrment due ta macro-hedging valuation 51,089
Guaranteas receivad (margin accounts) (1) 524,205 994,714
Maotes payable through brokerage and simultaneous transactions {2) 12,504 1418340
Crther payable ocbligations 139,622 01,555
Withholding VAT 14,129 8,147
Accounts payable insurance companies 1391 9,510
Other liabilities 82,047 99,203
Tatal 1,165,853 2,806,325

(1} Guarantee deposits (margin accounts) comespond to collaterals associated with derivative financial contracts. These guarantees operate when
the mark to market from derivative financial instruments exceed the levels of threshold agreed in the contracts, which could result in a delivery
or reception of collateral for the Bank.

(2} On December 31, 20719, Santander Corredaora de Balsa acted as an intermediary in the public offer of shares held between Latam and Delta,
which was paid to shareholders on January 3, 2020
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MOTE 23
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

a) Lawsuits and legal procedures

At the date of issuance of these consalidated financial statements, there are several legal actions brought against the Bank in relationship with
operations of the line of business, As of December 31, 2020, the Bank maintains provisions for this concept that amaount ta § 1,024 million (% 1,274
million as of December 31, 2019), which are in the Consclidated Statement of Financial Position, forming part of the item “Provisions for
contingencies”.

Banco Santander Chile

There are 14 lawsuits for various legal actions in the amount of £ 873 million, our attorneys have not estimated material losses for these lawsuits.

Santander Corredores de Bolsa Limitada

Lawsuit “Echeverria with Santander Corredora” (currently Santander Comredores de Bolsa Lida)), Followed before the 21st Civil Court of Santiago, Rol
C-21.366-2014, on Compensation for damages due to failures in the purchase of shares, the amount of the claim is for $ 60,000,000. Regarding its
current situation as of December 31, 2020, this lawsuit is in the evidence gathering stage, therefore, Santander Corredores de Bolsa Limitada is
waiting for the court to resolve.

Santander Corredora de Seguros Limitada

There are lawsuits amounting to UF 13,314 corresponding to processes mainly for goods delivered in leasing, Qur lawyers have not estimated
additional material losses for these trials.

Santander Consumer Finance Limitada

Lawsuit “Erna Mining and Machinery Service with Santander Consumer Finance Ltda.”, Followed before the 11th Civil Court of Santiago, Rol C-9459-
2018, according to the latest update, the abandonment of the procedure has not yet been requested.

Trial "Banco Bilbao Viscaya Argentaria Chile with Roca Qlivares Olga”, followed before the 2nd Civil Court of Talcahuano, Rol C-1272-2017, main trial
filed since 2020.

Trial "Hawas with Santander Consumer®, followed before the 30th Civil Court of Santiago, Rol C-8%0-2019, notice of evidence is notified, in which it is
indicated that the probationary term is suspended.

Trial "Rocio Barrientas with Santander Consumer”, followed by the 2nd San Bernardo Local Police Court, Rol 2779-5-2020, ordering evidentiary
procesdings: completed. Waiting for sentence.

b) Contingent loans

To meet customer needs, the Bank acquired several irrevocable commitments and contingent liabilities, although these obligations should not be
recogrized in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, these contain credit risks and are therefore part of the Bank's overall risk.

The following table shows the Bank's contractual obligations to issue loans:

As of
December 31,
2020 2019
MCh% MCh%
Contingent loans

Letters of credit issued 165,119 140,572
Foreign letters of credit confirmed BTG 0,198
Performance guarantees 1,080,643 1,920 604
Personal guarantees 441,508 451,950
Subtatal 1,780,049 2,502,608
On demand credit lines B.351,474 B 732422
Other irrevocable eredit commitments 406,234 485,991
Total 10,577,697 11,811,021
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MOTE 23
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS, continued

€]  Held securities

The Bank holds securities in the normal course of its business as follows:

As of
December 31,
2020 2019
MChs MChS
Third party aperations
Collections 83,392 G0 966
Transfarred financial assets managed by the Bank 1807 21,507
Assets from third parties managed by the Bank and its affiliates 1,352,032 1,582, B45
Subtotal 1,453,441 1,705,318
Custody of securities
Securities hald in custody 11,022,790 0,731 604
Securities held in custody depasited in othar entity a0a. 186 1.208,541
Issued securities held in :uswd_-,- 10,461,847 21,536,_519
Subtotal 22,202,823 32,575,254
Total 23,746,264 34,280,572

The Bank classified the portfolios managed by private banking in “Assets from third parties managed by the Bank and its affilistes”, as of December
31, 2020, the balance for this was Ch$ 1,592,810 million {Ch3 1,592,810 million at December 31, 2019),

d) Guarantees

Banco Santander-Chile has an integral bank policy of coverage of Official Loyalty M°5014196 in force with the company Compania de Seguros
Chilera Consolidada SA, Coverage for 50,000,000 USD per claim with an annual limit of 100,000,000 USD, which covers both the Bank and its
subsidianes, with an expiration date of June 30, 2021,

Santander Corredores de Bolsa Limitada

il As of December 31, 2020, 2020 the Company has comprehensive guarantees in the Santiago Stock Exchange to cover simultaneous operations
carried out through its own portfolio for a total of Ch$ 6,493 (Ch$ 6,360 as of December 31, 2013).

iy Additicnally, as of December 31, 2020, the Company helds a guarantee in CCLY Contraparte Central S.A., in cash, for an amount of Chi 11,800
{Ch$ 9,300 as of December 31, 2019).

iii} In order to ensure the correct and full compliance of all its obligations as Brokerage Broker, in accordance with the provisions of articles 30 and
follawing of Law N* 18,045 on Securities Market, the Company has delivered ficed-income securities to the Santiagn Stock Exchange for a
present value of Chd 1,001 as of December 31, 2020 (Chs 1,010 as of December 31, 2019),

iv] As of December 31, 2020, 2020, the company has a guarantee for equity loans in the amount of § 3,481 million (% 3,542 million as of December
31, 2019).
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NOTE 23
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS, continued

Santander Corredora de Seguros Limitada

il In accordance with those established in Circular M® 1,160 of the CMF, the company has contracted an insurance palicy to respand to the comect
and full compliance with all obligations arising from its operations as an intermediary in the hiring insurance.

iy The insurance palicy for insurance brakers N*123015222, which covers UF 500, and the professional lability policy for insurance brakers M*
0153014298 for an amount equivalent to UF 60,000, were contracted with the Insurance Compania Aseguradora Porverir. Both are valid from

April 15, 202 to Apnl 15, 2021,

Klare Corredora de Seguros 5.4,
In accordance with the provisions of Circular Mo, 1,160 of the CMF, the Company has contracted an insurance policy to respond ta the carrect and
complete fulfillment of all the obligations ansing from its operations as an intermediary in the contracting of insurance. The guarantee policy for
insurance brokers No. 163143, which covers UF 500, contracted with Comparia HDI Seguros de Garantia y Crédito 5.4 They are valid from April
15, 2020 to April 14, 2021.

Sociedad Operadora de Cards de Pago Santander Getnet Chile 5.A.
From July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021, Banco Santander Chile has established the integral bank policy for employee loyalty coverage Mo, FLOOZETA, in

force with Compafia de Seguros Chilena Consolidada SA, coverage with a general limit of USD50,000,000 per event and USDI00,000,000 in the
annual aggregate, in each and every event which jointly covers both the Bank and its Subsidiaries.
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NOTE 24
EQUITY

a) Capital

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019 the Bank has 188,446,126,794 shares cutstanding amounting Ch$ 831,303 million, all of which are subscribed for
and paid in full. All shares have the same rights, and have no preferences or restrictions,

The movement in shares far the period of Decernber 31, 2020 and 2019 is the following:

Shares
As of December 31,
2020 2019
lssued &5 of lanuary 1 188.446,126,794 188,446,126, 794
Issuance of paid shares
Issuance of outstanding shares
Stock options exercised -
Issued a period end 158,446,126, 794 188.446,126,794

s of December 31, 2020 and 2019 the Bank does not own any of its shares in treasury, nor do any of the consolidated companies.

Az of December 31, 2020 the shareholder composition is the following:

% of equity
Corporate Name or Shareholder’s Name Shares ADRs (*) Tatal holding

Santander Chile Halding 5.4, 55,822,519,695 . 66,822,519,605 3546
Teatinos Siglo XX| Inversicnes Limitada 39,770,481,573 - 59,770,481,573 .72
The Bank of Mew York Mellon = ZZAS06TLAT] 22,450,671,671 11.91
Banks on behalf of third parties 15925,407.468 . 15,925,407.463 845
Pengian funds (AFF) on behall ef third parties $,529,343,374 - 9,929,343,874 527
Stock brokers on behalf of third parties G892,162,920 T 6,892,162,980 365
Qther minority holders £655,539,533 - 5,655,539,533 353
Total 165,995,455,123 22,450,671,671 1B8.446,126, 794 100,00

(*} American Depository Receipts (ADR) are certificates issued by a US, commercial bank to be traded on the US. securities markets,
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MOTE 24
EQUITY, continued

As of December 31, 2019 the shareholder compasition is the fallowing:

% of equity
Corporate Mame or Shareholder's Name Shares ADRs [*) Tatal halding

Santander Chile Halding 5.4, 46,422,519,695 - 66,622,519,695 3545
Teatinos Siglo %1 Inversiones Limitada 59,770,481,573 = 58, 770,481,573 31.72
The Bank of New York Mellon - 24,822,041,271 24, 822,041,271 13.17
Banks on behalf of third parties 15,957137,883 g 15,957,137 883 847
Pension fund (AFF] on behalf of third parties 9,995,705,936 = 9,995,705,956 530
Stock brokers on behalf of third parties 5,551,024.270 - 5,551,024,270 245
Cither minarity holders 5.527,216,146 i 5,527,216,146 2493
Total 163,624,085,523 24,822,041,21 188,446,126,794 100,00

(%] American Depesitory Receipts {ADR) are certificates issued by a U5 commercial bank to be traded on the LS, securities markets.
b) Reserves

During 2020, on the occasion of the Shareholders' Meeting held in April, it was agreed to capitalize 40% of the retained earnings fram previous years
into reserves, equivalent to % 220,838 million (3 236,767 million in 2019),

¢) Dividends
The distribution of dividends has been disclosed in the Consclidated Statements of Changes in Equity.
d)  Diluted earnings per share and basic earnings per share

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the composition of diluted earnings per share and basic earnings per share are as follows:

As of December 31,

2020 2019

MChs MCh$
a) Basic earnings per share
Total attributable to equity halders of the Bank AT A47 552043
Weighted average number of outstanding shares BB 446,126,794 1848,446,126,794
Basic earnings per share (in Chs) 274G 2930
Diluted earmings per share continuing operations (in Ch) 2,746 321
b) Diluted earnings per share
Total attributable to equity holders of the Bank
Weighted average number of outstanding shares ST 44T 552,093
Assumed comeersion of comvertible debt TBE 446,126,754 188,446,126,734
Adjusted number of shares i ’
Diluted earnings per share (in Ch3) 1BE 446,126,754 188,446,126,734
Diluted earnings per share cantinuing operations (in Chi) 2746 24930

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Bank does not own instruments with dilutive effects.
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NOTE 24
EQUITY, continued

e) Other comprehensive income of available for sale investments and cash flow hedges:

As of
December 31,
2020 2019
MChS MCh$
Available for sale investments
As of January 1, 30,398 6424
Gain (losses) on the re-valuation of available for sale investments, before tax 26,128 [16,023)
Reclassification from ather comprehensive income o net income for the year - -
Mot income realized 43 609 39997
Subtotal 69,737 23,974
Total 100,135 30,398
Cash flow hedges
As of January 1, (40,435) 9,803
Gains {losses) on the re-valuation of cash flow hedges, before tax (93,182) 49, 163)
Reclassification and adjustments cn cash flow hedges, before tax (3.148) (1.075)
Armcunts remaved from equity and mcleded in carrying ameunt of non-financial asset (lability) whose
acguisition or assignmaent was hadged as a highly probabde transaction
Subtotal (96.330) (50,238)

Total [136,765) (40,435)
Other comprehensive income, before tax (36,030) (10,037)
Income tax related to other comprehensive income components
Income tax relating to available for sale investrnents (27,037 [B,208)
Inceme tax relating 1o cash flow hedges 38,927 10,919
Total 5,890 2,711
Other comprehensive income, net of tax (26,740) (7,328)
Attributable to:

Equuity holders of the Bank (27.5BE) (B,0%3)

Nen-contrelling interest E46 T67

The Bank expects that the results included in “Other comprehensive income” will be reclassified to profit or loss when the specific conditions have
been met.
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NOTE 25
CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS (BASEL)

In accordance with Chilean General Banking Law, the Bank must maintain a minimum ratio of effective equity to risk-weighted consolidated assets of
8% net of required allowances, and 3 minimum ratio of basic equity to conselidated total assets of 3%, net of required allowances. However, as a
result of the Bank's merger in 2002, the CMF (ex 5BIF) has determined that the Bank’s combined effective equity cannot be lower than 11% of its
risk-weighted assets, Effective net equity is defined for these purposes as basic equity (capital and reserves) plus subordinated bonds, up to a
maxirmum of 50% of basic equity.

Assets are allocated to different nisk categaries, each of which is assigned a weighting percentage according to the amount of capital required to be
held for each type of asset. For example, cash, deposits in banks and financizl instruments issued by the Central Bank of Chile have a 0% risk
weighting, meaning that it is not necessary to hold equity to back these assets according to current regulations, Property, plant and equipment have
a 1003% risk weighting, meaning that a minimum capital eguivalent ta 11% of these assets must be held. All derivatives traded off the exchanges are
also assigned a risk weighting, using a conversion factor applied to their notional values, to determine the amount of their exposure to credit risk,
Off-balance-sheet contingent credits are also included far weighting purposes, as "Credit equivalents™.

According to Chapter 12-1 of the CMF (ex SBIF), Recopilacidn Actualizada de Normas [Updated Compilation of Rules] effective January 2010, the
CMF changed existing regulation with the enforcement of Chapter B-3 fram the Compendium of Accounting Standards, which changed the risk
exposure of contingent allocations from 100% exposure to the fallowing:

Type of contingent loan Exposure

a) Fledges and other commercial commitments 100%
b3 Foreign letters of credit confirmed 20%
cl Letters of credit issued 20%
d) Guarantees 508
g} Interbank guarantes letters 100%
f) Awailable lines of credit 35%
gl Other loan commitrments:

= Higher education loans Law M7 20,027 15%

- Othier 100%
hy Gther contingent loans 1004

On January 12, 2019, Law 21,130 that Modernizes Banking Legislation was published in the Official Gazette. This law introduces modifications,
among other regulatory bodies, to the General Law of Banks (LGB), to Law 21,000 that created the Commission for the Financial Market, to the
Organic Law of the State Bank of Chile and to the Tax Code.

Among the main changes introduced by this Law, the integration of the SBIF with the Commission for the Financial Market (CMF), new capital
requirements in accordance with the international standards established by Basel 11l as well 25 new limits for credit operations, stand out.

The new Law adopts the highest international standards in banking regulation and supervision, strengthening international competitiveness and
contributing to the financial stability of Chile.

On March 30, 2020, the CMF informs on the flexibility to implement Basel [l In coordination with the Central Bank of Chile, they resolved to
postpone the implementation of the capital requirements reguired by the standard by one year and to maintain the current general regulatory
framework for banking capital requirements until December 2021.

As of the date of these consolidated financial statements, the CMF has issued the following circulars related to Basel 1),

= Circular Mo, 2,270 - General criteria and guidelines for determining additional equity requirements as a result of the supervision pracess pursuant
to Title ¥ and article 66 quinguies of the General Banking Law. Updates Chapter 1-13 and introduces new Chapter 21-13 to the Updated Collection
of Standards for Banks.

+ Circular Mo, 2,272 - Additional basic capital, articles 86 bis and 66 ter of the General Banking Law. Incorporates Chapter 21-12 to the Updated
Campilation of Standards.

+ Circular No. 2,273 - Ratio between basic capital and total assets. Incorporates Chapter 21-30 to the Updated Compilation of Standards.

= Circular MNa. 2,274 - Equity for legal and regulatory purposes. Incorporates Chapter 21-1 into the Updated Compilation of Standards to replace
Chapter 12-1.
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MOTE 25
CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS (BASEL), continued

= Circular Ma. 2,276 - Factars and methadology for banks ar a group of banks rated as systemically impartant. It incorporates Chapter 21-11 the
Updated Compilation of Standards and updates provisions of Chapter 12-14,

» Circular Mo, 2,279 - Preferred shares, bonds without a fixed maturity term and subordinated bonds. Incorporates Chapters 21-2 and 21-3 to the
Updated Compilation of Standards.

* Circular Mo. 2,280 - Standardized Methodology for the Computation of Assets Weighted by Operational Risk. Incorporates Chapter 21- § to the
Updated Compilation of Standards.

+ Circular No. 2,281 - Determination of weighted assets for credit risk. Incorporates Chapter 21-6 to the Updated Compilation of Standards.

« Circular Mo, 2,282 - Incorporates a new Chapter 21-7 on the determination of assets weighted by market risk to the Updated Compilation of
Standards.

« Circular Ma. 2,283 - Promation of market discipline and transparency through the disclosure of infarmation requirements from banking entities
[Pillar 3). Incorporates Chapter 21-20 to the Updated Compilation of Standards,

= Circular N ® 2,284 - Creates R11 file related to the measurement of the systemic importance index,

These standards come into effect as of December 1, 2020, their applications will be gradual depending on the standard to be dealt with.

The levels of basic capital and effective net equity as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, are the following:

Consolidated assets Risk-welghted assets (**¥)
As of As of
December 31, December 31,
2020 2019 2020 2019
MCh$ MChi MChS MChS
Balance-sheet assets (net of allowances)
Cash and deposits in banks 2803288 3,554 520 - -
Cash in process of collection 452963 355,062 173,466 112,948
Trading investments 1337118 270,204 14,655 26,825
Investrents under resale agresments - 3 - )
Financial derivative contracts (*) 2,742,701 1,355,866 1,602,495 G6d,623
Interbank laans, net 18,920 14,833 15,250 14,833
Loans and accaunts receivables fram customers, net 33413429 31,823.735 26,651,340 27,318,050
Available for sale investment 7,162,542 4,010,272 518,908 258,958
Inwestrments in associates and other companies 10,770 10467 10,770 10,467
Intangible assets 82,537 73,360 82,537 73,389
Property. plant, and equipment 187.240 197,833 187,240 197,833
Right of use assats 20,611 210,500 201,611 210,500
Currant taxes - 1,648 a 1,185
Crefarred taxes 538,114 AGEBOT 53812 45,287
Other assets{**) 1,236,374 1,434,308 1,233,016 1,421,381
Off-balance-sheet assets
Contingent loans 4378.214 4,938, 1594 2,615,644 2823713
Total 53,362,427 48,723 618 33 460,744 33,478,952

¢y “Financal derivative cantracts” are preserted at their “Credit Equivalent Risk® walee as established in Chapter 12-1 of the Updated Compilation of Rules issued by the CHF.

1 Od Manch 30, 2020, 1he CMF published dreular Mo, 2248, which indicates that the CWF has aulhanized the presentation of net pesitions of dedvaties and guaraniees granted Lo Thind partes,
under tho protectian of bilateral compansation agreements recagnized by the Condral Bank af Chile, For puposes of computing assets for capital adequacy,

%1 On August 21, 2020, circular Mo 2265 wes publshed indicating the new trestment, where the amounds of the orodits that are guaranioced by the Chican Treasery are incorponaéed info category 2 of the nsk-weighted asset
claxsfication, , OO0 and FOGAPE, which conaequently went from having a credil risk waight of 1005 o 0%,
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NOTE 25
CAPITAL REQUIREMEMTS (BASEL), continued

The ratios of basic capital and effective net equity at the close of each period are as follows:

Ratic
As of As of
Decembar 31, Dacember 21,
2020 2019 2020 2019
MCh$ MCh$ % %
Basic capital 3,567,916 3,390,823 ¥ 511
Effective net equity 5,143,343 4,304,407 1537 12.86
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MOTE 26
MON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

a) It reflects the net amount of equity of dependent entities attributable to capital instruments which do not belong, directly ar indirectly, to the
Bank, including the portion of the income for the peried that has been attributed to them.

The non-cantrolling interest included in the equity and the income from the subsidiaries is summarized as follows:

Other comprehensive income

Nan Tostal ather
Ag of Dacambae 31, 2020 controlling Available for sale comprehensi Campret
interest Equiity Incame inwestrments Deferred tax incame N e

% MChS MChE MChS MChS MChS MChS

Subsldlarlas:
025 i 3] 7]

Santander Coredon de Sequros Limitada 174 ) i 1 b o

4541
Santander Corredones de Bolia Lmitada L 22604 351 (38) a Al o
Santander Asssonas Finarndienas Limitada T 433 5 152 dn L L
Santander 5.4. Socsedad Secuntizadara L] F - - N -
Klare Corredora de Segures 5.4 4990 2802 (880 - (BE0)
Santander Consumer Finarce Liitads AR00 29649 5619 = 5.61%
Subtatal 55,834 5.081 1o (31} T 5160
Entitied controlled 'ﬂ"’Wgh other considerations:
Santander Geslitn de Recsudacdn y Cobranzas Limitada 100,00 4808 e (127
Bansa Sanfander 5.4 THLED 19,565 39 g 149
Multiplica Spa 100,00 4476 nan = (187}
Subtatal 28,543 35 = = 35
Tatal 84,603 5118 ne [ERM] T 5,195

Orther comp income
Man- Total other
Axot Dacemberd 1, 208 contralling Available for sale  Deferred comprehensive Camprehensive
interest Equity Income investments 1aK income income

% MChE MEhS MChE MEhE MChE MChE
Subsidiaries;
Santander Cormdora de Seguros Limitada 025 178 3 1 i 1 T
Santander Corredores de Bolsa Limitada As41 £2,30 fh (26T] il (190} 435
Santander Asesodias Financienas Limitada 087 48 & z 5 8
Santander 5.4, Sociedad Secuntizadara 035 2 E X
Klare Corredera de Segurcs 5.A, AR50 eSS 15031 2 2 (503}
Zantander Consumer Chile £.4 4800 425 1,405 1405
subtoial 51,185 1,542 (260} m (129 1,353
Entities controlled through other considerations:
Santander Gestadn de Recaudaoan v Cobranzas Limitada TOGa 37T 1031 1.031
Banza Santander 5.4 [1) 100.00 20,051 (&) 5 3 & (AEE)
Multiplica Spa 10000 4480 i i )
Subtotal 28,302 541 o i 541
Total 749,494 2,083 (260 ™ (189 1,894
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NOTE 26

MNOMN-COMTROLLING INTEREST, continued

b) A summary of the financial infarmation of subsidianes included in the consolidation with

conforming adjustments) is as follows:

non-controlling interests (before consolidation or

As of Decembar 31, As of Decamber 31,
2020 2019
Mt Nat
Assots Liabilities Capital Income: Assets Liabilities Capital Income
MChS MChSE MChS MCh§ MChE MChE MChE MChE

Lantander Corredaora de Seguros Limitada Filial PR S 10777 TOLE4 355 2o 12372 68,159 23a7
Santarcler Corrgdores de Bodsa Limdada Filial 04, 802 FLRuEd | 45053 11 1479974 1,434 843 43 HES 1,265
Santander Asesoriaxs Financieras Limitada (] Filiad SZ.070 1142 51454 5261 31,505 51 51481 a3
Santander 58, Sociedsd Sequrilizadora Filiad 637 175 47 @2 636 B8 639 @y
Klare Cormedors de Seguros 5.0 Filisl 6415 5399 7579 0763 8303 724 B,585 {1,007}

Lt ]
Santander Consumer Finance Limetada Filiad 653,532 633177 45348 11467 505059 452528 23851 12580
Seciedad cperadera de Tarjetas de Page 9 a

Filial 441 1,185 16273
Santander Getnat Chie 54 g 18, & amo
S.an.tandr:f Gestitn de Recaudacian y Cobranzas E9E 7789 1108 4508 2200 3307 23T 1031
Limitada 127
Barsa Saniander 5.4, EPE E4496 64,582 19,365 148 &7.607 GE0a2 201051 {46}
ultiplica Spa EPE 4,336 A7 2476 (187) 4480 4 AA80 [eH
Tatal 1,040,914 763,830 269,657 TAZT 2,228,682 1,972,084 239,990 16,648
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MOTE 27
INTEREST INCOME

This ttem refers ta interest eamed in the period from the financial assets whose return, whether implicitly ar explicithy, is determined by applying the
effective interest rate method, regardless of the value at fair value, as well as the effect of hedge accounting.

a) As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the income from interest income, not including income from hedge accounting, is attributable to the
following items:

As of December 31,
2020 2019
Inflatiom Prapaid Inflation Prapald
lInterest adjustments fees Total Interest adjustments fees Total
Hems MChS MEhS MCh$ MCh$ MCh$ MChs MChS MChs
TRTE—— 124 . 124 715 E £ L
Interhank kans aE E . 36 1263 E g 1.263
Comeercial loans 122116 174,260 10207 905,583 780284 1E0,462 16478 857,224
Marigege loans 322687 14777 &1 £37,955 320663 283,520 455 633,038
Consumar lans 564363 338 5,245 569,946 593502 381 8107 602,083
FAZTE 16,141 105,417 T1.150 26,168 - a7.318
Irestmant iNSraments .
Q078 2304 13,462 10,367 3502 E 21,979
Qther irterest moome ; - a
Interest incame without income from hedge 1,687,680 530,000 15,943 2,233,623 1,815,067 a74,427 25040 2314524

aczounting

b) As indicated in section i) of Mote 1, suspended interest relates to loans with payments over 20 days overdue, which are recorded in off-balance
sheet accaunts until they are effectively received.

As of December 31, 2020 and 2018, the suspended interest and adjustments income consists of the fallowing:

As of December 31,

2020 2019
Inflation Inflation
Imterest Total Interest Taotal
adjustments adjustments

Items MChS MChS MChS MChS MChi MCh%
Commercial loans 11,421 8,551 20,172 13675 5,248 22,923
Mortgage loans 2364 M 2,585 3729 1L 4,013
Consumer loans 2351 6662 9,013 A28 1439 11,677
Total 16,336 15.434 31,770 21,642 16,971 38,613
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NOTE 27
INTEREST INCOME, continued

€] As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the expenses from interest expense, excluding expense from hedge accounting, are as follows:

As of December 31,
2020 2019
Inflation Inflation
Interast adjustments Total Interest adjustments Tatal
Items MChS MCh$ MCh$ MCh$ MCh$ MChS
Diemand deposits [4578) (1.526) (15,102) 408 [1.5008) (15,528}
Repurchasze agreements (1.595) B 11.599) 8,710 = [EA ]
Time deposits and liabilitias 141,091) 20576) (161,967) (335,207 @772 (362,479}
Iriterbank borrowings 145,103) - (45,103) {50,354) - (50,354)
Bsued debt instruments (232,551) {140085) 1372,646) (250,512 (145,487) (395,999)
Cither financial liahilities [637) {m (645} (3109 33 {1.343}
Obligations for lease agreaments (2.651) B {2,651} [2,965) - {2.965)
Oither interest axpense (9576 14.722) (24,298) (1E651) 111,300 [27.951)
Inarest sparnds With2ut e from {447,084) {177,230) (624,314) (680,827} (185,500) (B66,327)
hedge accounting
d)  Asof Decemnber 31, 2020 and 2019, the income and expense from interest is as follows:
As of December 31,
2020 2019

Items MCh3 MChE

Interest incarme less income from hedge accounting 2,233,623 2,314,524

Interest expense less expense from hadge accounting [E24.314) (866,327)

Met Interest income (expense) from hedge aceaunting 1,609,308 1,448,197

Hedige accounting [net) [15481) [31,348)

Total net interest income 1,593,848 1,416,851
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NOTE 28
FEES AND COMMISSIONS

a)  Fees and commissions includes the value of fees earned and paid during the year, except those which are an integral part of the financial
instrument’s effective interest rate:

As of December 31,

2020 2019

MCh$ MCh3$
Fee and eommission income
Fees and commissions for lines of credits and overdrafts 7428 10,315
Fees and commissions for guarantees and letters of credit 36,277 35,039
Fees and commissions for card services 196,308 225702
Fees and commissions for management of accounts 34825 35,949
Fees and commissions for collections and payments 23,242 33,355
Feed and commissions for intermediation and MAnAgEnent af sesurties 11,272 10,154
Fees and commissions for insurance marketing 39,764 49,554
Office banking 15,119 13,655
Feed for other tarvices rendered 44072 47331
Qther fees earnad 42,855 37,434
Total 451,162 498,658

s of December 31,

2020 2019
MEChS MCh$
Fee and commission expense
Compensation for card cperations [123.011) (171,513}
Fees and commissions for securities transactions (B9a) {1,001}
Office banking (20748 (1,660)
Othar fees [57 599 (37, 196)
Total {183,884) (211,572)
Nat fees and commissions income 267,278 287,086

The fees earned in transactions with letters of credit are presented in the Consolidated Interim Statement of Income in the item “Interest income®,
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NOTE 28
FEES AMD COMMISSIONS, continued

b)  Income and expenses fram commissions that are generated through the different segments of the business are presented in the following
chart as well as the calendar which recognizes ordinary activity income,

Sogments Calendar recognizing ordinary activity income
Global
fis of December 31, 2020 B‘mﬂg Pl c:u"”:::;" Others  Total Transfered :ﬂlﬁ Accrual
thraugh time marment madal
Mchi Mch$ bchs Mchi Mchs Mchi Michd bch$
Fee and commission intame
Feas snd cammissians for lines of credits and averdrafis 6334 F] 3og [ T.428 428
Fees and commissans for quarantees and lellens of crsdit 11,304 17,303 FALF 356 36,277 36,277
Fees and commissians for card services 187,094 6,620 2568 22 196,308 47.073 149,235
Fees and commissians for mansgement of accounts 31,504 2485 el 3 34,825 34825
Fees and commissians for coliections and payments 21,281 1274 wr 80 23,242 - 11,303 11,939
Fees and commissiang for intermediation and management of
seCLritios 3353 249 B14% [529) 11,272 - 11,272
Fees and commissians for insurance marketing 33,764 318,764 ' 39,764
Ofite bariking 10,393 4077 B4 - 15,119 - 15,119
Fees for ather servces rendered EEERE 3.60B 1,028 120 44,072 - 44,072
Cther fees eamed 18,948 11.716 12,850 6591 42,855 - 42,855
Totes 369,301 48,522 33,940 (601) 451,162 125,603 273,856 51,703

Fee and commission expense

{68,550 154.461)

Compensation for card aperations [118,255) (30200 (1,070) [Bbs) (123.011) -
i i i [836)
Fees and commissans for seourities transactions = - [B5] (827 (B96)
Office banking (1,326) (434 [114) ) (2,078) 5 12,078)
Dthor fors (36.289) (6733 [9.307) _(5,570) (57,899) 3 157.839)
Totals (155,870)  [10,187) (10,760)  (7,067) (183 884) - (129,423)  (54,461)
Met fees and commisslans ingame 213,431 38,335 23,180  (7.66B) 267278 125,603 144,433 {2,758)
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NOTE 28
FEES AMD COMMISSIONS, continued

Income and expenses from commissions that are generated through the different segments of the business are presented in the following chart as
well a5 the calendar which recagnizes ordinary activity income, continued;

Calendar recognizing erdinary activity

Segments bdonie
Glabal
Transfered
As of December 31, 2019 Rarirs Nkt el ke Total Transfered  inanexact  Aecrual
anking g through tima momant radel
Michs Mchs Mchd Michs Wch$ Michs Mchi Mchi
Fee and commission income
Fees and commissions for lines of credits and overdrafis 6,123 435 3240 17 10,315 10,315 -
Fesrs ang commissions for guarantess and letters of credit 11,553 17,5851 5 Ed2 113 35,039 35,039 - -
Festet anl comimssions far cand sepdces 218,635 6042 50 75 225,702 41,347 184,355 -
Fes: and commissions far management of acoaunts 32,608 2515 £33 3 35,849 35,949
Fews and commissions far collectians and payments 36,129 2,185 464 (5423 33,355 - 12,854 20,501
Feses and commissions far intermedistion and manasgement of 10,154
spourities 3,219 245 B30 (1,611} 10,154 y
Pt andl COMIMESIons far insurance markating 49,664 . - - 49,664 . 43,664
Office banking 9,280 3782 &G 13 13,655 13,5655
Fowes for othar serdces rendered 42,499 3,748 gig 245 47,331 > 47,331 =
Criher fiees sarmed 12,462 10,727 14,293 12 37,494 - 37,484 -
Totalk 422,172 47,710 35,358  (6.582) 498658 122,650 305843 70,165
Few and commisslon sxpanse
Compensation for card operations {168,024) (3A475) (321} 307 {171,513) = (171,513) -
Foes and commessions far secunties fransactans - - (33} (968) [1,001) [(1,001)
Office barking [1,188) (2B%) (282} 13 (1,860 2 (1.860) -
Ciher les [22,335) (5,134 (5,615 (4,110} (37,198) = (37,158 =
Totls (191,545) (8,998) (6,255)  (4,774)  (211,572) = {211,572) 3
Net fees and commissions income 230,627 3B,T12 29,103 (11,356) 287,086 122,650 (94,271) 70,165
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NOTE 29
MNET INCOME (EXPENSE) FROM FINANCIAL OPERATIONS

Includes the amount of the adjustments from the financial instruments variation, except those attributable to the interest accrued by the application
of the effective interest rate method of the value adjustments of the assets, as well as the results cbtained in their sale,

As of December 21, 2020 and 2019, the detail of income from financial operations is as follows:

— PsofDecember31,
2020 2019
MCh$ MChS
Profit and loss from financial operations
Trading derivatives 42,704 (162,163
Trading investments 1671 11,6TE
Sale of loans and accounts receivables from customers
Current portfolio 48 &3
Charged-off portfolio (1100 3248
Hvailable for sale investments 80,679 63,672
Repurchase of issued bends (1) (24.573) 3,265
Other profit and loss from financial operations (3.219) 16852
Total 90,800 (78,165)

(1) As of December 31, 2020 the Bank hasn't made any repurchases of bonds, see Note 19.
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NOTE 30
MET FOREIGMN EXCHAMNGE INCOME

Met foreign exchange income includes the income eamed from foreign currency trading, differences arising from converting monetary items in a
foreign currency to the functional currency, and those generated by non-maonetary assets in a forgign currency at the time of their sale.

As of December 21, 2020 and 2019, net foreign exchange income is as follows:

As of December 31,

2020 2019
MChs MCh$
Met foreign exchange gain (loss)
Met gain (less) frem cusrency axchange diffsrences 1921 (B4, 566)
Hedging derivatives (27624 362,374
Incorme from assets indexed to foreign currency 13.512) 1376
Income from liabilities indexed to foreign currency
50,785 285,184

Tatal
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NOTE 31
PROVISIONS FOR LOAMN LOSSES

a) The movement in provisions for loan losses registered as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 is the following:

Loans and accounts receivable from customers

As of December 31, 2020 Interbank Commercial Mortgage  Consumer Contingant loans n.ddl_ll?nal
loans loans loans Ipans Provisions
Individual  Individual Group Group Group Individual  Group Total
MCh$ MCh$ MChS MChS MCh$ MCh$ MCh$ MCh$ MCh%
Charged-off of loans - {22,703) {60.525] {10,709) {32,669) . . . (126,610}
Provisians establishad 1) (184691)  (124057) (15,884 (223,483) [11.160) (1898 (110000 (671.213)
Total provisions and charge-offs (300 [207,384)  (184,586) {26,593) (256,162) (11,160 .898) (10000} (797,823)
Provisions released ) 44,878 54,394 17,141 TBLG 1576 7,550 211,824
Recovery of loans previously charged-off - 12,198 13,770 9584 313,373 - - - 74,926
Met :harge to incame 9 (150,317) (116,422) 132 [136,943) (3,184) 5,652 (110,000} (511,073)
Loans and accounts receivable from customers
As of December 31, 2019 Interbank Commercial Mertgage Consumer Contingent loans ﬁddl_ﬂl?ﬂﬂ
loans loans loans loans Provisions
Individual Individual Graup Group Group Individual Group Tatal
MCh§ MCh3 MChE MCh$ MChs MChi MCh% MChs MCh%
Cll:ll'\gndvu'!‘f of loans > (18,182) (47,514) (13,965) (70,588} N = = (150,259)
Prewigions established 155 [93,556) (118,187 117.462) (246,530) 7,709 (10,865 (16,0000 (510.364)
Total provisions and charge-offs 55 (111,748)  [165,701) (31,427) [EREARLY] {7709} (10,865} (16,0000  (660,623)
Provisions released (¥) [ 58,054 12,100 B.263 49,576 5916 3458 20,000 157,462
Recovery of loans previously charged-off # 11,336 15,283 13,652 42433 s ? & 82,714
Met charge to income 10 (a2 328) {138,308) 19.512) {225, 109) {1.793) {7.A07) 4,000 [AZ0,447)
by The detail for Charge-off to individually significant loans, is the following:
Loans and aceounts receivable from customers
As of December 31, 2020 Commercial Mortgage Comsumer
loans laans laans
Individual Group Group Group Total
MCh$ MCh$ MChS MCh% MCh%
Charge-off of loans 41416 117,045 16,632 219,720 394,813
Prowvision applied (18,713 [26,518) [5,923) 1187057} (26E,203)
MNet charge offs of individually significant loans 22,703 60,529 10,708 32,669 126,610
Loans and aceounts receivables from customers
As of December 31, 2019 Commercial Mortgage Consumer
lpans loans loans
Individual Group Group Group Total
MChS MChS MChS MCh% MChS
Charge-aoff of loans 54,712 108,574 18,944 227978 415,208
Prowision applied [41,520) {51,060) 12,975} {157,390} (264,943)
Met charge offs of individually significant loans 18,192 47,514 13,965 70,588 150,259
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MOTE 32
PERSOMMEL SALARIES AND EXPEMNSES

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the composition for personnel salaries and expenses is the following:

As of December 31,

2020 2019

MCh% MChi
Personnel compensation 265312 260,445
Banuses ar gratuities 77046 78,534
Stock-based benefits (1,565) [315)
Seniofity compensation 22,360 25,006
Pension plans 1.026 56T
Training expanses 2887 4,918
Day care and kindergarden 2,769 ENEY
Health and welfare funds 6531 B, B
Other personnel expenses 32308 3,627
Total 408,670 410,157

Share-based compensation (settled in cash)

In accordance with IFRS 2, equity instruments settled in cash are allocated to executives of the Bank and its Subsidiaries as a form of compensation
for their services.

The Bank measures the services received and the cash obligation at fair value at the end of each reporting period and on the settlement date,
recognizing any change in fair value in the income statement for the period.

The balance correspanding ta benefits based on equity instruments as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 amounts to § 1,589 million and 315 millian,
respectively.
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MOTE 33
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the composition for administrative expenses is the following:

As of December 31,

2020 2019
MCh$ MChS
General administrative expenses 142,848 124,896
Maintenance and repair af property, plant and equipment 20,300 19214
Expenses for short-term lease agreements 1625 4177
Imsurance pramivms 5,064 3,848
Office supplies 4,774 5126
IT and communication expenses 68,436 s2oT
Lighting, heating, and other utilities 5435 2848
Security and valuables transport servicas 12,305 12,187
Representation and personnel travel expenses 2,375 4,100
Judicial and notarial expenses aal 1277
Fees for technical reports and auditing 8460 7643
Other expensas of obligations for lease agreements 13,134 12450
Outsourced services 72,513 71,572
Data processing 8032 3921
Archive service 2619 3,516
Valuation senvice 3208 3644
Cutsourced staff 68177 10,139
Other 22477 22,350
Board expenses 1.517 1,356
Marketing expenses 16,791 20891
Tawes, payroll taxes, and eontributions 16,781 14,697
Real estate taxes 2214 1.936
Patents 2135 1913
Other taxes 5 c
Coantributions ta CMF {ax SBIF) 12427 11043
Tatal 250,450 233,612
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MOTE 34
DEPRECIATION, AMORTIZATION AMD IMPAIRMENT

a) The values of depreciation and amortization during December 31, 2020 and 2019 are detailed below:

As December 31,

2020 2019
MCh§ MCh$
Depreciation and amertization
Property, plant, and equipment depreciation [46,273) [44,257)
Intangible assets armortization {25,384) [26,348)
Amartization for Right of use assets (37,769) (34,787
Total depreciation and amortization {109,426) {106,092)
Irnpairment of ficed assets {*) - [1,013)
Impaisment of intangibles {**) (638) =
Impairment fior Right of use assets {*) - {1,713}
Totales {110,064) (108.818)

{*1 As of Derember 31, 2049, the amour for impairment amounts ta 3 2726 milion, mainky due to daims due to sodal uphesval that the country suffered as of October 18, 2019
1*4 As of December 31, 20240 the intangible impairment amount amounts to % 638 millien duee 10 obsolescence of computer projects

b) The changes in boak value due te depreciation and amortization for December 31, 2020 and 2019 are the following:

Depreciation and amaortization

2020
Property, plant, Intangible Right of use
and equipment assEls assets Total
MChS MChS MChE MChS
Balances as of January 1, 2020 (266,895) {176,613) (99, 445) (542,953)
Depreciation and amartization for the persad (46,273} (25,384) {37,765) {109,426)
Sales and disposals in the period T.606 - 7,358 14,964
Oiher (4,817 = 4815 2)
Balance as of December 31, 2020 (310,379) (201,997) (125,041) {637.417)

Depreciation and amortization

2019
Property, plant, Intangible Right of use
and equipment assots assots Total
MCh$ MCh$ MChS MChS
Balances as of January 1, 2019 (230.327) {151,492) [68,145) (449,964)
Depreciation and amortization for the period (44,957 (26,343 (34,787 (106,092)
Sales and disposals in the pericd 8,389 1,227 3,487 13,103
Cthier - - - -
Balance as of December 31, 2019 (266,895) {176,613) [99,445) (542,953)
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MOTE 35
OTHER OPERATING INCOME AMD EXPEMSES

a)  Other operating income is canformed by the following concepts:

As of December 31,
2020 2019
MCh$ MCh3
Incame from assets recelved In lieu of payment
Income from sale of assets recerved in lew of payrment 5934 5613
Recovery of charge-offs and incame fram assets received in lieu of payment 11,213 10,933
Other income from assets received in lieu af payment 2333 Gihd
Subtotal 19,380 17,210
Provisions released due to country risk 503 BT
Subtotal 503 &7
Other income
Inearme fram sale of fived assets
Compensation from insurance companies due 1o damages 8BS 2,456
Incame ather than interest and commissions from leasing contracts o2 4,681
Oither 202 184
Subtatal 1,769 7.321
Total 21,652 24,598
b)  Other operating expenses is conformed by the following concepts:
As of December 37,
2020 2019
MCh$ MChs
Allowances and expenses for assets received in lleu of payment
Charge-offs of assets receved in lieu of payment 15476 17,638
Prewisions an aseets received in lieu af payment 1456 1,809
Expenses for maintenance of assets received in beu of payment 1465 2,072
Subtatal 18,217 21,519
Credit card expenses 546 1.077
Customer services 1,559 2,456
Other expenses
Dperating charge-ofls 10675 8,349
Life insurance and general product insurance policies (*) 32987 21,205
Gain (Loss) for sele of PP&E - a7
Expense for the Retail Association 326 343
Expense on sale of participation on associates 20 126
Land tax leasing operation () 3774
Commercial representation expenses 350 256
Dther 20,803 5623
Subtatal T1.486 35.969
Total 91,808 51,021

("} Camespands to the annusl Land Tay Surchange approsed In the Tax Modernization Law of February 24, 2020,

(4 The variation is due 1o the new Fraud Lae thal came inta elfedt this year 2020,
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NOTE 36
TRAMSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Mssociated and dependent entities are the Bank's “related parties”, however, this also includes its “key personnel” fram the executive staff (members
of the Bank's Board of Directors and Managers of Banco Santander-Chile and its affiliates, together with their close relatives), as well as the entities
over which the key personnel could exercise significant influence or control.

The Bank also includes those companies that are part of the Santander Group worldwide as related parties, given that all of them have a commaon
parent company i.e., Banco Santander 5.A (located in Spain).

Article 83 of the Ley de Sociedades Anonimas (Public Companies Act), which is also applicable to banks, states that any transaction with a related
party must be made under equitable conditions similar to those that customarily prevail in the market.

Mrticle 84 of the Ley General de Bancos (General Banking Act) establizhes limits for leans that can be granted to related parties and prohibits lending
1o the Bank's directors, General Manager, or representatives.

Transactions between the Bank and its related parties are specified below and have been divided into four categaries:
Companies with relation to the Santander Group

This category includes all the companies that are controlled by the Santander Group around the world, and hence, it also includes the companies
over which the Bank exercises any degree of control (Affiliates and special-purpose entities).

Associated companies

This category includes the entities over which the Bank exercises a significant degree of influence, in accordance with section b) of Mote 1, and which
generally belang to the group of entities known as “business suppart companies”.

Key personnel

This category includes members of the Bank's Board of Directors and managers of Banco Santander-Chile and its affiliates, together with their close
relatives,

Other

This category encompasses the related parties that are not included in the groups identified above and which are, in general, entities over which the
key persannel could exercise significant influence ar contral.

The terms for transactions with related parties are equivalent ta those which prevail in transactions made under market conditions or to which the
corresponding considerations in kind have been attributed.
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NOTE 36
TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES, continued

a) Loans to related parties

Loans and receivables as well as cantingent loans are as follows:

As of December 31, As of December 31,
2020 2019
Santander s Santander
Group A“MIM Key Other Group Assnclatled Key Other
x companies persannel < companies persennel
Companies Companies

MChS MCh$ MCh$ MCh$ MChS MChS MChS MCh$
Loans and accounts
receivable
Commercial loans 352,580 265 3,938 a00 246,868 375 2,986 GBS
Mortgage loans - - 22,428 - . - 200473 -
Consumer loans - - 6,131 - - - 5781
Loans and account
recelvable 352,590 265 32,498 900 246,868 375 29,240 (=]
Prawvision for loan losses (1,138} (ki) {137} {14y [122) (182) {179 (10
Met loans 351,452 256 32,361 886 246,746 193 29,061 675
Guarantees 333 - 27,203 442 462513 - 23918 2B8
Contingent loans
Pirsosal guaraanrs - - - - - - - -
Letters of credit 3447 - & o3 4112 E 5 &3
Perdormmance cuirantess Bl = = = 464,691 = n =
Contingent loans 4,258 - - 93 468,803 - - 63
Prawision for contingent loans (B} - - - [835) - - -
Mat contingent loans 4,252 . = 93 467,968 = - 63

As of December 31, As of December 31,
2020 2019
Santandar 5 Santander " 5
Group :"::'Ml nies K::nel . Group £om| ::Ii: er:::nel Dithr
companies (*) pa pED companies P p
MCh$ MCh% MChS MChS MCh$ MChS MCh% MCh$

Opening balances as af January 1, 715,671 378 29,240 748 572,745 459 33.8M 7,859
Loans granted AR 496 - 8,080 TET 193,754 167 4,826 SO0
Loan payrments [747,719) (110 (4,822 (453 (50,672) (251) [8.457) [T.651)
Tatal 356,848 265 22 498 093 715671 375 29,240 T48

") As of Decembar 31, 2020 and 3014, the lpans corespanding to companies outside the sarsolkdation perimeter cormespond to MCh § 2 286 and MCh § 2,059 respactively
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MOTE 36
TRAMSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES, continued

b} Assets and liabilities with related parties

As of December 31, As of Deceamber 31,
2020 2019
Santander X Santander =
Group f::fc::.tlz e:::nel Other Group f::g:ntlz K:::nel Othier
Companies P L Companies P pery
MChS MChE MCh% MCh% MChS MCh% MCh$ MChS
Assets
Cash and deposits in banks 703,068 - - - 171816 - - -
Trading irvestmeants - - - - - - - -
Investments under resale agreements - . .
Financial derivative contracts 97ERYE 185,038 a3 7 2,008,715 218,610 - 55
Available for sale investments - - - - - - - -
Other assats 445,608 412,277 - - 185317 210,579 - -
Liabilities
Deposits and other demand labilities 17,118 4,484 5997 3,242 23,261 93,761 4624 366
Ohbligaticns under repurchase agreements 961,718 - 10 - 138493 L.000 270 an
Time deposits and cther time Rabilities 1409 404 100 4,706 BEd 1,183,235 282,171 4,246 2,204
Financial derivative contracts 1,137,502 354,108 - - 2,159,660 288,013 - 3
Bank chligation S 281 - - - - - - -
Issuad debts instruments 349022 - - - 363,154 - - -
Crther financial liabilities - - - - 231 - - -
Other liabilities 1,210 232,344 - - 8,130 146,164 - -
¢}  Recognized income (expense) with related parties
As of December 31,
2020 2019
Companies Companies
with relation with relation
to the Amdaliad Koy | Dther to the Amdat_ﬁd Key | DOther
Santandar companias  personne| Santandes companies parsonne
Group Group
MChs MCh$ MCh$ MCh$ MCh$ MCh$ MCh$ MChS
Income (expense) recorded
Income and expenses from interest and (30,586) 21 1.202 10 @1,1an (5.235) 1,151 26
Fee and commission income and expences 45,423 22,59 152 24 28,274 14,4499 233 28
Net incame {expensel from financial
opearations and foreign exchange (380,737) 240,565 - - {585,318) (B4, 236) - -
transactions (*)
Other operating income and expenses 432 (5221 - - 406 (2028) - -
Key personnel compensation and expenses - . (31,967} - - - (37377 -
Administrative and other expenses (45478) [16,763) (11,877) 47 75T)
Tetal (419,486) 245,897 (30.607) 34 (610,696)  (124.755) (35,994) 54

(*} Primarnily relates to denvative contracts used to hedge econcmically the exchange risk of assets and liabilites that hedge positions of the Bank and its subsidiaries,
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MNOTE 26
TRAMNSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES, continued

d)  Payment to Board members and key management personnel

The compensation received by key management personnel, including Board members and all the executives holding Manager positions, is shown in
the “Personnel salaries and expenses” and/or “Administrative expenses” of the Consolidated Interim Statements of Income, and detailed as follows:

As of December 31,

2020 2019

MCh§ MChS
Persannel compansation 16,220 16,264
EBoard member’s salaries and expenses 1452 1358
Bonuses or gratuity 12,583 16,104
Compensation in stock [1,565) [315)
Training expenses 1079 2378
Seniority compensation 1,026 Sad
Health funds 87 37
Other personnel expenses 376 273
Pension Plans 827 AR
Tatal 31,961 371377

¢)  Composition of key personnel

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the composition of the Bank’s key personnel is as follows:

N* of executives

Paosition
As of December 31, As of December 31,
2020 2019
Diractars 1 "
Division managers 13 13
Managers a8 106
Total key parsonnel 120 130
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NOTE 37
PENSION PLANS

The Bank has an additinal benefit available to its principal executives, consisting of a pension plan, The purpose of the pension plan is to endow the
executives with funds for 2 better supplementary pension upon their retirement,

For this purpose, the Bank will match the voluntary contributions made by the beneficiaries for their future pension with an eguivalent contribution,
The executives will be entlited to recive this benefit anly when they fulfill the following conditions:

a. Aimed at the Bank's managerment

b, The general requisite to apply for this benefit is that the employee must be carrying out hisfher duties when turning 60 years ald,
The Bank will create a pension fund, with life insurance, for each beneficiary in the plan, Periodic contributions into this fund are made by
the manager and matched by the Bank,

d. The Bank will be responsible for garanting the benefits directly,

If the wiorking relationship between the manager and the respective company ends, before s/he fulfills the abovementioned requirements, s/he will
have no rights under this benefit plan,

In the event of the executive’s death or total or partial disability, s/he will be entitled to recive this benefit,

The Bank will make contributions to this benefit plan on the basis of mixed collective insurance policies whose beneficiary is the Bank, The life
insurance company with whom such policies are executed is not an entity linked or related to the Bank or any other Santander Group company,

Plan Assets owned by the Bank at the end of 2020 totaled Ch38,.224 million (Ch37,195 million in 2019).

The amaount af the defined benefit plans has been guantified by the Bank, based on the following criteria:

Calculation method

Lise of the projected unit credit method which considers each working year as generating an additional amount of rights over benefits and values
each unit separately, It is calculated based primarily on fund contribution, as well as other factors such as the legal annwal pension limit, seniority,
age and yearly incame for each unit valued individualy,

Actuarial hypothesis assumptions:

Actuarial assumption with respect to demographic and financial vanables are non-biased and mutually compatible with each other, The most
significant actuarial hypotheses considered in the caleulation were,

Assets related to the pension fund contributed by the Bank inta the Seguros Euroamérica insurance company with respect to defined benefit plans
are presented as net of associated commitments,

Plans Plans
past-employment post-employment
2020 2019
Mortality chart RW-2014 RW-2074
Terminarion of contract rates 0% 5.0%
Impairment chart POT 1985 FOT 1985
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NOTE 37
PEMNSION PLANS, continued

Activity for post-employment benefits is as follows:

As of December 31,
2020 2019
MCh$ MChs
Plan assets 8,224 7,185
Commitments for defined-benefit plans
For active personnel (7357 (05250
Incurred by inactive personnel = =
i
Unrealized actuarial tgain] losses - -
Balances at year end 673 670
Year's cash flow for post-employment benefits is as follows
As of Decembuer 31,
2020 2019
MCh$ MCh$
a) Fair value of plan assets
Opening balance 7,195 6,804
Expected yield of insurance contracts 385 EEE]
Employer contributions 870 853
Actuarial (gain) losses 3 =
Premiums paid B
Benefits paid [226) {8013
Fair value of plan assets at year end 8,224 7.195
b) Present value of obligations
Prasent valua of obligation opening balance (6,525) (5,958)
Met incorporation of Group companies
Service cost {1,026) {567
Interest cost ) )
Curtailment/settlement effect .
Benefits paid )
Piast service cost B
Actuarial (gain) losses -
Oither o
Present value of ebligations at year end (7.551) (6.525)
Net balance at year end 673 670
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NOTE 37
PEMNSION PLANS, continued

Flan expected profit:

As of December 31,

2020 2019
Type of expected yield from the plan’s assets UF = 2.50% anual UF + 2.50% anual
Type of yield expected from the reimbwrsement rights LF = 2.50% anual UF + 2.50% anual

Flan associated expenses
. _As of December 31,

2020 2015

MCh$ MEChS
1,026 56T

Current period service expenses
Interest cost
Expected yield fram plan's asset (385) (333
Expected yield of insurance contracts linked te the Plan: )
Extraardinary allecations
Actuanial (gain)flosses recorded in the period
Past service cost
Cither
Total &4 234
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NOTE 38
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction on the main market (or the most
advantageous) at the measuremeant date in the current market conditions (in other words, an exit price} regardless of whether that price is directly
obhservable or estimated by using a different valuation technigue. The measurement of fair value assumes the sale transaction of an asset or the
transference of the liability happens within the main asset or liability market, or the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

For financial instrurments with no available market prices, fair values have been estimated by using recent transactions in analogaus instrumertts, and
in the absence thereof, the present values or ather valuation techniques based on mathematical valuation madels sufficiently accepted by the
international financial community. In the use of these madels, consideration is given to the specific particularities of the asset or liability to be
valued, and especially to the different kinds of risks associated with the asset or liability,

These techniques are significantly influenced by the assumptions used, including the discount rate, the estimates of future cash flows and
prepayment expectations. Hence, the fair value estimated for an asset or liability may not coincide exactly with the price at which that asset or
liability could be delivered or settled on the date of its valuation, and may not be justified in comparison with indegendent markets.

Determination of fair value of financial instruments

Below is a comparison between the value at which the Bank's financial assets and liabilities are recorded and their fair value as of December 31, 2020
and 2019;

Az af Az of
December 31, 2020 December 21, 2019
Boak value Fair value Boak value Fair valuwe
MCh$ MCh$ MCh$ MCh$

Assets

Trading inwestments 12308 13378 270,204 270,204
Financial dervative contracts 9.032,085 9,032,085 &, 148,608 8148608
Loans and accounts receivable from customers and interbank loans, (net) 13432349 36,590,602 31,530,568 34 GESBSE
Investrnents available for sale T6R2.542 EALTR 4010272 400,272
Guarantes deposits (margin accaunts) 608,359 606,355 314,676 34,616
Liabilities

Ceposits and interbank Barrowings 31,471,283 32047227 26,010,067 26,200,921
Financial derivative contracts Q018,660 5018660 T.390,654 7350654
Issued debt instruments and other financial lizbilities 83884595 9590678 aTan0E M85
Guarantees received (margin accounts) 524,205 24,205 994,714 994,714

Fair value is approximated to book value in the following accounts, due ta their short-term nature in the following cases: cash and bank deposits,
operations with liquidation in pragress and buyback cantracts as well as security loans.

In addition, the fair value estimates presented above do not attempt to estimate the value of the Bank's profits generated by its business activity, nor
its future activities, and accordingly, they do not represent the Bank’s value as a going concern,

Below is a detail of the methods used to estimate the financial instruments’ fair value.

a)  Operations pending settlement, trading investments, available for sale investment instruments, repurchase agreements and securities
loans

The estimated fair value of these financial instruments was established using market values or estimates from an available dealer, or quoted market
prices of similar financial instruments. Investments with maturities of less than 1 year are evaluated at recorded value since they are considered as
having a fair value not significantly different from their recorded value, due to their short maturity term. To estimate the fair value of debt
investments or representative values in these lines of businesses, we take into consideration additional variables and elements, as long as they apply,
including the estimate of prepayment rates and credit risk of issuers.
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NOTE 38
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES, continued

b)  Loans and accounts receivable from customers and interbank loans

Fair value of commercial, mortgage and consumer leans and credit cards is measured through a discounted cash flow (DCF) analysis To do so, we
use current market interest rates considering product, term, amount and similar loan quality. Fair value of loans with 20 days or more of delinguency
are measured by means of the market value of the associated guarantee, minus the rate and term of expected payment. For variable rate loans

whase interest rates change frequently (monthly or gquarterly) and that are not subjected to any significant credit risk change, the estimated fair
value is based on their book value.

€] Deposits

Disclosed fair value of deposits that do not bear interest and saving accounts is the amaount payable at the reporting date and, therefore, equals the
recorded amount. Fair value of time depasits is calculated through a discounted cash flow calculation that applies current interest rates from a
manthly calendar of scheduled maturities in the market.

d)  Short and long term issued debt instruments

The fair value of these financial instruments is calculated by using a discounted cash flow analysis based on the current incremental lending rates for
similar types of loans having similar maturities,

e)  Financial derivative contracts

The estimated fair value of financial derivative contracts is caleulated using the prices guoted an the market for financial instruments having similar
characteristics.

The fair value of interest rate swaps represents the estimated amount that the Bank expects to receive to cancel the contracts or agreements,
considering the term structures of the interest curve, volatility of the underlying asset and credit risk of counterparties,

If there are no quated prices from the market (either direct or indirect) for any derivative instrument, the respective fair value estimates have been
calculated by using models and valuation techniques such as Black-Scholes, Hull, and Monte Carlo simulations, taking into consideration the relevant
inputs/outputs such as volatility of options, cbservable correlations between underlying assets, counterparty credit risk, implicit price volatility, the
velacity with which the volatility reverts to its average value, and the straight-line relationship (correlation) between the value of a market variable
and its volatility, among others.

Fair value and hierarchy measurement

IFRS 13; Fair Value Measurement, pravides a hierarchy of reasonable values which separates the inputs and/or valuation technique assumptions used
to measure the fair value of financial instruments. The hierarchy reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurement. The three

levels of the hierarchy of fair values are the following:

» Lovel 1: the inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) on active markets for identical assets and liabilities that the Bank can access on the measurement
date.

* Level 2t inputs other than the quated prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.
+ Level 3: inputs are unobservable inputs tor the asset or liability.

The hierarchy level within which the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety is determined based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.

The best evidence of a financial instrument’s fair value at the initial time is the transaction price (Level 1)
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NOTE 38
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES, continued

In cases where quoted market prices cannot be observed. Management makes its best estimate of the price that the market would set using its own
intemnal models which in most cases use data based on observable market parameters as a significant input (Level 2) and, in very specific cases,
significant inputs not observable in market data (Level 3). Various techniques are employed to make these estimates, including the extrapalation of
observable market data.

Financial instruments at fair value and determined by quotations published in active markets (Level 1) include:

- Chilean Government and Department of Treasury bonds
- Mutual Funds

Instruments which cannot be 100% observable in the market are valued according to other inputs observable in the market (Level 2).

The following financial instruments are classified under Level 2:

Type of Meodel G
financial instrument used in valuation Daccription
Internal Rates of Return (“IRRs") are provided by RiskAmerica, according to the following
criterion:
If. at the valuation day, there are one or more valid transactions at the Santiago Stock
. Mortgage and private bonds Presant Value of Cash Exchange for a given mnemonic, the reported rate is the weighted average amount of the
Flows hModel abserved rates.

In the case there are no valid transactions far a given mnermonic on the valuation day, the
reported rate is the IRR base from a reference structure, plus a spread model based on
histarical spread for the same item or similar ones.
IRRs are provided by RiskAmerica, according to the following criterion:
If, at the valuation day, there are one or more valid transactions at the Santiago Stock
. . Precent Value of Cath Exchange for a given mnemanic, the reported rate is the weaighted average amount of the
- Time deposits Elows Model absarved rates
In the case there are no valid transactions for a given mnermonic on the valuation day, the
reported rate is the IRE base from a reference structure, plus 8 spread model based on
ISSUET CUMES,
- Constant Maturity Swaps [CME), FX and IRRs are providad by ICAPR, GFI, Tradition, and Bloomberg according to this criterion:
: Bresent Walue of Cash 2 . - < .
Iniflation Forward (Fwd) , Cross Currency Elaws Madsl ‘With published market prices, a valuation curve is created by the bootstrapping method and
Swaps (CCS), Interest Rate Swap (IRS) is then used to value different derivative instruments.

Formula adjusted by the volatility smile (implicit waolatility). Pricas (volatility) are provided by
BGC Partners, according ta this critenion:

o i k-Sehal
# Options Black-Scholes ‘With published market prices, a volatility surface is created by interpolation and then these
wiolatilities are usad to value options.
; Collateral associated to derivatives financial contracts: Swap Camara PromedialCh3),
i BUErTReR Qeposis, QuaraniEe Fresant N us ol Casn FX and inﬂal:inr: Forward, Era'slstur:'\en : Swra :CCS:L I:ItEFr'esl'. RE;E S-:va {III%S‘J :F:(
received (Treshold) Flows Model = Bl P ¥

options.

In limited eccasions significant inputs not ebservable in market data are used (Level 3). To carry out this estimate, several technigues are used,
including extrapolation of observable market data or a mix of observable data.
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NOTE 38
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES, continued

The following financial instruments are classified under Level 3:

Model
used in valuation

Type of
financial instrument

Description

Black Marrmal Model for
CapyFloors and Swaptions
Black — Scholes

+ Caps/ Floors)/ Swaptions

Hull-White

Implicit Forward Rate
Agreamaent (FRA]
- Cross currency swap, Interest rate swap, Call
ey swap in Tasa Activa Bancaria (Active
Bank Rate) TAB

Prasent Value of Cash Flows
Mol

Prasent Value of Cash Flows
Medel
Prazent Value of Cash Flows
Moxdel

- Racanigtion bonds Spraad over risk free

There is no ohservable input of implicit volatility.

There is no obsarvable input of implicit volatility.

Hybrid HW maodel for rates and Brownian motion for FX, There is no observable
input of implicit volatility.

Start Fed unsupported by MUREX {platform) due ta the UF farward estimate,
Validation obtained by wsing the interest curve and interpolating at flow
rnaturities, but TAS s not & directly observable variable and is not correlated to
any market input.

WValuation using prices of instrurnents with similar characteristics plus a penalty rate for
liquidity.

With the published market prices, the valuation curve s constructed using the
bootstrapping method and then this curve is wsed to value the different derivatives.

Valuation by stochastic dynamic model to ebtain discount rate,

The Bank does not believe that any change in unobservable inputs with respect to level 3 instruments wauld result in 2 significantly different fair

value measurement.

The following table presents the assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value an a recurring basis, as of Decernber 31, 2020 and 2019,

Fair value measurement

As of December 31, 2020 Level 1 Lewel 2 Level 3
MChs MChs MCh3 MChs
Assets
Trading investments 133,718 132,246 1472 -
Aeailable for sale investrments TA6Z2,542 7,145 285 16,731 52E
Derivatives 4,032,085 9,024 484 Ta01
Guarantee deposits (margin accounts) 608,359 - BlE 358 -
Total 16,936,704 T2TTEN 9,651,046 8,127
Liabilities
Derivativas 9.0718.660 2.015900 2,760
Guarantees received (margin accounts) 624,205 524,205 -
Total 9,642,865 = 9,640,105 2,760
Fair value measurement
As of December 21, 2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
MCh$ MCh§ MCh$ MCh$

Assats
Trading investments 270,204 270,204 - -
Available for sale investrments 4,010,272 3592421 17.146 705
Derivatives B,148,608 - 8,133,700 14,8908
Guarantee depasits (margin accounts) 314,616 - 314616 -
Total 12,743,700 4,262,625 8,465,462 15613
Liabilities
Derivatives 7.350,654 - 7,387,704 2950
Guarantees received (margin accounts) 954,714 = G, 714 -
Total 2,385,368 - 8,382,418 2,950
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MNOTE 38
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES, continued

The following table presents the assets and liabilities that are not measured at fair value in the consolidated statement of financial position. Its fair
value is disclosed as of December 31, 2020 and 2019:

Fair value measurement

As of December 31,

2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
MCh$ MCh$ MCh$ MCh$
Assets
Credits and accounts receivable from custamers and owed by 36,900,699 - - 36,990,659
banks
Tatal 36,900,699 - - 36,900,699
Liabilities
Deposits and obligations with banks 32,047,227 - 17436334 14,560,893
Debt ingtruments issued and ather obligations 9,590,678 - 9,590,678 -
Total 41,637,905 = 27077012 14,560,883
Fair value measurement
As of December 31, 2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
MChS MCh$ MCh$ MCh3
Assets
Credits and accounts receivable from customers and owed by 34,668,858 - - 34,668 B5E
banks
Tatal 34,668,858 - . 34,668,858
Liabilities
Deposits and cbligations with banks 26,200,921 : 15,903,489 10,297 432
Debt instruments issued and other obligations 10.7T15.5957 - 10,718,997 -
Tatal 36,919,918 = 26,622 486 10,297,432

There was no transfer between levels 1 and 2 for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019,
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NOTE 38
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES, continued

The following table presents the Bank's activity for assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurrent basis using unobsenved significant
entries (Level 3) as of December 31, 2020 and 2019

Assets Liabilities

MChS MCh$
A Mhnuarx 1, 2020 15,613 2,950
Total realized and unrealized profits (losses)
Included in statement of incame {195] 1012
Included in ather comprehensive income bl -
Purchases, issuances, and loans (net) - -
Transfer {7111} {1,202}
As of December 31, 2020

8127 2T60

Total profits or losses included in comprehensive income at December 31, 2020 that are attributable to change in (.486) (190
unrealized profit {losses) related to assets or liabilities as of December 31, 2019 )

Azsets Liahilities

MChE MCh$
As of January 1, 2019 12,193 795
Total realized and unrealized profits (losses)
Inelucted in statement of incame 3350 2,155
Included in ather comprehensive income 0 -
Purchases, issuances, and loans (net) - -
As of December 31, 2019 15,613 2,950
Total profits or losses included in comprehensive income at December 31, 2019 that are attributable to change in 2 430 3456

unrealized profit {losses) related to assets or liabilities as of December 31, 2018

The realized and unrealized profits (losses) included in comprehensive income far 2020 and 2019, in the assets and liabilities measured at fair value
on a recurrant hasis through unabservable market data (Level 3) are recarded in the Statement of Comprehensive Incame in the associate line iterm.

The potential effect as of December 37, 2020 and 2019 on the valuation of assets and liabilities valued at fair value on a recurrent basis through

unobservable significant entries (level 3), generated by changes in the principal assumptions if other reasonably possible assumptions that are less
of more favorable were used, is not considered by the Bank to be significant,
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NOTE 38
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES, continued

The following tables show the financial instruments subject to compensation in accardance with 145 32, for 2020 and 201%

Linked financial instruments, compensated in

balance
G c E—— Net amownt Remains“:fjunrelaled Amaount in
s of Decermber 31, 2020 ot ompensaled o esanted in RNEL 9N Staterments of
amounts in balance unancumbered g
balance Fimancial
financial instruments -
Position
Ch3 Million Chs Million Chs Million Ch3 Million Chs Million
Assets
Financial derivative contracts BABd0436 8,240,436 191,649 9,032,085
Irvestrments under resale agreements : :
Loans and accounts receivable from customers, and Intarbank
loans, net = 33,432,349 33,432,349
Total B.840.436 5. 540.436 33,623,992 42,464,434
Financial defivative contracts BA2Z070 8.922.07% 96,581 9,018,660
Imvestments under resale agreements 69,808 969,808 : 969,808
Déposits and interbank borrowings . 31,471,283 31,471,283
Tatal 5,891,887 9,801.887 31,567,864 41,459,751
Linked financial instruments, compensated in
balance
Remaing of unrelated 4
Gross Compensated Pt srobat and / or Amcint in
As of December 31, 2019 ki presented in Statements of
amounts in balance unencumbered )
balance BN Finaneial
financial instruments i
Paosition
Chi Million Ch§ Million Ch$ Million Chs Million Ch$ Million
Assets
Financial derivative contracts (*) B,148151 B 148,151 457 8,145 608
Irvestments under resale agreements E -
Loans and accounts receivable from customerss, and Interbank y 31,838,567 31,835,567
Loans, nit
Total B, 148,151 8,148,151 31,839,024 35,387,175
Financial derivative contracts {*) 7388145 7.388.145 2,509 7.390,654
Irvgrstments under resale agraements 380,055 380,055 - 380,055
Déposits and interbank borrowings - 26,010,067 26,010,067
Total ¥, 768,200 ¥.7T6E. 200 26,012,576 33,780,776

£*11n these items thene ane guarantees for Ch § &80 G636 milion and Ch § 857474 milkon for dereatves amets and labitties respectiety

Cansolidated Financial Statements December 2020 / Banco Santander-Chile

140




Banco Santander-Chile and Subsidiaries
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AS OF DECEMEBER 31, 2020 AMD 2019

NOTE 38
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES, continued

In order to reduce credit exposure in its financial derivatives operations, the Bank has signed bilateral collateral agreements with its counterparties,
in which it establishes the terms and conditions under which they operate. In general terms, the collateral (received / delivered) operates when the

net fair value of the financial instruments held exceeds the thresholds defined in the respective contracts.

Below are the financial derivatives cantracts, according to their collateral agreement

As of December 31, As of December 31,
Financial derivatives contracts 2020 2019 2020 2019
Assat Liahilities Assat Liabilities
Derivatives contracts with threshaold collateral agreement equal to zero 8127263 7,900,538 TATEE38 B, 748,219
Derivatives cantracts with non-zero threshald collateral agresment 471,520 600,661 532 294 517814
Derivatives contracts without collateral agreement 433253 511460 137472 124,621
Total Financial derivatives contracts 9,302,085 9,018,660 8,14B,608 7,390,654
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NOTE 39
RISK MAMAGEMEMNT

Introcucts l kst

The Bank, due to its activities with financial instruments is exposed to several types of risk. The main risks related to financial instruments that apply
to the Bank are as follow:

Market risk: nses from halding financial instrurments whose value may be affected by fluctuations in market conditions, generally including the
following types of risk:

a.  Foreign excharge risk; this arises as a consequence of fluctuations in market interest rates,

b. Interest rate risk: this arises as a consequence of fluctuations in market interest rates,

€. Price risk; this arises as 2 consequence of changes in market prices, either due to factor specific to the instrument itself or due to factors
that affect all the instruments negotiated in the market,

d. Inflation risk: this arises as a conseguence of changes in Chile’s inflation rate, whose effect weuld be mainly applicable to financial
instruments denaminated in LF.

Credit risk: this is the risk that one of the parties to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations for reason of insolvency ar inability
of the individuals or legal entitles in question to continue as a going concern, causing a financial loss to the other party.

Liquidity risk: is the passibility that an entity may be unable to mest its payment commitments, ar that in order to meet them, it may have to raise
funds with onerous terms or risk damage to its image and reputation.

Operating risk: this is a risk arising from human errars, system error, fraud or external events which may damage the Bank's reputation, may have
legal or regulatory implication, or cause financial losses,

Capital risk: is the risk that the Bank has insufficient quantity and / or quality of capital to meet the minimurm requirements to operate as a bank,
respond to market expectations regarding its creditworthiness and support the growth of its business and any strategies that may emerge in
accordance with your strategic plan.

This note includes information on the Bank's exposure to these risk an on its objetives, policies, and processes involved in their measurement and
management.

Risk management structure

The Board of Directars is responsible for the establishment and monitaring of the Bank's risk management structure and, to this end, has a carporate
governance system in line with intermational recommendations and trends, adapted ta the Chilean regulatory reality and adapted to best practices,
advanced markets in which it operates, To better exercise this function, the Board of Directors has established the Comprehensive Risk Committes
["CIR"), whose main mission is to assist in the development of its functions related to the Bank’s control and risk management, Complementing the
CIR in risk management, the Board also has 3 key committees; Azsets and Liabilities Committee (CAPA), Markets Committee ("CDOM™ and the
Directers and Audit Committee ("CDA”), Each of the committees is composed of directors and executive members of the Bank's management,

The CIR is responsible for developing Bank risk management palicies in accordance with the guidelines of the Board of Directors, the Global Risk
Department of Santander Spain and the regulatoery requirements issued by the CMF, These policies have been created mainly to identify and analyze
the risk faced by the Bank, establish risk limits and appropriate contrals, and maonitor risks and compliance with limits, The Bank's risk management
policies and systerns are regularly reviewed to reflect changes in market conditions, and the products or services offered, The Bank, through the
training and management of standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive contral environment, in which all its
employees understand their duties and obligations,
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Market risk

Market risk arises as a conseguence of the activity maintained in the markets, through financial instruments whose value may be affected by
variations in market conditions, reflected in changes in the different assets and financial risk factors, The risk can be mitigated through hedges
through other products (assets / liabilities or derivatives), or by undoing the eperation / open position, The objective of market risk management is
the management and control of exposure to market risk within acceptable parameters.

There are four major risk factors that affect market prices: interest rates, exchange rates, price, and inflation, Additionally, and for certain positions, it
is also necessary to consider other risks, such as spread risk, base risk, commaodity risk, volatility or correlation risk,

Market risk management

The intemnal management of the Bank to measure market risk is mainly based on the procedures and standards of Santander Spain, which are based
on analyzing management in three main components:

- trading portfolio;
- loal financial management portfolio;
- portfolio of foreign financial management,

The trading portfolio consists mainly of those investments valued at their fair value, free of any restriction for immediate sale and that are often
bought and sold by the Bank with the intention of selling them in the short term in order to benefit from the short-term price variations, The
financial management portfolios include all finangial investments not considered in the trading portiolio.

The general responsibility for market risk lies with the ALCO, The Bank's risk / finance department is responsible for the preparation of detailed
management policies and their application in the Bank's operations in accordance with the guidelines established by the ALCO and by the Glabal
Risk Department of Banca Santander de Espaia,

The functions of the department in relation to the trading partfolio entail the following:

i, apply "Value at Risk” (VaR) technigues to measure interest rate risk.

i, adjust the trading portfolios to the market and measure the profit and daily loss of commergial activities.

ili, compare the real VAR with the established limits.

iv, establish procedures to cantrol losses in excess of predetermined limits and

v, Provide information on the negotiation activities for the ALCO, other members of the Bank's Management, and the Glabal Risk Department of
Santander - Spain.

The functions of the department in relation to the financial management partfalios entail the following:

i, apply sensitivity simulations (as explained below) to measure the interast rate risk of activities in local currency and the potential loss foreseen by
these simulations and
i, provides the respective daily reports to the ALCO, other members of the Bank's Management, and the Global Risk Department of Santander -

Spain.

Market risk - Negotiation portfolio

The Bank applies VaR methodologies to measure the market risk of its trading portfolio, The Bank has a consolidated commercial position
composed of fixed income investments, foreign currency trading and a minimum equity investment position, The composition of this portfolio

consists essentially of bonds of the Central Bank of Chile, mortgage bonds and locally issued low-risk corporate bonds, At the end of the year, the
trading portfolio did not present investments in stock perfolios,
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For the Bank, the VaR estimate is made under the historical simulation methadology, which consists of observing the behavior of the losses and
gains that would have occurred with the current portfolio if the market conditions of a certain historical peried were in farce, , from that information,
infer the maximum loss with a certain level of confidence, The methodalogy has the advantage of accurately reflecting the histarical distribution of
market variables and of not requiring any specific probability distribution assumption, All VaR measures are intended to determine the distributicon
function for the change in the value of a given portfolio, and once this distribution is known, to calculate the percentile related to the level of
confidence needed, which will be equal to the value at sk in virtue of those parameters, As calculated by the Bank, the VaR is an estimate of the
maximum expected loss of the market value of a given portfolio within a 1-day horizon at a confidence level of 99,00%, It is the maximum lazs of a
day in which the Bank could expect to suffer in a certain portfolio with 2 93,00% confidence level, In other wards, it is the loss that the Bank would
expect to exceed only 1,0% of the time, The VaR provides a single estimate of market risk that is not comparable fram one market risk to another,
The returns are calculated using a 2 year time window or at least 520 data obtained from the reference date of VaR calculation backwards in time.

The Bank does not calculate three separate VaRs, A single VaR is calculated for the entire trading portfolio, which, in addition, is segregated by type
of risk, The VaR pregram performs a historical simulation and calculates a profit and loss statement (G & P) for 520 data points (days) for each risk
factor (fixed income, currencies and variable income), The G & P of each nsk factor is added and a consolidated VaR calculated with 520 data points
or days, At the same time, the VaR is calculated for each risk factor based on the individual G & P calculated far each factor, Moreover, a weighted
WaR is calculated in the manner described abave but which gives a weight greater than the 30 most recent data paints, The largest of the two VaRs
is reported,

The Bank uses the VaR estimates to deliver a warning in case the statistically estimated losses in the trading portfolio exceed the prudent levels and,
therefore, certain predetermined limits exist,

imitations of the Yak mode

‘When applying this caleulation methodelogy no assumption is made about the probability distribution of changes in risk factors, simply use the
changes abserved historically to generate scenarios far the risk factars in which each of the pasitions will be valued, in portfolio.

It is necessary to define a valuation function ] (xi) far each instrument j, preferably the same one that it uses to calculate the market value and results
of the daily position, This valuation function will be applied in each scenario to generate simulated prices of all the instruments in each scenario.

In addition, the VaR methodalogy must be interpreted considering the following limitations:

- Changes in market rates and prices may not be independent and identically distributed random variables, nor may they have a normal distribution,
In particular, the assumption of narmal distribution may underestimate the probability of extreme market movements;

- The historical data used by the Bank may not provide the best estimate of the joint distnbution of changes in risk factors in the future, and any
madification of the data may be inadeguate, In particular, the use of historical data may fail to capture the nsk of possible extreme and adverse
market fluctuations regardless of the pericd of time used,;

- a 1-day time horizon may not fully capture those market risk positions that can not be liquidated or hedged in one day, It would not be possible
to liquidate or caver all positions in a day;

WaR is calculated at the close of business, however trading positions may change substantially during the trading day;

- The uze of 99% confidence level daes not take into account, nar daes it make any statement about, the losses that may occur beyond this level of
trust, and

- The model as such VaR does not capture all the complex effects of the risk factors on the value of the positions or portfolios, and therefore, could
underestimate the potential loss.
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RISK MAMAGEMENT, continued

At no time in 2020 and 2019, the Bank exceeded the WaR limits in relation to the 3 components that make up the trading portfolio: fised income
investments, variable income investments and investments in fereign currency.

The Bank performs daily back-testing and, in general, it is discovered that trading losses exceed the estimated VaR almost one in every 100 trading
days, At the same time, a limit was established for the madimum VaR that is willing to accept on the trading portfalia, In both 2020 and 20189, the

Bank has remained within the maximum limit established for the VaR, even in those instances in which the real VaR exceeded the estimate,

The high, low and average levels for each component and for each year were the following:

2020 2019
VAR MMUSD MMUSD
Consolidated:
High 1282 15,78
Lo 194 133
Average 4.45 106
Fixed income investments:
High 11.96 or7
Lo 1.50 118
Average 319 233
Variable income investmants:
High Qi 001
Leviw = 5
Average
Foreign currency investments
High 647 605
Liorue o 0,10
Aonerag e 285 1,60

Market risk — local and foreign financial management

The Bank's financial management portfolio includes most of the Bank's assets and non-trading liabilities, including the loan / loan portfolio, For
these portfolios, investment and financing decisions are heavily influenced by the Bank's commercial strategies.

The Bank uses a sensitivity analysis to measure the market risk of local and foreign currency (not included in the trading portfolio), The Bank
perfarms a scenario simulation which will be caleulated as the difference between the present value of the flows in the chosen scenario (curve with
parallel movement of 100 bp in all its tranches) and its value in the base scenario (current market) , All positions in local currency indexed to inflation
[UF) are adjusted by a sensitivity factor of 0,57, which represents a change in the rate curve at 57 basis points in real rates and 100 basis points in
nominal rates, The same scenario is carried out far net fareign currency positions and interest rates in US dollars, The Bank has also established limits
regarding the maximum loss that these types of movements in interest rates may have on capital and net financial income budgeted for the year,

To determine the consolidated limit, the foreign currency limit is added to the local currency limit for both the net financial loss limit and the capital
and reserve |oss limit, using the following formula:

Bound limit = square root of a2 + b2 + 2ab

a: limit in national currency.

b lirmit in fareign currency.

Since it is assumed that the correlation is 0. Zab = 0,
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The mast important assumption is the use of a change of 100 basis points in the yield curve (57 basis points for real rates), The Bank uses a change
of 100 basis points given that sudden changes of this magnitude are considered realistic, The Global Risk Department of Santander Spain has also
established comparable limits by country, in order to be able to compare, manitor and consolidate the market risk by country in a realistic and
orderly manner.

In addition, the methodalogy of sensitivity simulations should be interpreted considering the following limitations:

- The simulation of scenarios assumes that the volumes remain in the Bank's Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and that they are always
renewed at maturity, omitting the fact that certain considerations of credit risk and prepayments may affect the maturity of certain positions,

- This model assumes an egual change in the entire performance curve of everything and does not take into account the different movements for
different maturities.

- The madel does not take into account the sensitivity of valumes resulting from changes in interest rates.

- The limits to the losses of budgeted financial income are calculated on the basis of expected financial income for the year that can not be
obtained, which means that the actual percentage of financial income at risk could be greater than expected.

ket rick < Finsing GG 31, 2020 3019

2020 2019
Effect an Effect on capital Effect on Effect on capital
financial financial
incams incame
Financial management partfolie - local currency (MChS)
Lass limit 100,000 3275 100000 2F5000
High BE504 #zeld ame 233473
Law 26492 214558 12,685 145338
Average 45,360 255070 24,505 ZEBTT2
Fimanclal managemant partfolio - forslgn currency (ThSUS)
Lass limit 32 53 = 75
High &] a7 0 EH
Law 2 12 ] 1
Average 5 33 12 12
Financlal managemant parigolio (MCh$)
Lasz limit 100,000 320275 100,000 275000
High E7,504 2BE 436 34467 271589
Law F= 800 210706 15,236 183836
Avarage AE 4 246252 ITEH 227303

IBOR reform

In December 2020, the ICE Benchmark Administration Limited (IBA) launched a query regarding its intention ta stop publishing LIBOR valuations in
currencies other than the dollar until December 31, 2021 and all other LIBOR parameters in WSO, after its publication on June 30 of 2023,

The Bank has started its transition program to IBOR, mainly focused on: i) Identifying the risks associated with the transition to the definition of
mitigation actions, i) Develop products referenced to the proposed replacement rates, |ii) Develop the capacity to transition, through the

renegotiation of existing contracts referenced to LIBOR.

Asg of Decemnber 31, 2020, the exposures of financial assets and liabilities impacted by the IBOR reform are presented below,

Loans Deposits Financial Financial derivative Financial derivative
Instruments contracts (Assets) contracts (Liabilities)

MCchs MCh$ MCh$ MCh$ McCh$

362,11 582,979 200,301 514,015 483,789
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To fulfill its functions, the CIR works directly with the Bank's risk and control departments, whose joint objectives include;

evaluate those risks that, due to their size, could compromise the solvency of the Bank, or that present potentially significant operaticnal or
reputation risks;
ensure that the Bank is provided with the means, systems, structures and resources in accardance with the best practices that allow for the
implementation of the strategy in risk management;
ensure the integration, control and management of all Bank risks;

- execute the application throughout the Bank and its businesses of homeogeneous risk principles, policies and metrics;

- develop and implement a risk management madel in the Bank, so that the risk exposure is properly integrated in the different decision-making
processes;

- identify risk concentrations and mitigation alternatives, monitor the macroeconomic and competitive environment, quantify sensitivities and the
foreseeable impact of different scenarics on the positioning of risks; ¥

- manage the structural liquidity risks, interest rates and exchange rates, as well as the Bank's own resources base,

Ta comply with the aforementioned abjectives, the Bank (Administration and ALCO) carries out several activities related to risk management, which
include: caleulating the risk exposures of the different portfolios and / or investments, conzidering mitigating factors (guarantees, netting |
collaterals, etc,); calculate the probabilities of expected loss of each portfolio and / or investments; assign the loss factors to the new operations
[rating and scoring); measure the risk values of the portfolios and / or investments according to different scenarios through historical simulations;
establish limits to potential losses based on the different risks incurred; determine the possible impacts of structural risks in the Consolidated
Statements of Results of the Bank; set the limits and alerts that guarantee the Bank's liquidity; and identify and quantify operational risks by business
limes and thus facilitate their mitigation through corrective actions.

The CDA is primarily responsible for monitoring compliance with the Bank's risk management policies and procedures, and for reviewing the
adequacy of the risk management framewark in relation to the risks the Bank faces.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one of the parties to the financial instrument contract fails to comply with its contractual ebligations due to insabvency or
disability of natural or legal persons and causes a financial loss in the other party, For purposes of credit risk management, the Bank consolidates all
the elements and components of credit risk exposure (eg risk of individual default by creditor, innate risk of a line of business or sector, and / or
geographical risk).

Mitigation of credit risk for loans and accounts receivable

The Baoard of Directors has delegated responsibility for credit risk management to the Comprehensive Risk Cammittee (CIR) and the Bank's nsk
departments whose roles are summarized as follows:

rmulation redit policies, in consultation with the business units, covering the requirements of guarantee, credit evaluation, risk rating and
presentation of reports, documents and legal procedures in compliance with the regulatory, legal and internal requirements of the Bank.

- Establish the structure of the authorization for the approval and renewal of credit applications, The Bank structures levels of credit risk by placing
limits on the concentration of that risk in terms of individual debtors, groups of debtors, segments of industries and countries, The authorization
limits are assigned to the respective officers of the business unit (commercial, consumption, PYRMES) to be monitored permanently by the
Administration, In addition, these limits are reviewed periodically, The nsk assessment teams at branch level interact reqularly with clients, however
for large cperations, the risk teams of the parent company and even the CIR, work directly with clients in the evaluation of credit nsks and
preparation of credit risk, credit applications, Inclusively, Banco Santander Espafia participates in the process of approving the most significant loans,
for example to clients or economic groups with debt amounts greater than US % 40 million,

- Limit_ concentrations of exposure to customers, counterpars, in geographic areas, industries [for accounts receivable or credits), and by issuer,

credit rating and liguidity (for investments),

- Develop and maintain the Bank's risk classification in order to classify the risks according to the degree of exposure to financial loss faced by the
respective financial instruments and with the purpose of focusing the management or risk management specifically on the associated risks.

- Review and evaluate credit risk The nisk divisions of the Administration are largely independent of the commercial division of the bank and evaluate
all credit risks in excess of the designated limits, prior to the approval of credits to customers or prior to the acquisition of specific investments,
Credit renewals and revisions are subject to similar processes,

Cansolidated Financial Statements December 2020 / Banco Santander-Chile 147




Banco Santander-Chile and Subsidiaries
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AS OF DECEMEBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

MOTE 39
RISK MAMAGEMENT, continued

In the preparation of a credit request for a corporate client, the Bank verifies several parameters such as the debt service capacity (including,
generally, projected cash flows), the client's financial history and / or projections for the economic sector in which it operates, The risk division is
clasely involved in this process, All requests cantain an analysis of the client’s strengths and weaknesses, a rating and a recommendation, The credit
limits are not determined based on the outstanding balances of the clients, but on the direct and indirect credit risk of the financial group, For
example, a limited company would be evaluated together with its subsidiaries and affiliates.

Consumer loans are evaluated and approved by their respective nisk divisions {individuals, PYMEz) and the evaluation process is based on an
evaluation system known as Garra (Banco Santander] and Syseva of Santander Banefe, both processes are decentralized, automated and they are
based on a scoring system that includes the credit risk policies implemented by the Bank's Board of Directors, The credit application process is based
on the collection of information to determine the client’s financial situation and ability to pay, The parameters that are used to assess the credit risk
of the applicant include several variables such as: income levels, duration of current employment, indebtedness, reports of credit agencies.

Mitigation of credit risk of other financial assets (investments, derivatives, commitments)

As part of the pracess of acquiring financial investrments and financial instruments, the Bank considers the probability of uncollectibility of issuers or
counterparties using internal and external evaluations such as independent risk evaluators of the Bank, In addition, the Bank is gaverned by a strict
and conservative palicy which ensures that the issuers of its investments and counterparties in transactions of derivative instruments are of the
highest reputation,

In addition, the Bank operates with various instruments that, although they involve exposure to credit risk, are not reflected in the Conzolidated
Statement of Financial Position, such as: guarantees and bonds, decumentary letters of credit, guarantee slips and commitments to grant loans,

The guarantees and bonds represent an irrevocable payment obligation, In the event that a guaranteed client does not fulfill its obligations with
third parties who are liable to the Bank, the latter will make the carresponding payments, so that these transactions represent the same exposure to
credit risk as a cammen laan,

Documentary letters of credit are commitments documented by the Bank on behalf of the client that are guaranteed by the merchandise shipped to
which they are related and, therefore, have a lower sk than direct indebtedness, Guarantee slips correspond to contingent commitments that are
made effective only if the client does not comply with the performance of warks agreed with a third party, guaranteed by them.

‘When it comes to commitments te grant credit, the Bank is potentially exposed to losses in an amount equivalent to the unused total of the
commitment, However, the probable amount of loss is less than the unused total of the commitment, The Bank monitors the maturity of credit lines
because generally long-term cammitments have a higher credit risk than short-term commitments.

Maximun credit risk exposure

For financial assets recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, exposure to credit risk is equal to their book value, For financial
guarantees granted, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the maximum amount that the Bank would have to pay if the guarantee were executed.
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Below is the distribution by financial asset and off-balance a sheet commitments of the Bank's maximum exposure to credit risk as December 31,
2020 and 2019, without deduction of collateral, security interests or credit improvements recived:

As of december 31, As of Decamber 31,
2020 2019
Amount of expoesure Amaunt of exposure
Note MChs MChS
Depasits in banks 5 213780 2693342
Cash items in process of collection 5 452,343 355,062
Trading invastments & 133,718 270204
Investments under resale agreements T
Financial derivative contracts & 9,032,085 &,148,608
Leans and accounts receivable from customers and interbank loans, net Gyl 13.432.349 31830568
Aoailabslie for sale investmants 1 762,542 4010272
Off-balance eommitments:
Letters of credit issued ) 165,119 140572
Feareign letters oferedit canfirmed 3 82,770 092
Guaranteas & 1.080,643 192,898
Bvailable credit lines 2 3391,414 a732422
Personal guarantees 23 241,508 451,850
Other irevacable credit commitments 3 406,234 485,891
Total 62,929,245 54,127,077
S—
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Regarding the quality of the credits, these are classified in accordance with what is described in the compendium of regulations of the ChMF as of

December 31, 2020 and 2019:

Category A= of December 31, 2020 Kz of December 31, 319
Comercial Individual Percentage Allowance Percentage Individual Percentage Allowance Percentage
Portfolio
MChs % MChs ] MCh$ W MChE k)
A1 35,166 0o 1 5 95,043 LEY 34 -
Az 708,645 206 465 005 207,695 7 532 006
A3 1971814 573 2932 030 2213921 677 3434 03g
A4 1452158 713 17,261 177 3514637 07 19537 123
A5 2,824,120 &21 35,107 250 2,226,246 £&1 29,500 EE]
AS 1953513 563 41,458 425 1,134,045 345 23568 267
B 715,340 08 11,420 210 602,202 185 10608 1
B2 151,472 047 9326 095 83,341 nzs 3428 03z
B3 66,379 019 3331 034 B5,A51 027 4580 051
= 122678 036 19,284 197 133,701 o4 23,797 166
cl 168,035 049 3361 034 156,437 048 3169 035
(= 81,772 024 8177 084 75,830 024 7583 085
=1 56428 0y 14,232 146 48,607 04 12150 136
c4 50,403 015 20,161 206 41,372 niz 16,548 1.85
= 40,803 0z 6522 272 44,904 013 29,188 327
& 135,434 0140 134,580 1378 53,645 015 48262 £ 401
Subtotal 11,545 668 31,57 357,640 661 11,424,472 34,02 216,549 26.49
Group Percentage Allowance Percentage Group Percentage Allowance Percentage
MChs 3 MChS % MChS % MChS 5%
Commerdial
Narmal Partioks 5,077,553 1476 78,157 &00 4,027,776 1231 75,918 &61
Imgairad poctfalio 414315 120 210,903 2159 462,583 141 195975 22327
Subtotal 5,401,868 15.06 280,040 29.50 4,490,350 13.72 275,893 30,88
Mortgage
Narmal Partfoks 12,004,831 3491 23,674 242 10,733,871 3z&E1 21,078 236
Imgaired partfolio ADG.A54 1.18 37,607 385 529,724 142 47,383 w51}
Fukrtotal 12,411,825 26,09 61,281 6.27 11,262,995 24,43 68,451 7.67
Martgage
harmal Fartioka 4,697,166 1266 85,567 a7 5,288,137 1607 124,054 1359
Impaired porthalic 243713 072 172,274 17.75 280,920 086 188,191 2107
Subtotal 4,940,879 14.38 268,841 27.53 5,533,057 16.93 312,245 34.06
Total 34,390,240 100,00 76,811 100,00 32,716,883 100,60 §93,148 100,00
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Az of Decerber 31, 2020 and 2019, the Bank estimates that the credit quality of its other financial assets and financial liabilities is not significant for
disclosure.

Regarding the individual evaluation portfolic, the different categories comespond to:

Categories & or Portfolio in Mormal Compliance, is ane that is made up of debtors whase ability to pay them it allows compliance with its financial
abligations and commitments, and that accarding to the evaluation of its ecanamic-financial situation, it is not seen that this condition changes in
the short term,

Categories B or Substandard Portfolio, is one that contemplates debtors with financial difficulties or significant worsening of their ability to pay
and over which there are reasonable doubts about the total reimbursement of principal and interest in the terms agreed upon, showing a low
slack to meet with your financial obligations in the short temm.

- Categories C or Portfolio in Default, is made up of those debtors whose recovery is considered remaote, since they show a deteriorated or no
capacity to pay.

As for the group evaluation portfolios, a joint evaluation of the operations that compose it is carried out.

Refer to Note 31 for details of impaired Bank loans and their respective provisions. Also refer to the Mote 20 for a breakdown of the maturities of the
Bank’s financial assets.

Exposure to credit risk in derivative contracts with abroad
As of December 31, 2020, the Bank's foreign expasure, including the counterparty risk in the derivative portfolia, was USD 2,639 millian or 1,58% of
the assets, In the table below, the exposure to derivative instruments is caleulated wsing the equivalent credit risk, which is equal to the net value of

the replacement plus the maximum paotential value, cansidering the collateral in cash, which mitigates the exposure,

Below, additional details are included regarding our expesure to those countries that have a rating of 1 and that correspond to the largest
exposures, The following is the exposure as of December 31, 2020, conzidering the fair value of the derivative instruments.

Derivative instrument
Financial Total

C Clasificati 1 i
ountry asification  (adjusted to market) Deposits Loans investments  expasure

MM USD M USD M USD M USD M UsSD
Colornbia 2 oa 3 = - aa
halia Z EL VR E] - 345
Ménico 2 9.36 no: - - 8%
Panamd 2 577 - - - 577
Perd 2 141 - - - 141
Tatal 18,05 2.39 L] = 21,57
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Qur exposure to Spain within the group is as follows:

Dervative intruments Finameial Tatal
(adjusted to market) Dwepasits Loans investmants CHPOSUNE
Counterpart Country Clasification M UsSD M UsD MUsD M UsSD M USD
Banco Santandder Espada ) Espafia 1 W77 1332.98 . 5 34715

%) Thee tatal amourt af this exposure to gerative instruments must be offset daily with the collateral and, therefore, the net credit exposure is USD § 0,28
1*) W include our expogure to Sartander UK and Mesico a3 expasure to Spain,

Impairment of other financial instruments

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Bank did not have significant impairments in its financial assets other than credits andfor accounts
receivable,

Security interests and credit improvements

The maximum expasure to credit risk, in some cases, is reduced by guarantees, credit enhancements and other actions that mitigate the Bank's
exposure, Based on this, the constitution of guarantees is a necessary but not sufficient instrument in the granting of a loan; therefore, the
acceptance of risk by the Bank requires the verification of other vanables or parameters such as the ability to pay or generate resources to mitigate
the risk incurred,

The procedures for the management and valuation of guarantees are included in the internal risk management policy, These policies establish the
basic principles for the management of credit risk, which includes the management of guarantees received in transactions with customers, In this
sense, the risk management model includes assessing the existence of appropriate and sufficient guarantees that allow the recovery of the loan to
be carried out when the debtor's circumstances do not allow it to meet its obligations.

The procedures used for the valuation of the guarantees are in accordance with the best practices of the market, which invalve the use of valuations
in real estate guarantees, market price in stock values, value of the shares in an investment fund, etc, All the collateral received must be praperly
instrumented and registered in the corresponding registry, as well as having the approval of the Bank's legal divisions.

The Bank also has rating tools that allow ordering the credit quality of operations or clients, In order to study how this probability varies, the Bank
has historical databases that store the information generated internally, The qualification tools vary according to the segment of the analyzed client
[commercial, consumption, SMEs, etc,).

The follawing is a breakdown of impaired and noen-impaired financial assets that have collateral, collateral or credit enhancements associated with
the Bank as of Decernber 31, 2020 and 2019:

As of Decembar, As of Decembaer,
2020 2019
MChs MChS
Hon-impaired financial assets:
Properties/mortgages 25,424,181 23,371,510
Investments and others 2,308,062 2,785,219
Impaired financial assets:
Properties/mortgages 1,548,568 1,245,971
Investmaents and others 65,668 565,951
Tatal 29,344,459 27,968,651
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NOTE 39
RISK MAMAGEMENT, continued

Liquidity ris}
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank has difficulties in complying with the ohligations associated with its financial obligations,
Liquidity risk management

The Bank is exposed daily to requirements of cash funds from several banking transactions such as current account drafts, payments of term
deposits, guarantee payments, disbursements of derivative operations, etc, As is inherent in banking activity, the Bank does not hold funds in cash to
cover the balance of those pesitions, since experience shows that anly a minimum level of these funds will be withdrawn, which can be foreseen with
a high degree of certainty.

The Bank's approach to liquidity management is to ensure, to the extent possible, that it always has sufficient liquidity to meet its obligations at
maturity, under normal circumstances and stress conditions, withowt incurring unacceptable losses ar risking risk, of damage to the reputation of the
Bark, The Board sets limits on a minimum portion of funds to be made available to meet such payments and on a minimum level of inter-bank
operations and other lending facilities that should be available to cover drafts at unexpected levels of demand, which is reviewed periodically, On the
other hand, the Bank must comply with regulatory imits dictated by the CMF for the mismatches of terms.

These limits affact the mismatches between future income and expenditure flows of the Bank considered individually and are the following:

i, Mismatches of up ta 30 days for all currencies, up to once the basic capital;
i, mismatches of up to 30 days for foreign currencies, up to once the basic capital; and
iii, mismatches of up to 30 days for all currencies, twice the basic capital.

The treasury department receives information from all the business units on the liquidity profile of its financial assets and liabilities and details of
other projected cash flows derived from future businesses, According to this information, treasury maintains a portfolio of liquid assets in the short
term, composed largely of liquid investments, loans and advances to other banks, to ensure that the Bank maintaing sufficient liguidity, The liquidity
needs of the business units are met through short-term transfers from treasury to cover any short-term fluctuation and long-term financing to
address all structural liquidity requirements.

The Bank maonitors its liquidity position on a daily basis, determining the future flows of its expenses and revenues, In addition, stress tests are
carried out at the end of each month, for which a variety of scenarios are used, covering both normal market conditions and fluctuation conditions,
The liquidity policy and procedures are subject to review and approval by the Bank's Board of Directors, Periodic reports are generated detailing the
liquidity position of the Bank and its affiliates, including any exceptions and comective measures adopted, which are regularly reviewed by the ALCO.

The Bank is based on client {retail) and institutional deposits, bonds with banks, debt instruments and time depaosits as its main sources of financing,
Although most of the obligations with banks, debt instruments and time deposits have maturities of more than one year, customer and retail
deposits tend to have shorter maturities and a large proportion of them are payable within 90 days, days, The short-term nature of these deposits
increases the liquidity risk of the Bank and therefore the Bank actively manages this risk by constantly monitoring market trends and price
management,
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NOTE 39
RISK MAMNAGEMENT, continued

Exposure to liquidity risk

One of the key measures used by the Bank to manage liquidity risk is the proportion of net liquid assets to customer deposits, For this purpose, the
net liquid assets must include cash f cash, cash equivalents and debt investments for which there is an active and liquid market minus the deposits

of the banks, fixed income securities issued, loans and other commitments maturing in next manth, A similar measure, but not identical, is used as a
caloulation to measure the Bank's compliance with the liquidity imit established by the CMF, where the Bank determines the mismatch between its
nghts and obligations according to maturity according to the estimated performance.

The proportions of the mismatches at 30 days in relation to capital and 90 days in relation to 2 times the capital are shown in the following table:

As of December As of December 31,
31, 2019
2020
% %
30 days 30 63
30 days faralgn 15 -
30 days 32 79

Following is a breakdown, by contractual maturities, of the balances of the Bank's assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2020 and 2019,

considering also those unrecognized commitments:

g1 Bavaean 1 and Betandan 3 and Batwoon 1 and Bataaan 3 Maro tham 5
Az of December 31, 2020 Demand manth 3 moniths 12 months 3 years and § years PEATS Total
MChE MChE MChi MChE MChi MChE MChE MChE
Assil expiation (Mote 200 A04ax4 253 1EE 1843262 4655603 LA 4 337802 31437352 54,602 125
Expiration of Babilties (Note 201 (15,BET 957] iTE2147d [ he= g [588.747] E714.324] B4z 738] (EE17.582) 50,583, 66T)
Mut expiration (19,833, 123) {5.132,30%) (3 VE15TT) 1,065 356 aramar [3,744,926) 24,619,770 1,618 458
Unrecogmized loan / credit commitments
Guarantess and bonds (33538 25.358) 35708 0.7 (441, 508)
Letters of cradit Tram abrasd condimmad (18247 [&3,056) {16.163) 313) &2, 7T
Letters of documentary credits issued (A (830 161,764 136,200 L3.065] (165,11%)
GUarantes (114853 (9E130% [4317,835] [E=R I 4637 AEE0N 11,050, 643)
Met maturity, incduding commitments (11,831 0E3) {5230, BRE) [3524.754) 208433 SETAAG [A.781,807) ELEAERE 1.A2E 408
Hasta Entre 1y 3 Entre 3y 12 Entre 1y 3 Entre 3y § M dir 5 niias
A5 of Decombar 31, 2019 Al vista 1 mas LT s afnos afias Tatal
MChS BMChE MCHS MCHS MChs MCHS MChs MChE
Asset expirabon (Note 200 4533383 4,513,787 2813047 TE55024 BOTA2ET & 720,027 15465316 43,335,017
Expiration of kakilities |Note 20 11.783.782) REAN, 245 G747 304} |50 EI (LEELE ] |3, 425,m9) (5200485 (44, 855.31F]
Mot expiration (7,254 393} (Z1ZT.ASEY (3,934, 747] 1,684,230 3,636,303 2,294,938 TL764, 831 4,525,704
Unrecognized loam / oredit commitments
Guarsrees snd bonds 130,356 3.00r3} (M ED2E) [eEAE] IF471 451,950
Letters of credt fram abraad confimred 25493 0208) 01,305 31,5571 {7018
Letters of documnentary credits issueed 133207 [ELTH [ELER ] [ i [140.572)
Guiararing 184,163) S45.369 S0ETIT) (216.473] 7681 (22105 (1,928 804
Het maturity, inchiding commitments (7,254 30%) (2 360,£76) (4,402, 280) ITETRE 3,22k 250 2,196,530 10,242,839 1,833,086

The above tables show the undiscounted cash flows of the Bank's financial assets and liabilities on the estimated maturity basis. The expected cash
flows of the Bank from these instruments can vary considerably compared to this analysis. For example, demand deposits are expected to remain
stakle ar have an increasing trend, and unrecognized loan commitments are not expected to be executed all that have been arranged, In addition,

the above breakdown excludes available lines of credit, since they lack contractual defined maturities,
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MNOTE 392
RISK MANAGEMENT, continued

Operating risk

Qperational risk is the risk of direct or indirect losses arising from a wide variety of causes related to the Bank's processes, personnel, technalogy
and infrastructure, and external factors that are not credit, market or liguidity, such as those related to legal or regulatory reguirements, Operating
risks arise from all Bank operations.

The abjective of the Bank is the management of operational risk in order to mitigate economic losses and damages to the Bank's reputation with
a flexible structure of internal contral.

The Bank's Administration has the primary responsibility for the development and application of controls to deal with operational risks,
This respansibility is supported by the overall development of the Bank's standards for operational risk management in the following areas:

- Reguirements for the proper segregation of functions, including the independent authaorization of operations

- Reguirements for reconciliation and supervision of transactions

- Compliance with applicable legal and regulatory reguirements

- Dacumentation of controls and procedures

- Reguirements for the periodic evaluation of the applicable operational risks, and the adequacy of the contrals and procedures to deal with the
identified risks

- Requirements for the disclosure of operating losses and the proposed corrective measures

- Development of contingency plans

- Training and professional development / training

- Establishment of business ethics standards

- Reduction or mitigation of risks, including contracting insurance policies if they are effective.

Compliance with Bank regulations is supported by a program of periodic reviews carried out by the Bank's internal audit and whose examination
results are presented internally to the management of the business unit examined and to the Directors and Audit Committes,

The Bank operates mainly in Chile, therefore most of its financial instruments are concentrated in that country. Refer to Mote Mo 09 of the
Consolidated Financial Statements for a detail of the concentration by industry of the Bank's credits and accounts receivable.

Capital risk

The Group defines capital risk as the risk that the Group or any of its companies may have an insufficient amount and/for quality of capital to; mest
the minimurm regulatory requirements in erder to aperate as a bank; respond to market expectations regarding its creditwarthiness; and support its
business growth and any strategic possibilities that might arise. in accordance with its strategic plan.

The objectives in this connection incluede most notably:

« To meet the internal capital and capital adequacy targets.
= To meet the regulatory requirements.
= To align the Bank's strategic plan with the capital expectations of external agents (rating agencies, shareholders and investors, customers,

supervisors, etc)
= To support the growth of the businesses and any strategic opportunities that may arise.

The Group has a capital adequacy position that surpasses the levels required by regulations,

Capital management seeks to optimize the creation of value in the Bank and in its business segments. The Bank continually assesses its risk-return
ratios thraugh its basic capital, effective equity, econamic capital, and return on equity, With regard to capital adequacy, the Banks carry out their
internal process based on the CMF (ex SBIF) standards that are based an the Basel Capital Accord (Basel 1) and as of December 1, 2020 the CMF will
based on Basel lll. Economic capital is the capital required to bear all the risk of commercial activity with a certain level of solvency.

Capital is managed according to the risk erwvironment, the economic performance of Chile and the business cycle, Board may modify our current
equity policies to address changes in the mentioned rizk environment.
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MNOTE 29
RISK MAMAGEMENT, continued

Capital minimum

Under the General Banking Law, a bank is required to have a minimum of UFB00.000 (approximately Ch323,256 million or USS 326 million as
of December 31, 20200 of paid-in capital and reserves, calculated in accordance with CWF.

Capital requirement

Chilean banks are required by the General Banking Law to maintain regulatory capital of at least 8% of risk-weighted assets, net of required loan
loss allowance and deductions, and paid-in capital and reserves ("basic capital”) of at least 3% of total assets, net of required loan loss
allowances, Reqgulatory capital and basic capital are calculated based on the consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with the
Compendium of Accounting Standards issued by the CMF, As we are the result of the merger between two predecessors with a relevant market
share in the Chilean market, we are currently required to maintain a minimum regulatory capital to risk-weighted assets ratio of 11% As of
December 31, 2020, the ratio of our regulatory capital to nsk-weighted assets, net of loan loss allowance and deductions, was 15.37% and our care
capital ratio was 6.96%.

Reqgulatory capital is defined as the aggregate of:

= a bank's paid-in capital and reserves, excluding capital attributable to subsidiaries and foreign branches or basic capital;

+ its subordinated bonds, valued at their placement price (but decreasing by 20.0% far each year during the period commencing six years prior to
maturity), for an amaunt up to 50.0% of its basic capital; and

« its voluntary allowances for loan losses for an amount of up ta 1.25% of risk weighted-assats,

On August 21, 2020, circular Mo, 2265 was published indicating the new treatrment, where the amounts of the credits that are guaranteed by the
Chilean Treasury are incorporated into category 2 of the risk-weighted asset classification, , CORFO and FOGAPE, which consequenthy went fram
having a credit risk weight of 100% to 10%.

Since December 1, the regulatory capital definition has changed and is defined as follows:

» Paid capital of the bank for ordinary shares subscribed and paid;

* Premiurmn paid for the instrurments included in this capital component;

* Reserves, both non-profit and non-profit, due to the depreciation of bonds without a fived maturity term and due to the expiration of bonds
without a fived maturity term;

« Iterns of "other accumulated comprehensive income”;

= Retained earnings from previous years, profit (loss) for the year, net of provisions for minimum dividends, appreciation of bonds with no fixed
maturity term and payment of interest and / or dividends of issued regulatary capital financial instruments;

= Mon-controlling interest as indicated in the Compendium of Accounting Standards (CNC).

BASILEA NIl adoption in Chile

The new General Banking Law (updated through Law 21,130) defines general guidelines to establish a capital adequacy system in line with the
international standards of Basel lIl, giving the CMF the power to dictate the framewark of capital in a prudent manner. In particular, the CMF is
empowered, with the prior faverable agreement of the Board of the Central Bank of Chile (BCCh), to define by regulation, the new methedologies for
calculating assets weighted by credit, market and operational risk; the conditions of issuance of hybrid instruments AT1, and the determination and
capital charges for banks of local systemic importance, It also introduced conservation and counter-cyclical buffers and expanded the CMF's powers
to make prudential discounts to requlatory capital and require additional measures, including higher capital, from banks that present deficiencies in
the supervisory evaluation process (pillar 2). The implementation of Basel |ll makes it possible to focus risk management towards a more
comprehensive vision of them, with a focus on capital adeguacy.

In accordance with the foregaing, last Decernber the CMF completed the process of issuing the necessary regulations for the implementation in
Chile of the capital framework of the Basel 1ll standards. But in the current context of a coranavirus pandemic, the CMF, in coordination with the

APR calculation for one year and maintain it temporarily the general regqulatory framework in force until Nevember 30, 2021.
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AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

Additionally, it was decided to advance in the transitory credit risk standard, a capital mitigation mechanism to facilitate the develapment of the
debt agreement market, and that complements a similar treatment of state guarantees already granted by the CMF this year. In the case of Pillar
3, implementation was postponed until 2023,

The Bank, for its part, is already working on the implementation of the requlations through a multidisciplinary group, which are carrying out the
necessary exercises and required developments, including the implementation of the files designed by the regulator for this purpose, taking into
account consideration of the implementation schedule,

The basic capital and effective equity levels at the end of each perod are as follows:

Ratio
As of December 31, As of December 31,
2020 2019 2020 2019
MCh% MCh% % %
Basic capital 3.567.916 3,350,823 6.649 6.96
Beqgulatary capital 5,143,843 4,304,401 15.37 12.86

Concentration of risk

The Bank operates mainly in Chile, so most of its financial instruments are concentrated in that country, Refer to Mote 10 of the financial statements
for a breakdown of the concentration by industry of the Bank's receivables and accounts receivable.
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MOMN-CURREMT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

Banco Santander has embarked on an internal process of developing its acquisition netwark, thereby abandoning investments in the caompanies
that provided such services. Therefore, senior management has engaged in a buyer search plan for such shareholdings.

As required by IFRS 5, the Bank has presented the non-current asset classified as held for sale by isolating it frem the rest of the investments
in associates, in the same way it has presented the income associated with said investments as non-current results in a comparative way.

Given the facts and circumstances arising from the social contingency in Chile and the global pandemic due to Covid-19 (situations beyond
the Bank's cantrol), the process of sale of the shares has taken a longer time than initially estimated, however the Bank continues committed to the
sale plan for said assets and to its acquisition network development plan, evidenced by the recent creation of a payment card operating company
and the active search for potential buyers.

The following investments in associates were classified 10 non-current assets held for sale:

As of December 31, As of December 21,
2020 2019

Participation Assets Result Assets Result

% MCh$ MChS MCh$ MCh§
Transbank £5.00 19,093 = 19,093 1,442
hexus - - - 357 136
Redbanc 3343 2,943 - 2,443 121
Totales 22,036 - 22,393 1,699

(*) By public deed dated January 22, 2020, the sale of 79,577 sharas that Banco Santander Chile held with Mexus 5.4 was materialized with Banco
au-Cerpbanca, thus campleting the total sale of the stake that the Bank held in Mexus S8
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NOTE 41
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Company

On January 7, 2021, an Extraordinary Sharehalders’ Meeting of the Sociedad Operadora de Tarjetas de Pago 5antander Getnet Chile SA agreed to
pay the tatal subscribed and unpaid capital by its shareholders, for a total amount of MM 5 3727, The shareholder Santander Asesoras Financieras
made its payment in cash for ThCh § 800, For its part, the shareholder Banco Santander Chile made its payment in part with cash for MM % 38 and
also contributing species (assets) valued by the extraordinary meeting at M § 3,689,

On January 29, 2021, in an exempt resolution Mo. 704, the Board of the Financial Market Commission adopted in the Ordinary Session Mo. 220 dated
lanuary 28, 2021, approving the application for autharization to operate the Card Operator Campany. Payment Santander Getnet Chile 54 as a
company to support the bank transfer and its registration in the Single Register of Payment Card Operators of this Institution,

Board

On February 3, 2021, the Bank's Board of Directors in an extraordinary session approved the constitution of additional voluntary provisions for an
amount that amounts to § 24,000 millian, in order to mitigate eventual future effects of the current health crisis on the loan portfolio of the Bank,

Standards

Due to the importance of the FCIC for the implementation of monetary policy and financial stability, and considering the evolution of the financing
needs of companies and the adjustments in the Government's guarantee pragrams, the Central Bank of Chile announced on 27 lanuary 2021, the
start of a third stage of this instrument (FCIC3). In particular, this new stage is aimed at: (i) completing the committed execution of this monetary
palicy instrument, and (i} deepening and extending commercial credit in the face of the prolongation of the health emergency and the need to
support the reactivation process , responding to the current financial needs of companies, complementing the recently enacted Fogape-Reactiva
program, especizlly in its refinancing line. FCIC 3 will go into effect on March 1, 2021 and there will be a limit to access per bank of US § 2 billion,
Additionally, the Fogape-Reactiva program is a new economic support measure that includes financing for Working Capital, Investment and
Refinancing for Micro, Small and Large Companies, valid until December 31, 2021,

There are no other subsequent events to be disclosed that accurred between January 1, 2027 and the date of issuance of these Financial Statements
[February 26, 2021).

JONATHAN COVARRUBIAS H. MIGUEL MATA HUERTA
Chief Accounting Officer Chief Executive Officer
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